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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the business review and prospect of Redco
Healthy Living Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”).

RESULTS

In 2022, the Group recorded revenue of RMB437.1 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 23.4%. Profit and total
comprehensive income for the year was RMB22.89 million. Profit and
total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB16.1 million. As of 31 December 2022, the aggregate gross
floor area (“GFA’) under management reached 19.6 million square
meter(s) (“sq.m.”) , representing a year-on-year growth of 24.0%. The
aggregate contracted GFA reached 26.7 million sq.m, representing a
year-on-year growth of 9.1%.
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
EERE

The Group has implemented diversified business expansion strategies
in line with prudent financial management principles and the high
requirements of the property management industry for service
quality and customer satisfaction. Through careful cost control
and optimized resource allocation, we have maintained financial
stability and security. At the same time, the value-added services
we provide have been widely recognized by the market by virtue of
its uniqueness. Benefiting from the above, the Group’ s ranking of
China s Top 100 Property Management Companies in the industry
rose to 37th.

2022 REVIEW

In 2022, the global economy faced unprecedented challenges and
was affected by multiple factors such as pandemic recurrence, supply
chain disruptions, rising inflationary pressures and geopolitical
tensions. Amidst such a macro environment, the real estate
industry suffered drastic fluctuations, which inevitably impacted
the property management industry. However, it is in such rapids
that excellent property management companies have demonstrated
their adaptability and resilience and seized the transformation
opportunities.

During this year, the Group, like an explorer in a blind alley, finally
accurately grasped the changes in the macro environment and
adopted active strategies. We adhere to the development idea
based on quality service, deepen cultivation of value-added
service, integrate technology and healthcare business and focus on
regional layout, which empower us to maintain our stability in the
transformation, improve our comprehensive competitiveness and
firmly move forward.

The Group relies on the “Lifestyle + healthcare” dual butler service
system to promote basic community services, deepen cultivation of
value-added service and provide a comfortable and convenient life
experience for our customers with its professionalism and dedication.

At the same time, we rely on the smart technology and continually
improve our operational efficiency and service experience through
means of digitalisation and intelligence to climb to a new height. On
the journey of independent innovation, we have made continuous
explorations and breakthroughs, and our subsidiary Shenzhen
Zhongtian Yunlian Technology Development Co., Ltd. was certified as
a “specialized and new” enterprise, which demonstrates the ambition
and strength of the Group in the field of scientific and technological
innovation.
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2023 OUTLOOK

Redco Healthy Living strives to transcend the limitations of
traditional physical space and provides customers with innovative
lifestyles. We not only build living space, but also create an art of life,
and strive to advocate and practice the concept of healthy living. The
Group adheres to the mission of “striving for a healthy better life’
and provides customers with all-round and high-quality life services
based on the “Lifestyle + healthcare” dual butler service system. Our
goal is to create a harmonious, healthy and sustainable community
life ecology, so that every customer could enjoy the beauty of life,
health and happiness.

Looking forward to 2023, the Group will continue to rely on its core
competitiveness to further consolidate its leading market position
in economically developed regions. We will integrate our strategic
planning with the development trend of emerging technologies to
continuously enrich and expand our project portfolio through organic
growth, strategic mergers and acquisitions and in-depth cooperation
with third-party developers.

At the same time, we will continue to provide excellent “Lifestyle +
healthcare” dual butler service, and strive to improve brand value
and customer experience. In a wave of technology development,
we will further develop smart technology business and upgrade our
IT platform to maximize cost effectiveness and comprehensively
enhance our service quality. We expect to provide customers with
more intelligent, efficient and personalized service experience by
introducing cutting-edge technologies such as artificial intelligence,
big data and Internet of Things.

In addition, we will continue to focus on and invest in the field of
green technology and sustainable development, and contribute to
the construction of green, healthy and sustainable social and living
environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our growth benefits from the trust and support of customers,
shareholders, investors, partners and the community. On behalf
of the Board and all staff, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude and respect for their hard work. “Constant
dropping wears away a stone”, we are keenly aware of our hard-
won achievements, and will forge ahead without forgetting the
original intention. In the future, the Company will constantly pursue
excellence and continuous innovation, practice more and achieve a
new high in return for the support of the community.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmASR

MARKET REVIEW

In 2022, the property management industry strove forward amidst
the changes and risks, and encountered unprecedented challenges.
In this year, the industry suffered ups and downs, and also seized
the opportunities for growth in these challenges. In the unstable
market, the property management industry gradually goes back to
the essence of business to focus on service quality and customer
experience, instead of merely pursuing scale expansion. The industry
grows rapidly based on its existing scale and turns to a quality-
efficiency-oriented growth mode.

The fundamental services of property management support its
comprehensive business development. By delivering value-added
services, such as customized solutions and community activities, the
industry has created new profit growth points. In addition, service
quality has been constantly improved to further expand market and
meet the increasingly higher requirements of customers. Empowering
scale management through the intelligent construction, enterprises
could realize remote monitoring and management of property space
environment, and provide customers with more convenient, efficient
and personalized services by introducing intelligent equipment and
establishing intelligent platforms.

In this process, property management companies also actively
undertake social responsibilities and obligations, such as promoting
green buildings, energy conservation and emission reduction, which
shows the sense of responsibility for the overall development of the
industry. The development of the property management industry
has entered the key stage in which the long-term development could
only be achieved through difficulties and hardships. Enterprises have
to formulate a forward-looking strategy of development in pursuit
of quality improvement and actively conduct its business layout
integrated with innovation, such as smart communities and health
care for the elderly, further explore the potential needs of customers
and accordingly establish service scenarios to obtain the recognition
of customers with high quality services.

At the same time, enterprises also need to proactively upgrade
the business development model with the assistance of intelligent
construction. Through introducing advanced information technology,
enterprises are able to improve operational efficiency, reduce costs
and improve service experience, which will not only enhance their
competitiveness, but also create greater value for customers. In
this process, only with the determination to break through and the
perseverance to innovate can enterprises create value for the society
and returns for its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IMPACT OF COVID-19

The outbreak of respiratory illness caused by the novel coronavirus
(i.e., COVID-19) began in early 2020 and continued to spread globally.
During the pandemic, neither our business has been significantly
affected, nor have our major suppliers.

While the COVID-19 pandemic may expose property management
companies to a number of risks to their operations, it also brings
certain opportunities. Customers have put forward new requirements
for life scenarios such as community control, property services, and
health management services. The Company seizes such opportunities
and is committed to providing customers with better and more
professional services, through which further trust can be secured
from customers.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Overview

The Company is a property management service provider with a
leading position in Jiangxi Province, the PRC and a service network
strategically covering core regions such as the Yangtze River Delta
Region, the Greater Bay Area, the Bohai Rim Region and the Central
China Region. We have always been adhering to the brand concept
of “striving for a healthy better life’, relying on the service concept
of “Lifestyle + healthcare” dual butlers, empowering our business
with technology and serving our property owners with quality. We
will keep up with the industry trend and implement the development
strategy of the Company through scientific research and judgement,
so as to achieve steady growth in business performance.

In terms of overall strength, our ranking of China’ s Top 100 Property
Management Companies in the industry has risen from 40th in 2021
to 37th in 2022 by China Index Academy. As of 31 December 2022, we
had a total of 116 projects under management with an aggregate GFA
under management of 19.6 million sq.m., and had been contracted
to manage 148 projects with an aggregate contracted GFA of 26.7
million sq.m. located in 33 cities across 13 provinces, municipalities
and autonomous regions in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE WS

Actively expanding and achieving high quality growth in the scale of
property management

The Company actively expand the scale of property management. As
of 31 December 2022, we had an aggregate GFA under management
of 19.6 million sqg.m., increasing approximately 24.0% year-on-year,
and an aggregate contracted GFA of 26.7 million sq.m., increasing
approximately 9.1% year-on-year.

By virtue of the Group s strategic business relationship with the
Redco Properties Group Limited (“Redco Properties’ and together
with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, the “Redco Group”)
(stock code: 1622), as of 31 December 2022, the Company were
contracted to manage 84 property projects developed by Redco
Group, consisting of 68 projects under management with an
aggregate GFA under management of 11.6 million sq.m. and 16
contracted but undelivered projects with an aggregate contracted
GFA of 4.8 million sg.m..

Meanwhile, the Group s GFA under management from independent
third party property developers grew steadily under its good
service quality and market reputation. As of 31 December 2022,
GFA under management from independent third party property
developers accounted for approximately 40.3% of the total GFA under
management.

Improving value-added service quality based on “Lifestyle + healthcare”
dual butler system

We are committed to providing high-quality and specialized property
management services to meet the needs of diverse customer groups.
In addition to our property management services, we endeavor to
continuously expand our value-added services and improve services
quality. In particular, we have established a “lifestyle + healthcare”
dual butler system, which provides comprehensive services to our
customers.

As a lifestyle butler, we provide our customers with well-rounded
property management services and value-added services. In addition
to the standard property management services, such as cleaning,
security, greening and public area maintenance services, services of
the Company extend to the pre-sale and pre-delivery stages.

As a healthcare butler, we provide community healthcare services
under Yearning Healthcare (18%Bf&#E2) brand. Combining the Al health
management box (AIfZE =T ) and environment monitoring systems
installed in residential communities to provide healthcare advice to
the residents in real time as well as to achieve service from online
and offline. We aim to provide integrated healthcare services which
integrate medical, healthcare and commercial services and meet the
needs of customers of different age groups.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Technological empowerment, keeping enhancing operational efficiency
through digitalization and intellectualization

The Company possess advanced technology among our peers in
the property management industry, which we believe allows us to
consolidate our competitiveness and reduce operating costs through
upgrading the information technology system. We also provide strong
technical support in the establishment of our information technology
platforms for property management services and value-added
services, and also have solid experience in the products research and
development, platform operation and maintenance services utilizing
various relevant technologies, such as digitalization technology
and Internet of Things. We have implemented various systems to
enhance the experience of property owners and residents as well as
to enhance the efficiency of our business operations.

Shenzhen Zhongtian Yunlian Technology Development Co., Ltd. was
certified as a “specialized and new” enterprise in Shenzhen in 2022.
We will endeavor to enhance capability of independent innovation
and keep improving customer experience through digitalization and
intellectualization.

Advancing with honor and strengthening the brand recognition

In 2022, the steady development and outstanding comprehensive
strength of the Group has been widely recognised in the industry
and abroad. We have won numerous awards during the Reporting
Period, and our reputation has grown significantly. The Company was
awarded Outstanding Operating Property Management Companies
in China - Healthy Life Service, and our two managed projects, Redco
Riverside International (Nanchang) (F8& - 1= & MEIK)and Redco
Royal Family (Jinan) (&m - 1&ZBM#EHE) were both awarded the
“2022 Five Stars Property Management Services Community’, by
China Index Academy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREE SRR

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group was derived from three business segments:
(i) property management services; (ii) value-added services to
non-property owners; and (iii) community value-added services
in the PRC. The revenue of the Group increased by approximately
23.4% from approximately RMB354.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB437.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The following table sets forth the details of the Group s revenue by
business segments for the years indicated:

FA %5 ol RE
e zs

AEEWDRE PR =EEHDER (i)
MEEERT ; ()FEFRERT; &
(i) BB ERT - FEBRDHBE"
T —F+"A=+—HLEFENYAR
TE3543ERBTEMN2BANEBRE "
T THE+TR=+—HLEFENOARSE
4371 B8TT °

TR FEREEREF DD
Z W asEls

Year ended 31 December
HE+_A=1+—HILFE

2022 2021 Changes
- T & %)
RMB' 000 %  RMB 000 %  RMB 000 %
AR%ETT AREFT AREFT
Property management services MEEERK 256,500 58.7 202,099 57.0 54 401 26.9
Value-added services to FEETIEERE
non-property owners 110,151 25.2 93,239 26.3 16,912 18.1
Community value-added services  #HEIZ{ERRH 70,462 16.1 58,989 16.7 11,473 19.4
437,113 100.0 354,327 100.0 82,786 234
Property management services YEETERTE

Revenue from property management services increased by
approximately 26.9% from approximately RMB202.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB256.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributable to the (i)
increase in the GFA under management of the Group; and (ii) increase
in average property management fee charged by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Value-added services to non-property owners

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners increased
by approximately 18.1% from approximately RMB93.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB110.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributable to the
increase in revenue generated from the information technology
services provided to Redco Properties Group, as the Group offered
new and diversified information technology services including
customized softwares development and design such as intelligent
software design, smart cashiers and housing inspection through
mobile phone.

Community value-added services

Revenue from community value-added services increased by
approximately 19.4% from approximately RMB59.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB70.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to increase in car
parking fees and garbage fees for decoration and construction work
as a result of the increase in projects managed by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Cost of sales

The cost of services primarily consists of (i) employee benefit
expenses; (ii) greening and cleaning expenses; (iii) maintenance
expenses; (iv) utility and security charges; and (v) other expenses such
as depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of
intangible asset.

Cost of services increased by approximately 23.3% from approximately
RMB238.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB294.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily due to the increase in employee benefit expense, cleaning
and greening expenses and outsourcing expenses as a result of the
increased in GFA under management of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFRRS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth the details of the Group’ s gross profit
and gross profit margin by types of services for the years indicated:

EMREFE

TR FEREERRFRE DI
ZEFREMERFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+_A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
- S B S5
Gross profit Gross profit Gross profit Gross profit
e margin e margin
RMB' 000 EFI= RMB' 000 ERE
ARETFT % ARETT %
Property management services #)%EERH% 64,125 25.0 50,060 24.8
Value-added services to JFEFIEERS
non-property owners 47,695 43.3 40,021 42.9
Community value-added BRI ER
services 31,054 44.1 25,688 43.6
142,874 32.7 115,769 32.7

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 23.4% from
approximately RMB115.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB142.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, which was mainly due to the increase in revenue
of the Group as a result of increase in business scale for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The gross profit margin remained stable at
approximately 32.7% for each of the two years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 due to the reasons as indicated below:

Property management services

The gross profit margin for property management services increased
from approximately 24.8% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately 25.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily
due to economies of scale as a result of the business expansion and
the increase in the average property management fee charged by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Value-added services to non-property owners

The gross profit margin for value-added services to non-property
owners increased from approximately 42.9% for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately 43.3% for the year ended
31 December 2022, primarily due to the increased contribution
from pre-delivery services and preliminary planning and design
consultancy services during the year ended 31 December 2022,
which had relatively higher gross profit margin than that of pre-sale
management services.

Community value-added services

The gross profit margin for community value-added services
increased from approximately 43.6% for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately 44.1% for the year ended 31 December 2022
primarily due to the benefit from economies of scale as the Group
provided value-added services to an increasing number of projects
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Group s continued
effort to diversify the service offerings to property owners.

Other income, gains and losses, net

Other income, gains and losses (net) decreased from approximately
RMB4.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB3.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
primarily due to the decrease in government grants received for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased to approximately RMB2.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due
to the decrease in employee benefit expenses relating to sales and
marketing activities for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 6.3% from
approximately RMB54.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB58.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to the increase in employee benefit expenses as a
result of the increase in the GFA under management of the Group and
the increase in depreciation of property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 due to the full year
depreciation charge in 2022 as the Group purchased an office and a
car parking space in Hong Kong in December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Impairment losses on financial assets, net of reversal

The impairment losses on financial assets, net of reversal, increased
from approximately RMB3.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB69.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 due to the increase in provision for impairment losses
for trade receivables from third parties and related parties, other
receivables from third parties and amounts due from related parties,
and non-controlling interests during the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared to the corresponding year in 2021. Such increase
in provision for impairment losses for the year ended 31 December
2022 was because there was a significant increase in credit risks of
receivables from related parties and third parties having considered
the current economic environment of the real estate industry in the
PRC and the financial conditions of the related parties and third
parties.

Finance income

Finance income represented the interest income from bank deposits,
which remained stable at approximately RMB0.3 million for each of
the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased from approximately RMBO0.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to increase in
interest expenses for the bank and other borrowings as a result of the
increase in bank and other borrowings obtained by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses decreased to approximately RMB6.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB19.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was in line with
the decrease in taxable profit for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the profit and total comprehensive
income for the year decreased from approximately RMB40.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB22.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The profit and total comprehensive income attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year decreased from approximately RMB32.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB16.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group mainly comprise property
management contracts, customer relationship and goodwill resulted
from the acquisitions of Wuhu Senlin Property Management Co.,
Ltd., Zhongtian Yunlian Technology Development Co., Ltd. and
Weiye International Investments Company Limited by the Group
in December 2020. The intangible assets of the Group decreased
from approximately RMB48.4 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB42.1 million as at 31 December 2022 mainly due to
the amortization of customer relationship and property management
contracts during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment of the Group decreased
from approximately RMB56.2 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB55.2 million as at 31 December 2022, mainly due
to the depreciation charge during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

Trade receivables mainly arise from provision of property
management services, value-added services to non-property owners
and community value-added services.

Trade receivables of the Group, net of allowance for impairment,
increased from approximately RMB129.4 million as at 31 December
2021 to RMB188.9 million as at 31 December 2022, primarily because
of the increase in the project under management in the property
management service segment and expansion of business of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE WS

Other receivables mainly consist of deposits, payments made on
behalf of property owners and prepaid listing expenses.

Other receivables and prepayments, net of allowance for impairment
increased from approximately RMB21.4 million as at 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB71.3 million as at 31 December 2022
mainly due to the Refundable Deposits paid in relation to the
potential acquisitions of the certain target companies amounting to
approximately RMB30.8 million during the year ended 31 December
2022. In 2023, the Refundable Deposits were fully refunded to the
Group.

Trade payables

Trade payables decreased from approximately RMB18.5 million as
at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB13.7 million as at 31
December 2022, primarily due to the Group’ s implementation of the
business strategy of reducing procurement costs and reducing the
aging of trade payables during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Accruals and other payables

Accruals and other payables (including those recorded as current
liabilities and non-current liabilities) increased from approximately
RMB57.1 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB78.8
million as at 31 December 2022, primarily because of the increase in the
projects managed by the Group as well as the increase in GFA under
management of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities primarily consist of advances of property
management fees and other service fees. Contract liabilities
increased from approximately RMB76.3 million as at 31 December
2021 to RMB98.5 million as at 31 December 2022, primarily due to
the increase in the number of properties managed by the Group as a
result of overall business growth during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the lease liabilities remained
relatively stable at approximately RMB3.9 million and RMB4.2 million,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bank and other borrowings

Borrowings represented bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group. Borrowings increased from approximately RMB10.2 million
as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB18.3 million as at
31 December 2022 because of the new bank and other borrowings
drawn by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022. As at
31 December 2022, bank borrowings denominated in HKS amounted
to approximately HK$11.4 million (31 December 2021: HKS$12.5
million) and were charged with interest rate of 1-month HIBOR plus
1.3% per annum (31 December 2021: 1-month HIBOR plus 1.3% per
annum), while bank and other borrowings denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB8.1 million (31 December 2021: Nil)
and were charged with effective rates ranging from 4.5% to 11.34%
(31 December 2021: Nil). As at 31 December 2022, the Group’ s bank
and other borrowing charged with fixed interest rates amounted to
approximately RMB8.1 million (31 December 2021: Nil).

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for interest rate hedging
purpose.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB149.1 million (31 December
2021: RMB123.7 million). As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, respectively, the Group s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in HKS, RMB and United States Dollars (“USS).

The Group maintained a sound financial position. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’ s net current assets amounted to approximately
RMB200.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB60.3 million). As at 31
December 2022, the Group’ s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was approximately 1.8 (31 December 2021: 1.3).

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total interest-bearing
borrowings divided by the total equity. As at 31 December 2022, the
gearing ratio was 5.5% (31 December 2021: 6.3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments (31 December 2021: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank and other borrowings of
RMB10,161,000 (2021: RMB10,231,000) was secured by the pledge of
certain properties (note 16) with a carrying amount of RMB28,157,000
(2021: RMB26,772,000) and guaranteed by the Company.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies to ensure the liquidity requirements from
daily operation as well as capital expenditures are met. The Board
closely monitors the Group s liquidity positions, while surplus cash
will be invested appropriately with the consideration of the credit
risks, liquidity risks and market risks of the financial instruments.

Foreign exchange risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. The Group generates RMB from sales in the PRC to
meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. Other than certain bank
balances including the net proceeds from the Global Offering and
bank borrowing, the Group's assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Group’ s assets and liabilities,
and transactions arising from its operations primarily are not exposed
it to material foreign exchange risk. The Group does not hedge its
exposure to the foreign currencies.

Interest rate risks

As at 31 December 2022, except for bank balances and bank and other
borrowings at variable interest rate, the Group do not have other
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The interest rates of
bank balances and bank and other borrowing are not expected to
change significantly, and the relevant interest rate risk is considered
immaterial.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

The Group had no significant investment during the year ended 31
December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2022.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 22 March 2022 (the “Prospectus’), the Group did not
have other future plans for material investments and capital assets.

OUTLOOK

The Company is committed to surpassing traditional property
management and providing customers with innovative lifestyles.
We not only build living space, but also create an art of life, and
advocate the concept of healthy living, and provide comprehensive
and high-quality services based on the “Lifestyle + healthcare” dual
butler service system, aiming at creating a harmonious, healthy and
sustainable community ecology and enabling customers to enjoy a
better life.

In 2023, Redco Healthy Living will rely on its core competitiveness to
consolidate its market position in economically developed regions.
We will combine the technology development trend, expand the
project portfolio and enrich the service content through organic
growth, strategic mergers and acquisitions and cooperation with
third-parties.

We will continue to optimize the “Lifestyle + healthcare” service
to improve brand value and customer experience, upgrade our IT
platform with the assistance of smart technology to improve service
efficiency and quality and create personalized service experience. In
addition, we will invest in green technology to promote sustainable
development and contribute to building a green and healthy living
environment.
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DIRECTORS

Non-executive Director

e o

Mr. Huang Ruogqing (E& & )(“Mr. Huang’), aged 55, was appointed
as a director of the Company (the “Director(s)’) on 10 February 2021
and was re-designated as a non-executive Director and appointed
as the chairman of the board of Directors (the “Board”) on 1 June
2021, where he is primarily responsible for providing guidance and
formulation of strategies for the overall development of the Group.
Mr. Huang is also one of the controlling shareholders of the Company.
Mr. Huang is the father of Ms. Huang Yangi, an executive Director. He

is also the uncle of Ms. Wong Yin Man, an executive Director.

Mr. Huang has over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, from August 1990 to May 1994,
Mr. Huang worked as an architecture designer, assistant architect
and project manager successively in Quanzhou Construction Design
Institute (RINTEEEERETBT), an institution primarily engaged in building
design, where he was primarily responsible for building design,
geological survey and prospecting. Mr. Huang joined Redco Group in
May 1994 and has been an executive director and president of Redco
Properties since January 2014. Mr. Huang is also currently a director
of certain subsidiaries of Redco Properties.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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Mr. Huang was appointed as a visiting professor at Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (ZIFERMAEAZE) from November 2015 to
November 2018 and a visiting professor at School of Architecture &
Urban Planning, Shenzhen University (GRYIK SR E I HREI M) in
the PRC in September 2020.

Mr. Huang has received multiple awards in recognition of his
experience in the real estate industry. He was named as one of the
“CIHAF new leaders of the China' s real estate industry” (CIHAF #[E
EiEHEEAY) by China International Real Estate & Architectural
Technology Fair (BRI E#ESEERITEES) in 2015, the “2015
Boao fashion icon of the China’ s real estate industry” (12520155
HMERBAY) by Organizing Committee of 2015 Bo' ao Real. Estate
Forum (IBZEEMERIBAEZE) in August 2015, the “2019 China Top
10 CEOs of the listed real estate companies” (2019 FEEME EH AT
+ A%k CEO) by China Index Academy (R EIFEFAZTPT) in May 2019
and the “2020 China Influential Figure in Real Estate Industry of the
Year’” (2020 FEIFEFEIMEAY)) by the Guandian Index Academy
(BREAIEENFAZERR) in August 2020.

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor s degree in architecture from Huagiao
University (¥45A2) in the PRC in July 1990.

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chengyong (FE&EB) (“Mr. Tang’), aged 60, was appointed
as a Director on 10 February 2021 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 June 2021. Mr. Tang joined the Group as the
president of UG Property Management Co., Ltd (“UG Management’)
in April 2008 and is primarily responsible for supervising the overall
management and operations of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Tang has over 28 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. From 1993 to 2001, Mr. Tang worked for Jiangsu
Province Supply and Marketing Cooperative (Group) Company (7T
BRIt (52 ®) 422 8]), a company primarily engaged in property
development, with his last position as the deputy general manager
and the deputy head of the department of economic development,
where he was primarily responsible for real estate projects. In August
2001 Mr. Tang joined the Redco Group as a general manager of
Yantai Redco Development Co., Ltd. ((BE&HSEBEEARAT), a real
estate development company indirectly owned by Redco Properties,
where he was primarily responsible for the daily operations of the
company. From May 2006 to February 2012, Mr. Tang was successively
appointed as the general manager of Jiangxi Man Wo Property
Development Co., Ltd. CIFEEMEMEMEZEBRAF), Jiangxi Redco
Property Development Co., Ltd. CIFEIBEMEREARAE), Redco
Development (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. (1= &% (7I178) BE A& ), Shandong
Redco Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (WIS EMERZEERELR
B]) and the vice president of Redco (China) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/155
() #EBRAT), where he was primarily responsible for the daily
operations of the companies and overseeing real estate projects.
Since October 2013, Mr. Tang has been serving as a director of Redco
Properties and was re-designated as an executive director in January
2014.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor s degree in engineering from Shenyang
Institute of Architectural Engineering (CEZRETIZZEM) in the PRC
in July 1986.

Ms. Wong Yin Man (E#&SE) (“Ms. Wong”), aged 32, was appointed
as a Director on 10 February 2021 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 June 2021. She is primarily responsible for the
operational management and development of the Group. Ms. Wong
joined the Group as an assistant to the president of UG Management
in September 2015. Ms. Wong is the niece of Mr. Huang, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor s degree in urban planning from
Peking University (36 A2) in the PRC in July 2015.
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Ms. Huang Yanqi (E#&H) (“Ms. Huang’), aged 28, was appointed as
a Director on 10 February 2021 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 1 June 2021. She is primarily responsible for the brand
management and formulation and implementation of business
strategies of the Group. Ms. Huang joined the Group as an assistant
to the president of Shenzhen Redco Kang an Health Management
Co., Ltd. (RYNNBELZRBEEEEIRAHR), a subsidiary of the Group
engaged in the provision of healthcare services, in May 2018. Ms.
Huang is the daughter of Mr. Huang, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board.

Ms. Huang obtained a bachelor s degree in environment and interior design
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in September
2018 and a master s degree in food design and innovation from Scuola
Politecnica di Design (KB L2£5251520%) in Italy in December 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yu Leung (2/#&) (“Mr. Lau’), aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2022 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group.

Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in corporate governance.
Mr. Lau found the Group of Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
(KEEFEIZERABIREAST) in 1993, and since October 2015, Mr. Lau
has been serving as an executive director and the chairman of the
board of Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited (k2 &% @R AR
‘AF]), a waterborne trade and freight service providers in the PRC
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1549), where he is primarily responsible for the overall
strategic planning, development, decision making on important
matters, important investment strategies and management of senior
executives.
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Mr. Lau also serves in a number of positions in various organizations
and associations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau serves as a
member of the 13th National Committee of the Chinese Peoplée s
Political Consultative Conference as well as the 9th, 10th and 11th
Fujian Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’ s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUEHE=Z) (“Fujian CPPCC’),
and a member of the Standing Committee of the 11th Fujian CPPCC.
In April 2008, Mr. Lau was appointed as the permanent honorary
president of The Fukienese Association Limited (BEB8EEBMTE
FRA8]). In August 2009, Mr. Lau was appointed as the permanent
honorary president of Hong Kong Quanzhou Clans United Association
(BEBRMNTEREMLEE). In March 2011, Mr. Lau was appointed as the
permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Quanzhou Associations
Limited (EB R MNBE M AR A F). In March 2013, Mr. Lau was
appointed as the vice-president of Association of Hong Kong
Quanzhou Charity Promotion Limited (EBRMEBESRELSERA
B]). In November 2013, Mr. Lau was appointed as the vice-chairman
of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited (B #EEELE
BEAERAT). In April 2014, Mr. Lau was appointed as the president
of Hong Kong CPPCC of Fujian Association Limited (fB2EB&HIHZE
B EGARRE).

Mr. Lau received a medal of honour (2&)%) from the Hong Kong
Government in July 2011. In 2016, Mr. Lau was awarded the title of
“Excellent builder of non-public economy of Fujian Province (f&#
BIERNBHIRBEEFERE) from the Peoplé s Government of Fujian
Province.

Mr. Sze Irons (5E81E) (“Mr. Sz€”), B.B.S., J.P., aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2022 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group.

Since March 1984, Mr. Sze has been serving as an executive director
of Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited, a private company in
Hong Kong principally engaged in property investment, import
and export trading, provision of management services and shares
investment, where he has been primarily responsible for the day-to-
day management of the business operations and the overall strategic
planning of the company.
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In addition, Mr. Sze currently holds directorships in the following  IE4h > MEEBRIN T EHATEMETE

listed companies: £
{
Principal Place of listing Period of
Name of company business and stock code Position service
YNSIEY FEER Eristh R R AR ALSR B BRF5 AR
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited  Leisure food Main Board of the Independent December
retailer Stock Exchange non-executive 2018 to present
(stock code: 2360) director
BEm360EZERBRAT HHERZTER B 22 PR 4R BIFRITES —N\F
(RARLSR & 2360) +ZRES
Chevalier International Property Main Board of the Independent November
Holdings Limited Developer Stock Exchange non-executive 2016 to present
in Hong Kong (stock code: 0025) director
HIBBRERBRRE BEBEYERER B 22 P 4R BIERITES AN \E
(B&fA1E5% © 0025) +—RBR=E
Continental Holdings Limited Jewellery retailer Main Board of the Independent October
Stock Exchange non-executive 2008 to present
(stock code: 0513) director
ENHEEERGRAT HKETER M2 P 4R BIUIENTES “EEN\EF
(B 1E5% & 0513) +AES
Forward Fashion (International) Retail of Main Board of the Independent July
Holdings Company Limited fashion apparel  Stock Exchange non-executive 2022 to present
(stock code: 2528) director
H 5 (BEFR) ERBIRAE R RETE BT P AR BIUIFNTES .=
(AR5 & 2528) tAES
Tongda Group Holdings Ltd. Electronic Main Board of the Independent May
Components Stock Exchange non-executive 2023 to present
(stock code: 0698) director
BEEEERERAS BFEH BT P AR BIIFRITES —EToF
(AR5 © 0698) hRES
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Mr. Sze was appointed as a non-executive director of two companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, including, (i) China Weaving Materials
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3778), a company principally engaged
in the manufacturing of yarn products, from May 2011 to June 2019;
and (ii) Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 761) since
February 2017. The trading in the shares of Bel Global Resources
Holdings Limited had been suspended since 4 July 2011 and the
listing of the shares was cancelled by the Stock Exchange with effect
from 24 August 2018.

Mr. Sze obtained his bachelor s degree in science from the University
of Wisconsin-La Crosse in the United States in May 1985. He is a
Standing Member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese
People s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC’) (2B % E#
%58) a Standing Committee Member, Convenor of Beijing Regional
Committee (Hong Kong Region) of The CPPCC (B A B B & #
FHERILAMEZETREKREZEREBEELE A) and a member of the
HKSAR Labour Advisory Board during the period from 2021 to 2022.
He is currently the permanent honorary president of the Chinese
Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong and has been a member
of the HKSAR Election Committee since 2006. Mr. Sze was appointed
as the Justices of the Peace and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star
(A # £ F) by the Government of the HKSAR in 2011 and 2015
respectively.

Mr. Chow Ming Sang (FBA%) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 51, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2022 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group.

Mr. Chow has over 27 years of experience in accounting, corporate
financial management and corporate governance. From January
2007 to September 2018, he served as an advisory partner of Ernst &
Young (China) Advisory Limited (Z7k (B ) (EZ£:EHBR AR ), where
he was primarily responsible for managing the risk advisory sub-
service lin€ s strategic growth and development in various regions
of the PRC. From September 2018 to June 2019, he served as the
general manager of risk & control department of Tahoe Group (&R
EERMAERAT), a property developer in the PRC, whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000732), where
he was primarily responsible for risk management of the company.
Since July 2019, Mr. Chow has been serving as a director and the
general manager of Beijing Xinshi Anye Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. (IEREELZEEELZHBNERALT), where he has been primarily
responsible for strategic planning and the overall management
consulting of the company.
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In addition, Mr. Chow currently holds the following directorships in 5 > B E BRI T LS ABHEEN

the following listed companies: TESR
{
Principal Place of listing and Period of
Name of company business stock code Position service
LR
YNSIEZY FEER B An SR B3 BRF5HAR
Teamway International Investment Main Board of the Independent June 2019 to
Group Holdings Limited holding Stock Exchange non-executive present
company (stock code: 1239) director
Teamway International KREER AT B2 PR EAR B IEHITES —NE
Group Holdings Limited (B sk & 1239) NAES
China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. Production Main Board of the Independent July 2021
and sale of Stock Exchange non-executive  to present
raw milk (stock code: 1117) director
PRI EEIERBIRAE FERHERY B A2 PR AR BUERTEE BT —F
(BARASE & 1117) TtAES
Muyuan Foods Co., Ltd. Production Shenzhen Independent December 2023
and sale of Stock Exchange director to present
pork (stock code: 002714)
WIR AR FEMEEREN FYEE I 5 P BUEE “E=F
(B 5% - 002714) +ZAES
China Maple Leaf Educational International Main Board of the Independent March 2024
Systems Limited school operator  Stock Exchange non-executive  to present
(stock code: 1317) director
TREEARHSEERRAF EERRBER B2 PR MR BIIFRITES _7_EE
(RAAHSR & 1317) =R=E

Mr. Chow was appointed as an independent non-executive director

of China Rundong Auto Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1365) from December 2020 to August 2022.

From 2014 to 2016, Mr. Chow was the Committee Member of The
Internal Controls General Standards Committee of The Ministry of
Finance (PRC) (FREIRAEIES B EERIIREZEEZEE). He is currently
serving as a supervisor of Shenzhen Youth Development Foundation

(RNBBELFEHRES).
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Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor' s degree in accounting from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (&8 Rl K &)
in Hong Kong in November 1995. He has been a Certified Internal
Auditor (5} /9 28 28 5t ) since November 2003 and received the
Certification of Fund Practice Qualification (E&£EEKREZE) from
the Asset Management Association of China (PEEHEEESER
&) in April 2019. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HB&5tEIAE) and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (455F AR EHEIA S ).

Senior Management

Yang Zhengiu (#54#&EK), aged 46, joined the Group in November 2021
as general manager of the property management department. He
was appointed as a vice president of the Group in June 2022 and is
responsible for the daily management of the property business.

Mr. Yang has been deeply involved in the property industry for 25
years and was the senior director of the operation and management
center of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited, a property
management company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
01778) and a subsidiary of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited
(stock code: 01777), from 2014 to 2020. Mr. Yang is mainly responsible
for the daily operation and management of the property management
business of the Company s projects under management.

Mr. Yang was awarded “Top 100 Property Managers in China 2018”
(2018 FHEYEALEE A 10058) by China Index Academy in 2018.

Mr. Yang obtained a Master of Business Administration degree in
September 2023 from Golden State College in the United States.
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Ms. Lin Mei (# #8) (“Ms. Lin”), aged 53, joined the Group as the
general manager of UG Management in April 2008 and was appointed
as the deputy general manager of the property management
department of the Group in April 2021. She is primarily responsible for
daily operation management of the property management business.

Ms. Lin has over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry in
the PRC. From March 1995 to August 2002, she served as a project
manager in Xiamen Lianfa Group Property Management Co., Ltd. (&
PIREE (@) MERFEBIRAF ), a property developer in the PRC and
a subsidiary of Xiamen C&D Inc. (EPFIEZERMDBIRAE] ), whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600153),
where she was primarily responsible for overseeing the property
management business of the company.

Ms. Lin was recognised as the March 8th Red-Banner Pacesetter (=/\
#1583 ) by the Women' s Federation of Zhifu District, Yantai City (/&
ETMZREEREAEE) in 2013 and 2016. She was also awarded the
title of “Outstanding Member of the Peoplée s Political Consultative
Conference” (1BFHIBZEE) by Yantai Zhifu District Committee (I
BEEHTZRE®ZET) in January 2019 and received the “Love
Dedication Award” (Z/0.ZEE EE) released by Federation of Industry
and Commerce of Zhifu District of Yantai City (E&HmZREIH*
BtEaE) in June 2020. In 2021, Ms. Lin was elected as a member of
The 19th Committee of Chinese National People’ s Congress of Zhifu
District, Yantai City (E&mZREHF+NLEARKETAGRER).

Ms. Lin obtained her bachelor s degree in economics and management
from Xiamen University (EF9AZ) in the PRC in December 2000 and
completed the “Senior Economic Management for President Leadership
Workshop” in Tsinghua University ((B#EAE2) in the PRC in April 2010.
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Mr. Xiang Guoxiang (ME#) (“Mr. Xiang”), aged 40, joined the Group
as the general manager of the information technology department
of UG Management in July 2016 and was appointed as the general
manager of the IT department of the Group in April 2021. He is
primarily responsible for overall operation management of the
information technology services.

From August 2006 to May 2011, Mr. Xiang served as a project manager
of Shenzhen Etomorrow Technology Development Co., Ltd. (% 3
MW ARXRIERERARAF), a company engaged in the sales and
development of software, where he was primarily responsible for
software project management. From June 2012 to December 2015, he
served as the process IT deputy director of Coastal Realty Investment
(China) Limited (yH/B8MIERE (FE) BFRAF), a subsidiary of Coastal
Greenland Limited (R B%BREBIRAT), a property developer
in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1124), where he was primarily responsible for
building the information system.

Mr. Xiang obtained his bachelor s degree in food science and
engineering from Hubei Minzu University (dEREAZ) (formerly
known as Hubei Institute for Nationalities (1t REE2FT)) in the PRC
in June 2006 and his master s degree in business administration from
Sun Yat-sen University (FALUIARE?) in the PRC in June 2020. Mr. Xiang
successfully completed the Training Certificate Program in Project
Management Body of Knowledge with Shenzhen Talent Collection
Consulting Co., Ltd. in September 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 February
2021 as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws
of the Cayman Islands. The Company s ordinary shares with nominal
value of HKS0.1 each (the “Shares’) were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group primarily provides diversified services through three
business lines, namely, property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners and community value-
added services. The activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 98 and 99 of this
annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
Nil).

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal.

The declaration and payment of dividend is subject to the results
of operations, working capital and cash position, future business
and earnings, capital requirement, among other things, and will be
at the sole discretion of the Board, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders (if applicable).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’ s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on page 268 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group. Such factors are not exhaustive and
therefore other risks and uncertainties may also exist.

. changes in China s economic conditions in general and the real
estate market and property management industry in particular;

. changes in disposable personal income in the PRC;
. changes in government policies and regulations;

. changes in the supply of and demand for property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners and
community value-added services;

. the ability to generate sufficient liquidity internally and obtain
external financing;

. the ability to select and work with suitable and reliable
subcontractors and suppliers;

. the ability to adapt to new markets where the Group has no
prior experience and in particular, whether the Group can adapt
to the administrative, regulatory, cultural and tax environments
in such markets;

. the ability to leverage our brand name and to compete
successfully in new markets, particularly against the incumbent
players in such markets who might have more resources and
experience than the Group; and

. the ability to improve administrative, technical, operational and
financial infrastructure.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group primarily provides property management services and
green living solutions in China and is subject to laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations in its business operation. Details of such are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to be published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
redcohealthy.com) pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules’).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2022
and issued 50,000,000 new Shares at HKS4.1 each under the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus).

After deducting the underwriting fees and commissions, the net
proceeds received by the Company from the Global Offering (as
defined in the Prospectus) amounted to approximately HK$155.6
million (the “Net Proceeds’). The Company intends to utilize the Net
Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As of 31 December
2022, an analysis of the utilisation of the Net Proceeds is as follows:
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Approximate
percentage Utilised Net ~ Unutilised Net Expected
of total Net Proceedsasof ~ Proceeds as of time of full
Proceeds  NetProceeds 31December 2022 31 December 2022 utilisation
HECZCC S
iy +ZB=+-A  +IB=t+-A
Proposed use of the Net Proceeds as set out in the Prospectus FEAYN SEIE HREA 48R
RRERMENFERETERERR RaEM FEEE FiERaRE e il
Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately
HKS (million) — HKS (million) HKS (million)
fEn(E8)  BYEn(ER)  B4ER(ER)
(1) To pursue selective strategic investment and (1) BREEUBBRERNE 55.0% 855 00 855
acquisition opportunities to further expand ke -5 RARER
the Group's business scale and broaden its MERRERBRERSES
service offerings, among which; Hhfsg:

0 acquire other property management WEZTNERETREN  385% 5.9 0 59 By 31 December 2024
companies with a focus on the AR TEIRE
management of residential projects +tZR=T—RH

10 acquire other property management WEEESTIEED:  165% B - 56 By 31 December 2024
companies with diversified portfolio of Y SN 12
properties under management +IR=+-BH

(2) Toupgrade information technology [2) HpEERHEERERER 15.0% 13 16 W7
infrastructure and promote smart community BEHEER Hhdf:
management, among which:

to upgrade the intelligent operation system AEBPMBEEERAN  30% 4.65 06 405 By 31 December 2024
to enhance operational efficiency RAAMANEENE ZBORE

+ZA=T-HA

to enhance smart community management BEAMOESHEEE 0% 140 07 133 By 31 December 2024
system, such as smart carpark A PImBEEEER ZBORE
management system, smart visitor A BRDEERAM tZR=+-H
management system and smart traffic REERELHRS
control system, to enhance customer WREAARNRAER
experience

to recruit and support additional personnel RRERFEIE 30% 4.65 03 43 By 31 December 2024
toimplement the technology upgrades BT FRORIAE ZBORE
mentioned above TZB=1-A#

(3) Toimprove the Group's services as the lifestyle  (3) RATEENEZERMRE 10.0% 156 05 151 By31 December 2024
butler to improve customers' experience NRAEFRERARE i
and satisfaction +IB=+-HH

(4) Toexpand the Group's community healthcare 4] BREEREARRERN 10.0% 156 31 125 By31 December 204
services as the healthcare butler HERERE ZE|mE

+ZA=1-HHl

(5) For general business purpose and working [5) -HEBBEREEES 10.0% 156 25 131 By31 December 2024
capital TETRE

+IA= B
Total gt 100.0% 1556 Al 1479

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED

36
NEREEERRAR



Note:

(1) During the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately HK$34.6
million were paid to the Nine Target Companies as the Refundable
Deposits (all as defined and detailed in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements). However, as the Refundable Deposits shall be
fully refundable to the Company upon the termination of the relevant
framework agreements, the relevant portion of the proceeds were
not considered as utilised by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The expected timeline for the unutilised Net Proceeds is based on
the Directors best estimation barring unforeseen circumstances, and
would be subject to change based on the future development of the
Group' s business and the market conditions.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP S STAKEHOLDERS
Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and
employees of the Group are instrumental to the success of the Group
and that their industry knowledge and understanding of the market
will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.

The Group provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees career progression. Through
different trainings, staff s professional knowledge in corporate
operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced. The
Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as
annual dinner, to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial working
environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provided health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are entitled
to medical insurance benefits.
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Relationships with the Group’ s other stakeholders

The Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in
the products to its customers in order to stay competitive.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its financial institutions
and/or customers.

During day-to-day operation and management, the Company
maintained constant communication with the suppliers and
subcontractors to understand their opinions and requirements and
responded actively in order to reinforce business partnerships.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’ s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 29.9% (2021: 33.4%) of the Group’s
total revenue and our single largest customer, being Redco Group
and its associates and joint ventures, accounted for 26.4% (2021:
32.4%) of the Group’ s total revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 4.8% (2021: 4.3%) of the Group s total
purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for 1.5% (2021:
1.0%) of the Group’ s total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, saved as disclosed in this annual
report, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had
any interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 102 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Group
under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, consisted of
retained earnings amounted to approximately RMB122.0 million (as
at 31 December 2021: RMB120.9 million).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Ruoging (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chengyong (President)
Ms. Wong Yin Man
Ms. Huang Yangqi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Ming Sang
Mr. Sze Irons
Mr. Lau Yu Leung
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In accordance with article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
will hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. Any Director
appointed by the Board pursuant to article 83(3) shall not be taken
into account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation in accordance with article
84(2) of the Articles of Association.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “2022 AGM”) to be convened and held on Friday, 28
June 2024 will be set out in the circular to be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 22 to 32 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence with
reference to the factors set out under rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
from each of the independent non-executive Directors and the
Company confirms it considers such Directors to be independent
during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment, which may be terminated by not less than three
months notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association and the
applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” contained in this annual report, none of the Directors
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to related party transactions, no contract of significance
was entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2022 or subsisted at the end of
the year and up to the date of this annual report, and no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31 December
2022 or subsisted at the end of the year and up to the date of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed from the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 2,449 full-time employees as at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: 2,676). The total staff costs for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approximately RMB175.0 million (31 December
2021: RMB157.9 million). Employees  remuneration package
includes salary, performance bonus and other welfare subsidies. The
remuneration of employees is determined in accordance with the
Group s remuneration and welfare policies, the employees positions,
performance, company profitability, industry level and market
environment.

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Directors on the structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management, having regard
to the Group s operating results, individual performance of the
directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

The Company has put in place a Directors and senior management s
remuneration policy to determine the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management. The objective of remunerating
the Directors and senior management is to ensure that there is an
appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’ s business and
development.
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The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement
in the Group' s affairs, the performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. Remuneration comprise basic salaries, allowances,
benefits in kind, performance related bonuses and contributions to a
pension scheme.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 12 and
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness
in recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements
on gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. The indicators on
employees of the Group, including senior management, as of 31
December 2022 are set out below:
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RZ2EAEBEBNREE  FERETN
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B A&EENEERER(BESKEERE)
T -

{

As of 31 December 2022
BE"_T__F+_A=+—H
Percentage of
Number of total number
persons of employees
HEE
Indicator 1518 A HEERESLE
Male employees BEMEES 1,368 56%
Female employees pegid == 1,072 44%
Employees below 30 30EUATHEE 406 17%
Employees aged from 30 to 50 30 ESOEMEE 1,096 45%
Employees aged above 50 50U EBER 938 38%
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The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace and is
committed to increase the proportion of female employees at all
levels. As at 31 December 2022, we maintain a 56:44 ratio of male to
female in the workforce. Therefore, the Board considers that gender
diversity in respect of the workforce (including senior management)
has been achieved. To continue achieving diversity across the
workplace, the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment
and selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates are
considered. The Group has also established talent management
and training programs to provide career development guidance and
promotion opportunities to develop a broad and diverse pool of
skilled and experienced employees.

PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.

The Group only operate defined contribution pension plans in the
PRC. In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organized by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees salaries. Other than the monthly contributions, the Group
has no further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employee.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contribution available to reduce its contribution to the pension
schemes in future years.

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

FEESBEITESRVERZTE’ I
NIORREESERLMEEBLL - K ZF
TTHE+ZRA=+—8’ RMEIFESAHR
MR 5644 B LEER - Filt° EF R
7 BRIIESMR Lt (BEE R
BEE) BEEMN - SEEEMTIFER
it ZEBEEEEEEEBRENR
B UE B ZTTIERREAN o ZEETF
BIATEERENFSE  REBEER
BREREAKE > UEREZRZ TN
RIS EN RSN ©

BAREKRIESEFFE

FEBESNMAEEBREERILZBHIM
ATEEsE (MEREEE ) - BEEETE
THiRIESRFIME AR T St BURGIF REI LR
BEBEERER  c BB ZEE
HAEEZEENRFE > LHBIIRE
ANEE - RigRT 8 2R BER
HEBRBRMBAE s EIFHZERTE
EZIERFAEZHR - AEBEFBRE
StEZ—SEARERET S BIFHR
EMHRR

MEERmRPHRZBRE S8 EER
BRIREN B HRIE LBt EERIE
ELERBEAETZMHR -

AEBERPEABETEETBRARSS
2 o IRFPEAERRA AR AEEE
PEEERS M EA R E kB AT HER
ML IEERETEARBFEE * #RIL &
EERHTEEEESAREEFHENG
DtEZE MR o BRERAHRIN &
EREAMEES A ERKKEMENRE
B EE -

BE_E-__F+-B=+—8HItFE"
A EE [ B SR U TR BT B R R 2R
B2 BRE s BIHR o

AT RN EEREF 5 BIHFBH AR
B BIRRMEE 2T



CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, since the date of the 2022
interim report, there was no change to information which is required
to be disclosed and has been disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”) which were recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in force during the year ended
31 December 2022 (i.e. the new Appendix C3 with effect from 31
December 2023) (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Interestin Shares and underlying Shares
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(i) RO RAERRD B

Approximate

Percentage of Long Position/

Capacity/ Number of Shares/ Shareholding Short Position/

Name of Director Nature of Interest Underlying Shares in the Company Lending Pool

LA E) e e/ xe/

EEHH B/ HmtE i3l P = S €= BN ESE HEHARG

Mr. Huang Ruoqing  Interest in controlled 150,000,000 5% Long position
(“Mr. Huang") corporation

BEBRRE R EEED 150,000,000 75% 5]

(TEEBERE)
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

Top Glory International Holdings Limited (“TGI") is wholly-owned
by Redco Properties Holdings Limited (“Redco Holdings”), which
in turn is wholly-owned by Redco Properties. Redco Properties
is owned as to approximately 3.16% by Times Properties
Holdings Limited (“Times Properties’), which in turn are directly
wholly-owned by Mr. Huang. Redco Properties is owned as to
approximately 26.66% by the Times International Development
Company Limited (“Times International’), which in turn is wholly-
owned by Honour Family Holdings Limited (“Honour Family”).
Honour Family is wholly-owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited
(“UBS Trustees’) as trustee of the Honour Family Trust. Mr. Huang
is the settlor of Honour Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust
for the benefit of Mr. Huang and his family members. Mr. Wong
Yeuk Hung (“Mr. Wong”) is the brother of Mr. Huang and both
Mr. Wong and Mr. Huang have agreed to act in concert with each
other. By virtue of the SFO, each of Times International, Honour
Family, UBS Trustees, Redco Holdings, Redco Properties, Times
Properties and Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the Shares
in which TGl is interested.

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the
Company s total number of issued shares as at 31 December 2022
(i.e. 200,000,000 Shares).
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE S INTERESTS AND SHORT BEEREETHRABREATIHEAENK
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF EERIRED ~ EEARG REEEDER
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued) MR B A ()
(i) Interestin associated corporation of the Company (i) MNAERBEEEBRFNEDR
(

Approximate
Percentage of
Number Shareholding

Name of Associated of Shares in Associated

Name of Director Corporation Nature of Interest Interested  Corporation

{GHEEEE R

EENE AR RS EREEE FRisiRn&IB RIS E St

Mr. Huang® Redco Properties Interest in controlled 1,059,086,000 29.82%

corporation
BHEEREWY hEtE S EE R 1,059,086,000 29.82%
Note: =2

(1) 947,018,000 Shares are registered in the name of Times (1) 947,018,000 A& A& 19 75 LA B X B B
International while 112,068,000 Shares are registered in the name B2 &EEEC’ 112,068,000 f% A%
of Times Properties. Mr. Huang is the beneficial owner of the entire BIHUSREENZRERL - &5
issued share capital of Times International and Times Properties. BREAFRBEEKRSAEZE A
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the BETRANERER A © RI5HE
shares of Redco Properties in which Times International and Times FRERE > ZEEBRERRA
Properties are interested in. REEREEREREXEMES R

BB ERNRD T EAER
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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{
Approximate Long
Percentage of Position/
Shareholding Short
Number of in the Position/
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Company Lending Pool
REQBEK F8/ X8/
RREEHE 51/ #=mtE [ahE (=] BAEatt ALK
TGl Beneficial owner 150,000,000 75% Long position
TGl EalEEA 150,000,000 5% TE
Redco Holdings ™ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
HEERw REEEEG 150,000,000 5% A
Redco Properties ¥ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
HEtEY REEERER 150,000,000 5% B
Global Universe International Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
Holdings Limited
(“Global Universe”) @
BFERERERLAE REEERER 150,000,000 5% B
(MRF)W
Global Investment International Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
Company Limited
(“Global Investment”) @
BRFRERRARAHE REREEG 150,000,000 5% HA
(MRFIRE )Y
Mr. Wong @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
"BEED REEERER 150,000,000 5% B
Times International @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
R AR @ REEEER 150,000,000 5% B
Honour Family @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
Honour Family @ R LEER 150,000,000 5% HE
UBS Trustees ? Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
UBS Trustees® REEERER 150,000,000 5% WA
Times Properties @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
BREE? REEEER 150,000,000 5% B
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Approximate Long
Percentage of position/
Shareholding Short
Number of in the position/
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Company Lending pool
REATRR T8/ e/

REREE Ha B/ #EtE EVE (= BATFA  AIHEHNRG

Ms. Sze Kai Fei @ Interest of spouse 150,000,000 75% Long position

MRESFEZ L0 ok 150,000,000 5% TE

Ms. Fan Huili @ Interest of spouse 150,000,000 75% Long position

EERZ LW fofREsm 150,000,000 5% e

Notes: HreE -

(1) TGl is wholly-owned by Redco Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned (1) TGIHEHNSEZERZ2ERE > MAOSERKRH
by Redco Properties. Redco Properties is owned as to approximately NEMESERE - et EHRFRIR
39.76% by Global Universe and 0.33% by Global Investment, which in FRE (EHEafEEEE2ERB) D%
turn are directly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong. By virtue of the SFO, each B#939.76% 52 0.33% 15  RIFFH K
of Redco Holdings, Redco Properties, Global Universe and Mr. Wong is HERE > Ol -~ IeatE - RFR
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which TGl is interested. BAREEZBRAANTCIERE #ENRG,

A o

(2)  Times International is wholly-owned by Honour Family. Honour Family (2) BFAREFEHEHonour Family2&#H ©
is wholly-owned by UBS Trustees as trustee of the Honour Family Trust. Honour Family BB UBS Trustees (ff &
Mr. Huang is the settlor of Honour Family Trust. Times Properties is Honour Family(Sst IR AN) 2 &
wholly-owned by Mr. Huang. Mr. Wong is the brother of Mr. Huang and B BBEBREAHonour Familyfss
both Mr. Wong and Mr. Huang have agreed to act in concert with each WRIIZA - RRBEXEHEESKELE
other. Each of Times International, Honour Family, UBS Trustees, Times BE EBLEAEESLENRT &
Properties and Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in EERBESEEHERBRILE—T
which TGl is interested. &) o BF X B P2 ~ Honour Family ~ UBS

Trustees ~ FNEBEXREESFEEZBR
MARTCIHEBE HENRDIER R o

(3)  Ms. Sze Kai Fei is the spouse of Mr. Wong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Sze (3) MEFRTASSLENRS - REHESK
Kai Fei is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Wong is BRG] TEFEL LR AN SR E
interested. BRENRMOPHEE T o

(4)  Ms. Fan Huili is the spouse of Mr. Huang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Fan (4) EERNZtTASESILENSE o RiRE
Huili is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Mr. Huang. FRIAGRG > BEMLTRRANES

BRERENRG RS o
(5)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company s (5) FRESLIREAARRIZZ

total number of issued shares as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 200,000,000
Shares).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company s listed securities since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Wong, Mr. Huang and Redco Properties (the “Undertaking
Controlling Shareholders’) has unconditionally and irrevocably
undertaken to the Company in the deed of non-competition dated
14 March 2022 (“Deed of Non-Competition”) that he/it will not, and
will procure his/its close associates (save for members of the Group)
not to, directly or indirectly conduct or be involved in any business
(other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the business of the Company, being the provision
of property management services, value-added services to non-
property owners and value-added services to property owners and
residents (collectively referred to as the “Restricted Businesses’), or
hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete
directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group, except
where the Undertaking Controlling Shareholders and their close
associates hold (i) less than 30% of the total issued share capital of
any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or any
other stock exchange); or (ii) less than 50% of interest of any private
company, which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group
and they do not possess the right to control the board of directors
of such company. The above restrictions do not apply when the
Group engages in a new business that is not a Restricted Business
and at the time of commencement of such new business, any of the
Undertaking Controlling Shareholders had already been conducting
or been involved in, or otherwise been interested in, the relevant
business. For details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to
the Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the Undertaking
Controlling Shareholders confirming their compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition during the Reporting Period for disclosure in this
annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition during the Reporting
Period based on the information and confirmation provided by or
obtained from the Undertaking Controlling Shareholders, and were
satisfied that the Undertaking Controlling Shareholders have duly
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or their
respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group since the Listing Date, which are subject to
the reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1.

Property Management and Related Services

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into a property
management services framework agreement (the “Property
Management Services Framework Agreement’) with Redco
Properties, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
various property management and related services to Redco
Properties and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
including (i) preliminary planning and design consulting
services; (ii) sales offices and display units management
services; (iii) pre-deliver quality inspection and cleaning services;
(iv) property management services for unsold and vacant
properties of Redco Group; and (v) repairs and maintenance
services for properties used or owned by Redco Group, including
but not limited to properties delivered by Redco Group during
the warranty period of properties for a term commencing from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2023.

The annual caps for the service fees under the Property
Management Services Framework Agreement for each of the two
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 are RMB92.2 million
and RMB101.7 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount under the Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB78.1 million, which has not
exceeded the aforementioned annual cap.

Carpark Sales Agency Services

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into a carpark
sales agency services framework agreement (the “Carpark
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement’) with Redco
Properties, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
carpark sales agency services to Redco Group, including but
not limited to acting as sales and leasing agent for carparks of
Redco Group for a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31
December 2023.
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On 25 November 2022, the Company and Redco Properties
entered into the supplemental agreement to the Carpark Sales
Agency Services Framework Agreement (the “Supplemental
Carpark Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement’),
pursuant to which (i) the Group shall act as an exclusive sales
agent for Redco Group and pay to Redco Group refundable
deposits regarding the grant of the exclusive rights (the
“Carpark Refundable Deposits’); (ii) the existing annual cap
for the year ending 31 December 2023 under the Carpark Sales
Agency Services Framework Agreement shall be revised; and
(iii) the term of the Carpark Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement shall be extended for one year and ending on 31
December 2024. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 25 November 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated 14 December 2022.

The annual caps for the service fees in respect of the carpark
sales agency services to be provided by the Group under the
Carpark Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 and the year
ending 31 December 2024 are RMB12.4 million, RMB32 million,
RMB46 million, respectively.

The annual caps for the Carpark Refundable Deposits under the
Carpark Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 and the year
ending 31 December 2024 are RMB73 million, RMB74 million and
RMB74 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount for the service fees in respect
of the carpark sales agency services under the Carpark Sales
Agency Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately RMB9.9 million, while the
actual transaction amount for the Carpark Refundable Deposits
under the Carpark Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB73
million; both of which have not exceeded the aforementioned
annual caps.
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Healthcare Services

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into a healthcare
services framework agreement (the “Healthcare Services
Framework Agreement’) with Redco Properties, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to provide healthcare services to the
owners, occupants or residents of certain residential properties
developed by Redco Group, including but not limited to
healthcare consultancy, nutrition, health assessment and health
management services for a term commencing from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023.

The annual caps for the service fees under the Healthcare
Services Framework Agreement for each of the two years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023 are RMB22.8 million and RMB27.4
million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount for the service fees under the
Healthcare Services Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately RMB14.3 million, which
has not exceeded the aforementioned annual cap.

Information Technology Services

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into an information
technology framework agreement (the “Information
Technology Services Framework Agreement’) with Redco
Properties, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
information technology services to Redco Group, including but
not limited to the design and development of smart software
and hardware primarily applied in property development
for different projects developed by Redco Group for a term
commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2023.

The annual caps for the service fees under the Information
Technology Services Framework Agreement for each of the two
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 are RMB16 million and
RMB19.3 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount for the service fees under the
Information Technology Services Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB11.3
million, which has not exceeded the aforementioned annual
cap.
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Redco Properties is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore is a connected person of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
each of the above mentioned agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the respective terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has performed certain pre-determined
audit procedures regarding the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022
as set out above and states that:

(1) the transactions have been approved by the Board;

(2) the transactions were, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
the provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) the transactions were entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) the aggregate amounts of the transactions have not exceeded
the relevant caps.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting
Period, the Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with
the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to
the disclosure of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the
related party transactions set out in the note above do not fall within
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other donations
made by the Group amounted to RMB23,877.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company was not engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatening against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of his duties in his office; be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company; provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
for the year ended 31 December 2022, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2022 and remained in force
as at the date of this report for the benefit of the Directors.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As a result of the Incidents (as detailed in note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report), the Group
was unable to publish its annual results for the two years ended 31
December 2023 and interim results for the period ended 30 June
2023. The trading of the Company s shares have been suspended
since 29 March 2023. In view of, among others, the Incidents and
the delay in publication of the financial results of the Group, the
Stock Exchange has provided certain resumption guidance (the
“Resumption Guidance”) on the Group for the purpose of the
resumption of trading of the Company s shares, which included
(among others) conducting a forensic investigation and announcing
the investigation findings. On 31 January 2024, the Company
announced the findings of such investigation. Currently, the Company
is in the process of fulfilling other conditions under the Resumption
Guidance.

Details of the above matters are disclosed in the Company’ s
announcements dated 29 March 2023, 31 March 2023, 31 May 2023,
30 June 2023, 25 July 2023, 31 August 2023, 28 September 2023, 29
December 2023, 31 January 2024 and 28 March 2024.

Since 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
the downturn in the real estate industry in the PRC had impacted
the Group s collection of trade and other receivables leading to
substantial increase in impairments of trade and other receivables,
and also resulted in default and cross-default of borrowings for Redco
Properties Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company, which
in turn triggered the cross default clauses of certain of the Group's
bank and other borrowings as detailed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC’) was appointed was the Company s
auditor from the Listing Date. With effect from 30 June 2023, PwC
has tendered its resignation as the auditor of the Company. Yongtuo
Fuson CPA Limited (“Yongtuo Fuson’) was appointed as the new
auditor of the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2023 and
25 July 2023. Save as disclosed, there were no other changes in the
auditor of the Company since the Listing Date.

Yongtuo Fuson shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “2023
AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Yongtuo Fuson as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had,
together with the management and external auditor of the Company,
Yongtuo Fuson reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 61 to 87 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
25 June 2024 to Friday, 28 June 2024, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the eligibility of Shareholders to attend the 2022 AGM
and the 2023 AGM to be convened and held on Friday, 28 June 2024,
during which period no share transfers will be registered. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM and the 2023 AGM, all
completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company s Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,183
Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 24 June 2024.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Ruoqing
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 April 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules in force during the year ended 31 December
2022 (i.e. the new Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules with effect from
31 December 2023) (the “CG Code”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The Company has applied the principles of good
corporate governance and complied with all applicable code
provisions set out in Part 2 of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2022, save for the deviations set out below (with remedial
actions having been taken by the Group as at the date of this annual
report).

In 2023, in view of the Incidents and the Resumption Guidance,
the Company engaged a professional party (the “Internal Control
Consultant’) to conduct a review on its internal control system (the
“Internal Control Review’). As of the date of this report, the review
is still ongoing and the Company will publish the internal control
findings in due course after the review has been completed.

Code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code requires all the
Directors to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Internal
Control Review, it was noted that no training records for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were provided by certain Directors in
respect of their continuous professional development. The Board
agrees that compliance with the applicable requirement in the CG
Code is necessary, and to enhance the awareness and understanding
of the Directors and senior management with respect to Listing Rules
compliance, on 15 January 2024, the Company arranged for training
sessions covering Chapters 3, 13, 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and
the CG Code for the Directors and the Company Secretary.

EEERWS

+

EFEMAZINARABE_ZT
+=A E+— I FENEEERRS

EEERRER

AEERNMRBAENCLER > LR
R AR S R LR IR R EE R I o
AARERMREE S+ -8
=+ — B EEREE RN R
14BN _E_=F+_HA=+—HiE
3 TR BRI 8% C1) Fralag o2
BATH(CEEAT ) EAELS
W EEATE « BE-_B-—F+ 5
SH—HIEEE BTt EREE
Sh(RAAR SR BB 0 A B AR EUE R s
5@’m@ﬂ5ﬁ%§ﬁ¢¥g@mrmﬁ
§$¢¥EMTW%: v ¥eis Lolzigopc
FSPRIES

RTEC=F ERNZFEMHRERE
51 KRB EEEXAL((RBEEE
) HEHASERIG EETES (TR
EEZ)  BEARSEH BLNHEE
TH - RABRNBETHEBEREMHA
EIEHIBEEER o

EEEBTRIE - WOTRIFEXEC.1.4

FREEREFSARNEIELRUER
KB EBIN R B BE o I ERER TR

IZHEAR > K MR ES LR REMEHER
HE_Z__F#+_-_A=+—RHLFEHN
RESXEREEBIRF EFFREAR
BEFEEEARTNINERRT - B2
SEENeREEEMBE LTREHE
HENERLER S ARBARENE
—BT+HBAEERABMELTH T
HE AR RELMRAIEI 13145
VAAE R B EEAFE] ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
20225 ERE

61



=4

62

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

Code provision D.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Board should oversee the Group s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Group s risk management and internal control
systems has been conducted at least annually. During the Internal
Control Review, it was noted that the Company has not established
a written policy regarding risk management of the Group for the
purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the CG Code. It did not keep
a register of risks to ensure all the major risks faced by the Group
would be effectively identified and reported to the Board periodically.
As suggested by the Internal Control Consultant, the Company has
established a written risk management policy, maintained a register
of risks in relation to risks identification, assessment and reporting,
and introduced a requirement for a risks assessment report prepared
by the management team to be made available to the Board at least
annually. The Company s management team has also completed a
risk assessment on the Group and reported the findings to the Board
and the Audit Committee on 26 February 2024. The Company will
continue to review and monitor its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

As mentioned in the section headed “Report of Directors -
Subsequent Events” in this annual report, as a result of the
Incidents (as detailed under note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements), the Group was unable to publish its annual results for
the two years ended 31 December 2023 and interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2023. The trading of the Shares has been
suspended since 29 March 2023. Currently, the Company is in the
process of fulfilling the Resumption Guidance. Details of the above
matters are disclosed in the Company s announcements dated 29
March 2023, 31 March 2023, 31 May 2023, 30 June 2023, 25 July 2023,
31 August 2023, 28 September 2023, 29 December 2023, 31 January
2024 and 28 March 2024.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”’) and the Nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee’) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and have acted in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Ruoging (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chengyong (President)
Ms. Wong Yin Man
Ms. Huang Yangqi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Ming Sang
Mr. Sze Irons
Mr. Lau Yu Leung
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The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The term of appointment of non-executive Directors are set out under
the section headed “Report of Directors - Directors Service Contracts
and Letters of Appointment” of this annual report.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date this annual report, the
Board has met at all times the requirements under rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

Save as disclosed in the Directors biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management’ in this annual report,
none of the Directors and senior management have any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) with any other Directors, senior management, president
and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the
identity of the public companies or organisations and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments and any subsequent change to the Company in a
timely manner.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the objective and approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The
Group recognizes the benefits of having a diversified Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of the Group s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of the
Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education
background, gender, age and ethnicity. The Company will continue
to implement measures and steps to promote and enhance gender
diversity at all levels of the Group. The Company will select potential
Board candidates based on merit and his/her potential contribution
to the Board while taking into account the board diversity policy
and other factors. The Group will also take into consideration its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board comprises of seven members, including two female
Directors. The Directors have a balanced mix of experiences,
including property development, finance, auditing and accounting
experiences. They obtained degrees in various majors including but
without limitation to business administration, public administration,
economic and trading, corporate finance, language and social
science. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 28 years old to 71 years old. The Company has taken and will
continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the
Company, including but without limitation at the Board and senior
management levels. Taking into account the Group’ s business model
and specific needs as well as the presence of two female Directors out
of a total of seven Board members, the Company considers that the
composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity policy and that
the Company has achieved gender diversity at the Board level and
targets to maintain at least the current level of female representation.

The Company will ensure that there is gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have
a pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to
the Board in the future.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity
of the Board members. The Nomination Committee reviews the board
diversity policy and its implementation on an annual basis to ensure
its implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Nomination
Committee, has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy and confirm that the Board has an appropriate
mix of skills and experience to deliver the Company s strategy.

MECHANISMS TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND INPUT

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the board, including providing the Directors
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the
Company s expense, independent professional advice to perform its
responsibilities if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and
express their views to the Board and have separate and independent
access to the management of the Group in order to make informed
decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of
other Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director
will be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and
abstain from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the
relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the
Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided
to the Board during the Reporting Period.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company' s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors
with updates on the latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time
to time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated
and provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a Director.

Before the Listing, a training session was provided to each of the
Directors with topics of legal and regulatory duties of directors and
the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, all the independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Chow Ming Sang, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Lau Yu
Leung have complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and
participated in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. To enhance the awareness
and understanding of all the Directors and senior management
with respect to Listing Rules compliance, on 15 January 2024, the
Company arranged for training sessions covering Chapters 3, 13, 14
and 14A of the Listing Rules and the CG Code for the Directors and
the company secretary of the Company.
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Training received by Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022:

BE_Z__F+A=+t—HLFE"
EEPEZE

L
Types of
training (Note)
Directors 5% 1EEIERE (e
Mr. Huang Ruoging BEERE -
Mr. Tang Chengyong ERBRE -
Ms. Wong Yin Man mHRELL -
Ms. Huang Yangi B E -
Mr. Sze Irons FRERIR S E AB
Mr. Chow Ming Sang BBRE Y A B
Mr. Lau Yu Leung BB Y A B

Notes: Types of training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to,
briefings, seminars and conferences.

B:  Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines
and relevant publications.

Chairman and President

The Chairman of the Board and the president of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Huang and Mr. Tang
Chengyong, respectively, with clear distinction in responsibilities. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing strategic advice
and guidance on the business development of the Group, while the
president is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board Committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept
by the company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by
the Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on
which the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open
for inspection by Directors.
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The Company was listed on 31 March 2022. Since the Listing Date to
31 December 2022, three board meetings and two general meetings
were held and the attendance of each Director at these meetings is
set out in the table below:

AANBR_E__F=HA=+—HLEm-
BrthEARRE S —F+_/B=+—
B ARBHBETZRESTTEERMN
BREADG  SBEENZEGEZWLHEERBR
R TFE

L 4
Number of attendance/
number of meetings held
HEAYBITEERY
Board general
meeting(s) meeting(s)
Directors BE EZEgE RERAE
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Huang Ruoging BEERE 3/3 2/2
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang Chengyong BERBEE 3/3 2/2
Ms. Wong Yin Man mRELLT 3/3 2/2
Ms. Huang Yanqi BEREYL 3/3 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Chow Ming Sang [BRRERE 3/3 2/2
Mr. Sze Irons il me 3/3 2/2
Mr. Lau Yu Leung RlE 20 3/3 2/2

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the then applicable Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company in respect of their dealings in the
Company s securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors, which includes:
(a) to review and monitor the Company s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on matters;

(e) to review the Company s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company s compliance with the
Company s whistleblowing policy.
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Anti-Corruption and Whistle-blowing Policy

The Company maintains strict anti-corruption policies to recognize
and deal with bribery and corruption and to handle corporate
donation and sponsorship activities of the Group, which applies to
all employees and related third parties who deal with the Group.
The Group' s suppliers have also signed binding integrity agreements
to ensure that suppliers are not corrupt and to prevent bribery and
collusion. Also, the Company has a whistle-blowing policy and a
grievance mechanism in place through which employees at all levels
can report unlawful conduct or escalate any suspicious misconducts.
In accordance with the policy, the Company protects all whistle-
blowers from any kind of retaliation. All cases are treated with
strict confidence and submitted to designated personnel for further
investigation.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members and is chaired by
an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Chow Ming Sang, and
consists of another two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Sze
Irons and Mr. Lau Yu Leung.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1.  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any issues related to its
resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and to discuss with the
external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations before the audit commences; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing date to 31 December 2022, three meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to discuss and consider the following
matters:

reviewed final results of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2021 as well as the audit report
prepared by the auditor relating to accounting issues and major
findings in course of audit;

reviewed interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the six months ended 30 June 2022; and

reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company s accounting and financial reporting function),
risk management systems and processes.

Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table
below:
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Mr. Chow Ming Sang FEBREE S 4 3/3
Mr. Sze Irons Mg A E 3/3
Mr. Lau Yu Leung FmMEEYE 3/3
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members and is chaired
by a non-executive Director, Mr. Huang Ruoqing, and consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Lau Yu
Leung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company' s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors (in particular the chairperson and the chief executive
officer); and

5. to review the policy on board diversity policy and any
measurable objectives for implementing such board diversity
policy as may be adopted by the Board from time to time and to
review the progress on achieving the objectives.
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The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, no meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held. The meeting of the Nomination
Committee was not timely held during the year ended 31 December
2022 primarily because such meeting is typically held as part of the
annual report preparation workstream during which members of
the Nomination Committee would consider, among other matters,
the re-appointment of the Directors. However, as there was a delay
in the publication of the Group’ s annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022, such meeting was also delayed. The Board
agrees that compliance with the applicable requirements in the CG
Code are necessary. The Nomination Committee had held, and all
members including Mr. Huang Ruoging, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Lau
Yu Leung have attended, a meeting on 12 January 2024 to consider
matters in accordance with its terms of reference and the applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules including to review the structure,
size, composition of the Board with reference to the Board diversity
policy and nomination policy and to review the overall contribution
and service to the Company, expertise and professional qualifications
of the Directors.
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Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company s business.

The nomination policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

. Skills, experience and professional expertise - the candidate
should possess the skills, knowledge, experience, qualification
and professional expertise which are relevant to the operation
of the Group

. Diversity - The candidate should be considered with due regard
to the diversity perspectives set out in the Board diversity policy
of the Company

. Commitment - The candidate should be able to devote
sufficient time to attend the Board meetings and participate in
induction, training and other relevant activities

. Standing - the candidate must satisfy the Board and the
Stock Exchange that he/she has the character, experience and
integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard of competence
commensurate with the relevant position as a Director of the
Company

. Independence - the candidate to be nominate as an
independent non-executive Directors must satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members and is
chaired by an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lau Yu Leung,
and consists of one executive Director, Mr. Tang Chengyong, and one
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Sze Irons.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the FZE SN T EREARENTEIE !
following:

1.

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

MARBERESEREREERBF
PR R A B A R R aR L IE AR R B
BIERREF UGB RAEEE
RILEE

2. to review and approve the management s remuneration 2REEGNTRE KB RRE KittE
proposals with reference to the Board s goals and objectives; BIRERFNES

3. either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the UTmEBREdR—FE: () EES
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and TEENS > BETENTEERS
senior management; or (i) to make recommendations to the REEBEAENFMNES ; 3 (i) ME
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive MATEERSREEAENFMNGE
Directors and senior management. This should include benefits BRAESZRLES - LEAEES
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including HEHm s RASENREBESRE(E
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office R SR IE IS S B ERVEEE) ;
or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of MIFRITESFINREEGRRMER
non-executive directors; %

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time ZRFEBAATDLZANHRE ~ BANHD
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions By 1 B A B DA e A B B g EL At BB (12 B9
elsewhere in the Group; ERIRMG;

6. to review and approve the compensation payable to executive B RHERFITEERSREEA

Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment in order to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

ErHRAS A IERBNEEMASL
BVREME » IR FRZSEERSOR
M BEREESNFER—E B
BIRARRT > FHB% ;
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7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct in order
to ensure they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

8. to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

9. to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing date to 31 December 2022, no meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. The meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was not timely held during the year ended 31 December
2022 primarily because such meeting is typically held as part of
the annual report preparation workstream during which members
of the Remuneration Committee would consider, among other
matters, the re-appointment of the Directors. However, as there
was a delay in the publication of the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2022, such meeting was also delayed. The
Board agrees that compliance with the applicable requirements in
the CG Code are necessary. The Remuneration Committee had held,
and all members including Mr. Tang Chengyong, Mr. Sze Irons and
Mr. Lau Yu Leung have attended, a meeting on 12 January 2024 to
consider matters in accordance with its terms of reference and the
applicable requirements of the Listing Rules including to review the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company and to determine
and approve the remuneration packages of all Directors and members
of the senior management.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

7. BERMEEFERITRAKEMERRE
WERBERBEZHE > LIRS
ZHRSNIRR— ; EREHRESH
R —2  ARBETAGEREE ;

8. BRI /& EHRAIEFLEIR
TERRNEENER ; &

9. MEMEEFJHEIMMBASLEE
TEHANBIFH ©

HINZEGNERBELE S HN MR
KA A B o

BrthEfpREE S —F+ "B =+—
B HiNEZESXRBTERE REEZS
T TE+RA=+—HLEEE " HNEE
BUANRFRITEE > TEHARZSEE
EIEAFERSHEETEREN—IDT
BT FULHR BRRTETHERZE
(Hh i) EEBEEEEH AM’ A
RAREELERTSZHE"ZS - —F+8
—+—HIEFENFEESE > 29270
LB -EEgREANEBTREEAT
BNBEEHATE FMEESEN T
E—B+HET7gE 2RNEEEE
ABRE N MRBAERIHESILETE
HiE > IR EB#ESEER EmiRA >
BREEETREE  SERIAAEN
FENBUR 2R8> WEEMILEFMEES
KR EEEBNENFHINES o



Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the senior
management of the Company, whose biographies are set out on
pages 22 to 32 of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out below:
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{
Number of
individual
Remuneration band (in HK dollar) #HENEEE (B T) ANEX
NIL - HKS$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 87T 2
HKS$1,000,001 - HKS$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t 1,500,000 87t 1

The remuneration of each Director and the chief executive are set out
in note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument was paid by
the Group to any Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for
loss of office.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING IN
RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group’ s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were aware that certain material uncertainty existed as
detailed in note 2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, which
may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. For details, please refer to the section headed
“MODIFIED OPINION” in this annual report.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor' s Report on pages 95 to 97 of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company s risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group and to
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board supervised
the management s design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis; such review
covered all major control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.

The Group’ s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could
effectively manage the key factors that might affect the Group in
achieving its strategic objectives, such factors including events,
accidents or behaviors with a material impact on the Group's
reputation, assets, capital, profit or liquidity.
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The Company has established three layers structure for risk
management. In the risk governance structure, the first layer consists
of the business departments of project company and responsible
individuals, with the Group’ s business and functional centers serving
as the second layer and the internal audit team as the final layer.
The first layer bears risks and responsible for the direct responsibility
for risk management and it identifies, measures and controls the
risks in respective business fields and operating activities. The
second layer formulates rules and standards as business guidance
to subsidiaries/business units, and supervises their execution
to ensure that risk management takes place for the Group, with
continuous control of relevant work. The third layer is responsible for
monitoring, with an emphasis on providing independent monitoring
over the effectiveness of the Group’s risk solutions and measures by
combining the monitoring over the risk management and internal
control systems.

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the public
any insider information as soon as possible after such information
comes to the attention of the Group, unless such information is
within the scope under any safe harbours provision in the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Group will ensure such information will
be kept confidential before it is fully announced to the public. If the
Group considers that the confidentiality required cannot be kept,
or such information may have leaked already, such information
will be disclosed to the public immediately. We also endeavour to
ensure that the information contained in the announcement shall
not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects, and there are
no other material matters the omission of which would make the
information contained therein to be deceptive or misleading, such
that the insider information disclosed can be made available to the
public in an equal, timely and effective manner. In addition, if there is
any significant risk events, the related information will be disclosed to
appropriate authorities and personnel, so that appropriate decisions
and measures can be made and implemented by the Group to deal
with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop the risks
management culture of the enterprise, as well as to enhance the
risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already rolled out training
programs to enhance the risk awareness of our staff, so that we can
assure to maintain the balance between business expansion and risks
management in our operation.
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The Group’s internal audit team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The team mainly
monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal control
and compliance of the Company, and provides regular risk-oriented
internal audits for its branches and subsidiaries. The internal audits
cover project obtainment, procurement tendering, sales, financial
reporting and information security and so on. The internal audit
team reports to the Board once a year. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’'s risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee has received a report of risk management and internal
control prepared by the internal audit team, and has considered that
the risk management and internal control systems remain adequate
and effective throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 with no
material issues to be brought to the Board' s attention.

As disclosed in the section headed “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES” of this annual report, in accordance with the
recommendation of the Internal Control Consultant, the Company
has established a written risk management policy, maintained a
register of risks in relation to risks identification, assessment and
reporting, and introduced a requirement for a risks assessment report
prepared by the management team to be made available to the
Board at least annually. The Company s management team has also
completed a risk assessment on the Group and reported the findings
to the Board and the Audit Committee on 26 February 2024.

AUDITOR S REMUNERATION

The financial statements contained in this annual report have been
audited by Yongtuo Fuson. The remuneration paid to the external
auditor (or the then external auditor, as the case may be) of the
Company for audit services in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately RMB2,800,000. There were no non-
audit services provided in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yu Hin (“Mr. Chan”), the financial controller of the Group,
was appointed as the company secretary with effect from 6 May
2022. Mr. Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing the finance,
accounting and company secretarial matters of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Chan has undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’ s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meeting to answer
Shareholders questions. The Auditor will also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
the Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at www.
redcohealthy.com, where up-to-date information on the Company s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available
for public access.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders' communication
policy. The Company is of the view that the shareholders
communication policy of the Company has facilitated sufficient
shareholders communication and considered the policy is effective
and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles of Association,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an extraordinary general meeting following the
procedures set out below.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company according to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more member(s) holding as at date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or any one of the joint company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the
headquarters of the Company at 2nd Floor, Redco Building, Tower 5,
Qiaochengfang, Phase I, No. 4080 Qiaoxiang Road, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, PRC (email address: redcohealthy_ir@redco.cn).
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association on 14 March 2022, which has been effective
from the Listing Date. There was no change in the memorandum of
association of the Company and the Articles of Association since the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2022.

The latest version of the memorandum and the Articles of Association
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

MODIFIED OPINION

The Company s independent auditor has issued a modified opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, details of
which are set out in the independent auditor s report.

Basis of modified opinion

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB8,092,000 were cross-defaulted
resulting in the default events happened in respect of its related
parties, shareholders or ultimate beneficial owners of the Group in
accordance with the clauses in the respective loan agreements and
thus, the amount would be immediately due if requested by the
lenders. This matter, along with other matters set forth in note 2(a)
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board s View and Plans to Address the Modified Opinion

In relation to the modified opinion (the “Modified Opinion”) issued
by the auditor of the Company as detailed in note 2(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Directors agree with the view
of the Company s auditor and are aware of that there is a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group' s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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In view of the uncertainties relating to going concern and the current
economic environment, the Directors have given consideration to the
expected liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing for at least the next twelve months from 31
December 2022 in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern. The Directors
have been undertaking a number of measures and plans (the
“Measures’) to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
financial position of the Group, including:

(i)  The Group has been actively negotiating with the Group's
existing lenders and creditors on extending the deadline for the
repayment of principal and interest of certain overdue bank and
other borrowings. In addition, the Group has also been actively
negotiating with these lenders and creditors on the restructuring
and/or renewal of certain indebtedness of the Group;

(i)  The Group is continuously managing its debt structure and
looking for new and additional funding opportunities and the
Group is actively negotiating with existing and new lenders
and creditors to obtain new financing at a reasonable cost. In
addition, the Group is actively communicating with relevant
existing and new lenders and creditors so as to obtain additional
sources of financing as and when needed;

The Group will continue to implement measures to speed up the
collection of outstanding service income from its customers;

The Group will continue to maintain continuous communication
and to agree with major suppliers in arranging payments to
these vendors in accordance with the timeline of cash flow
projections prepared by the management; and

(v)  The Group will continue to take active measures to control
administrative costs and maintain containment of capital
expenditures.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
Measures, the Group will have sufficient funds to maintain its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months from 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 on a going concern basis.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

BN ETARERERRNITREERS
BINREIRIE > EENFAAEERTA
HBROMBERUFELSER  BEEA
EEE - _F#+_FB=+—HiEstx
RELVFZEBANBHEABEE MK
MEREARERR - EE XML IERE
MR st &) (T 16 ) BB RENE S B I K&K
SARERMFIRR 815 ¢

(i) #AEEEBRAEFEERAKREEARL
JERREIEE TR IRTT R H M AR
AR ETEETE o IL5h > NERE
TEHEZEEMAREEARTER
ETEHEE R WERRETRIR
e

(i) AEEEFESEHEHEBILSNR
MBRERINIRERE * NEETR A
A R ERAREENRET
Disia 5 IER ARG RIRE - It
S REEIEEEARRRIRA RNHE
MARBERABTEBEUNBERE
BERSMREBEE SRR ;

AEBREEREUER ° LAUINRUE]
REZFRBUEA

(iii)

FAEEREERATEHERRETE
BETRREFEN—BER ° LIRE
BEERENRESRERIFHRE
FRZEFEHLNR; &

(iv)

(v) FEBERESRBRIUER * 1ZH17
B A R BRI ©

EERAn TEIER ~EBEREBEESN
MESUEFHEES BT

TR =+—HEFRER+EERET
HEMNMBEE -EHIt > EFR%8° &
BECEERERNAEEBE_S_—F
“A=T—HLEFENGEUHREE

o

B |

+
i)



Notwithstanding the Measures, significant uncertainties exist as
to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group' s ability to generate
financing and operating cash flows in the near future.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
values of the Group’ s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company will implement the Measures in order to resolving its
liquidity problem. It endeavours to resolve the Modified Opinion issue
in the next financial year. However, as mentioned above, there are
still uncertainties as to whether the Group will be able to implement
the Measures successfully. If any of the Measures fail to implement,
the going concern issue will subsist and the timing of removing the
Modified Opinion may be delayed.

The Company will continue to take proactive measures so to resolve
its liquidity issue and will publish an appropriate announcement if
there is any material development in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions (as defined in the
Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Audit Committe€ s view

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and this annual report. In
particular, the Audit Committee has critically reviewed the Modified
Opinion and the Measures. The Audit Committee agreed with the
Board' s Position based on the reasons above. The Audit Committee
also requested the Board to implement the Measures to address
the uncertainties regarding going concern underlying the Modified
Opinion with a view to resolving the going concern issue as soon
as practicable. The Audit Committee had also discussed with the
Company s auditor regarding the financial position of the Group, the
Measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and considered the
auditor s rationale and understood its consideration in arriving at the
Modified Opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
B|IZBENERS

TO THE MEMBERS OF REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Redco
Healthy Living Company Limited (the “Company”’) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 267,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS’) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022, the Group’ s bank and other
borrowings amounting to approximately RMB8,092,000 were cross-
defaulted resulting in the default events happened in respect of
its related parties, shareholders or ultimate beneficial owners of
the Group in accordance with the clauses in the respective loan
agreements and thus, the amount would be immediately due if
requested by the lenders. This matter, along with other matters set
forth in note 2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. The
directors of the Company (the “Directors’) having considered the
measures and plans being taken by the Group, are of the opinion that
the Group would be able to continue as a going concern basis. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT

B EEmER S

L 4

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIR KA EE ST NAEIERRES SR

Impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements, at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade -

and other receivables, net of allowance amounting to
approximately RMB236,023,000.

Allowance for trade and other receivables is based on

management s estimate of the lifetime expected credit «

losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers repayment history and
financial position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgement.
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance
for expected credit loss (“ECL’) on trade and other
receivables included, among others, the followings:

Understanding, evaluating and testing the
management’ s key internal control and
assessment process of loss allowance for ECL on
trade and other receivables;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
assessment approach adopted by management,
including the appropriateness of customers
grouping, based on our understanding of the
Group’'s business and operations and the credit
risk characteristics of the relevant customers;
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L 4
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIR KA EE ST NAEIERRES SR

Impairment assessment of trade and other -

receivables (Continued)

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade

and other receivables as a key audit matter because -

the assessment of recoverability of trade and other
receivables and recognition of allowance are inherently
subjective and require significant management
judgement, which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.
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Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing analysis of receivables prepared by
management to supporting documents;

Assessing the historical default rate by
considering the payment profile of debtors and
tested the historical data used in the calculation
of the historical default rate, including settlement
records, on a sample basis, to supporting
documents; and

Challenging and assessing the reasonableness
of management s assessment on the forward-
looking factors based on our industry knowledge
and with reference to external data sources
including macro-economic data.
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L 4

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIR KA EE TN EIERRES SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2022, the Group carried
of approximately RMB24,232,000 goodwill which arose
from the Group's acquisitions of property management,
healthcare services and others businesses companies.

Goodwill is required to be assessed for impairment
at least annually. In performing the impairment
assessment, management compared the carrying
value of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the
goodwill is allocated with its recoverable amount based
on value-in-use (“VIU”) calculations to determine if
any impairment provision was required. The VIU was
determined by applying discounted cash flow model on
pre-tax cash flow projections. Management has engaged
an independent external valuer to assist them in the
VIU calculation. Management concluded that there is
no impairment in respect of the Group' s goodwill in
the current year based on the impairment assessment
performed.
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
goodwill included, among others, the followings:

. Understanding, evaluating and testing the
management's key internal control and
assessment process of impairment for goodwill of
the Group;

. Assessing management s identification of CGU,
allocations of assets and the methodologies
adopted by management with reference to
the requirements in the relevant accounting
standards;
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIR KA EE ST NAEIERRES SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill as
a key audit matter due to significance of the balance

to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

combined with the significant degree of estimations
made by the management of the Group associated with
the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill have been allocated to.
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Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer
engaged by management;

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies and the reasonableness
of discount rates used in determining the
recoverable amounts; and

Challenging the key assumptions and inputs
adopted in the cash flow projections based on
historical data, actual performance, industry data
as well as forward-looking data and assessed
whether there were indicators of management
bias in the selection of these assumptions and
inputs.
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OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 25 April
2022.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group' s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’ s internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
RV 2 LU

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor' s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor s report is Liao Yik Lam.

Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Liao Yik Lam

Practising Certificate Number P06630

Hong Kong, 24 April 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= A2
FREER
Forthe year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z
{
Notes 2022 2021
M EE == =B
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
Revenue & 6 437,113 354,327
Cost of services ARFS A2 (294,239) (238,558)
Gross profit EF 142,874 115,769
Other income, gains and losses, net HAgA ~ s K k518 558 7 3,135 3,954
Selling and marketing expenses THE RS HAX (2,620) (3,933)
General and administrative expenses —RRITERES (58,220) (54,759)
Impairment losses on financial assets, TREEREEE
net of reversal (30 Bx$5E) 8 (69,151) (3,487)
Operating profit T 16,018 57,544
Finance income MEUA 278 291
Finance costs R A A (1,314) (709)
Finance income and costs, net BB UM A R Bl 2% 28 9 (1,036) (418)
Share of results of investments DMEEREREARS
accounted for using the equity KREEERE
method, net 1,055 2,145
Profit before income tax BREF1STR AL EF 10 16,037 59,271
Income tax expense FrigtRM= 11 (6,084) (19,138)
Profit for the year FEAiGEF 9,953 40,133
Profit for the year attributable to: UTELERIEEREGT :
- Owners of the Company —RREHEBEAN 3,189 32,140
- Non-controlling interests — e 6,764 7,993
9,953 40,133
RMB RMB
Earnings per share sREH AKHE AEEE
- Basic and diluted (expressed —EARREE (USK
in RMB cents per share) ARBDFRT) 15 1.70 21.43

Q8  REDCOHEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEENmR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+—H=+—HIFFZ

L 4
Notes 2022 2021
hE B -
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AR¥FT ARETT
Profit for the year FERRF 9,953 40,133
Other comprehensive income FRHEHMEEE
for the year
Item that may be reclassified BEETIsEEH NIEE B
subsequently to profit or loss: MIEE :
- Currency translation differences —EIMEER 12,939 372
Total other comprehensive income FRHMEEIRELREE
for the year 12,939 372
Total comprehensive income FREEKELEEE
for the year 22,892 40,505
Total comprehensive income UTEAEGEENELEE !
attributable to:
- Owners of the Company —RREHEBEAN 16,128 32,512
- Non-controlling interests —IEER S 6,764 7,993
22,892 40,505
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR RR

As at 31 December 2022 J* —ZE _——#+_F=+—H

{ 4
Notes 2022 2021
hE —g_C =T —F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M2~ BB KRR E 16 55,198 56,158
Intangible assets B EE 17 42,148 48,388
Investments accounted for using R EARNEE
the equity method 18 3,903 3,408
Other receivables and prepayments HAhE UGB R TR - 20 16,113 —
Deferred income tax assets EEPRISIREE 19 23,767 6,938
141,129 114,892
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HEAMEWRIE
and prepayments FeFRRIE 20 244,066 150,797
Amounts due from related parties JPE Ut 8 Bt 75 =R I 35(b)(ii) 52,398 —
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEBY 21 149,106 123,652
445,570 274,449
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade payables BB ENIE 22 13,703 18,513
Accruals and other payables fEsT & R E I FRIE 22 78,772 54,895
Contract liabilities =)= 23 98,515 76,327
Amounts due to related parties [ R 5 =R IE 35(b)(ii) 1,557 33,695
Income tax liabilities FrisRaE 33,392 20,144
Bank and other borrowings R1T R EMERR 24 18,253 10,231
Lease liabilities HEAR 25 682 366
244,874 214,171
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 200,696 60,278
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT mEERTEAE
LIABILITIES 341,825 175,170

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMHRRER
As at 31 December 2022 j* —FE_— —F+_H=+—H
{ 4
Notes 2022 2021
Ff5E == =B
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Other payables HAMPETFRIE 22 - 2,155
Lease liabilities HEaRE 25 3,491 3,569
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFRSMAaE 19 5,705 7,212
9,196 12,936
NET ASSETS BEFE 332,629 162,234
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRKEE
Share capital [N 26 16,220 —
Reserves 5 284,564 129,827
300,784 129,827
Non-controlling interests JEERR IR 36(b) 31,845 32,407
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY REERiER 332,629 162,234

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 267 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
April 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Tang Chengyong, Director
BRE > BF ERECEBESR

FIBETBENGEMBRREHEST
HAEREEN S NENMA —+mHE T
B U TEEARES .

Wong Yin Man, Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HOEmEER

Forthe year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

{ 4
Attributable to owners of the Company
FAFRENE
Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory Other  Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve  reserves  eamings  Subtotal interests Total equity
ks RiteE  ERREE  iERE  SmRE  GEEA Nt EEREE  RRAE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMBO000  RMB'0OO  RMB 000  RMB 000
AEBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARETR AREFR ARETR
(note())  (mote(ii) (note(iil) (note(iv)
below) below) below) below)
(RFX (RFX (RTX (RTX
WEEG) W) MEGE) W)
Balance at 1 January 2021 K- -£-E-BHEE - - (11) 4418 576 89,924 94,907 25,189 120,09
Comprehensive income 2EbE
- Profit for the year ~EnEf - - - - - 3,140 32,140 7,993 40,133
Other comprehensive income Efh2EkE
- Currency translation differences -GEAEEE - - 3n - - - 3n - n
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAENELE - - 3N - - 32,140 32,512 7,993 40,505
Transactions with owners HREANRA
Chenge in ownership interests in subsidiaries  FEAERIEREENER THIELE
without change of control (see note 30) FraeRatEs (Rt 0) - - - - 2,408 - 2,408 365 2113
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ FFARERE - - - - - - - 45 45
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ~ Eff3EERERRE = - - - - - - (1,185) (1,185)
Transfer to (from) statutory reserve BRE () 1Tk - - - 1,169 - (1,169) - - -
Total transactions with owners, RERTEREIN
recognised directly in equity R \ 8 - - - 1,169 2,408 (1,169) 2,408 (175) 1,633
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-E+ZB=t-AMsE - - 361 5,581 2084 120895 129807 DA 162,234

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RaEnEEnR
Ff A= —ALEE

—

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZF — & ——

L 4
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KAFERRR \ERS
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory Other ~ Retained Non-controlling Total
captal ~ premium reserve reserve reseves  eanings  Subtotal  interests equity
e RiTRE  EREE  iTEE  EMEE  RERA i FERER  RRNE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000
AEBTR  ARETn  AREfR  AREfR  AREfR  AREfn  AREfR  AREfR  ARER
(note (i) (note (i)~ (note (i) (note(iv)
below) below) below) below)
(BT (BFX (BTX (BT
k() W) MR KEw)
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZEZZE-B-AMER - - 361 587 2,984 120,89 19877 32401 162,34
Comprehensive income 2EbE
- Profit for the year ~ A - - - - - 3,189 3,189 6,764 9,953
Other comprehensive income Efh2EkE
- Currency translation differences -EHBEER - - 12,939 - - - 12,939 - 12,939
Total comprehensive income for the year FREANGEE - - 12,939 - - 3189 16,128 6,764 2,89
Transactions with owners; HEEANRA
Capitalisation Issue (as defined innote 26(c))  EXGEA (RERM26(0) 12,165 (12,165) - - - - - - -
Issuance of New Shares (as defined TR (E2RME26)
in note 26(d)) 405 150,174 - - - - 154829 - 154,829
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ~ EffFEERERRE - - - - - - - (7.326) (1326)
Transfer to (from) statutory reserve BRZ (8) 1Tk - - - 2,05 - (2,055 - - -
Total transactions with owners, PEETEREIN
recognised directly in equity R\ RS 16,220 138,609 - 2,0% - (2,05) 154829 (7.326) 147503
Balance at 31 December 2022 RIFZZE+ZB=+-AkEH 16,220 138,609 13300 1642 2,984 122,009 300,784 31,845 332609
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022FEHRE

103



104

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mAEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE

FOE - A+ H=f—HIEE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

REDC

Share premium: Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve: The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations in accordance with the accounting policies of the
Company.

Statutory reserve: Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate 10% of their profit-
after-tax (after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of each relevant PRC
subsidiaries. The transfer to the statutory reserve must be made before
distribution of dividends to shareholders. The statutory reserve fund
can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the subsidiaries.

Other reserves: The other reserves mainly represent the effect of
changes in the Group' s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
without losing control and the consideration transferred for the
aforementioned transactions in the current and prior years.

O HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED

NERBREERRAR
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HORERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+—H=+—HIFFZ

{ 4
Notes 2022 2021
PifaE b a2 “ETF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETTT AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEg
Profit before income tax PRPr{SIRAT &R 16,037 59,271
Adjustments for: L TIIEE fFLERE
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  —#J%  BERRETE 5,485 4,530
- Amortisation of intangible assets —EREE#H 6,240 6,047
- Finance income =0 UN (278) (291)
- Finance costs —REMA 1,314 709
- Losses on deregistration of an associate and — A —ERE R K
disposal of a joint venture HE—ESErENEE 55 -
- Gains on disposals of subsidiaries —HERBAR NS - (415)
- Losses on disposals of property, plant —HEME  BERRESE
and equipment 539 8
- Share of results of investments accounted — DMERERIEARRK
for using the equity method, net RELETHE (1,055) (2,145)
- Impairment loss on financial assets, —SREEREHE
net of reversal (30B&#EME) 69,151 3,487
Operating profit before working capital changes: & E&ESEEFILZEF 97,488 71,201
- Trade and other receivables and prepayments  —B 5 KkEMEYIE
RIS FRIA (156,815) (41,842)
- Contract liabilities —-ala% 22,188 14,390
- Trade payables —BRENTIE (4,810) 8,723
- Accruals and other payables — St BERREMENRIE 21,464 8,305
Net cash (used in) generated from operations & (FTB) 8 IR < 348 (20,485) 60,777
Interest received B & 278 291
Income tax paid BEIFER (11,172) (26,036)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED REEE) (FR) RSRE 24
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (31,379) 35,032
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FaRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

{ 4
Notes 2022 2021
MiysE —g_C “TTF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EEE
Additions of property, plant and equipment HEME - BEKRSRE (2,635) (4,944)
Advances to related parties Bzl (216,881) (6,628)
Advances to non-controlling interests [EE[EI e - (1,600)
Repayment from related parties PElliyalf=g 142,765 18,107
Repayment from non-controlling interests REIFEREZNER - 18,353
Dividend income from investments RERGELERENREIRA
in joint ventures 505 612
Additions of intangible assets RERVEE - (4,348)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENZE ~ BERZERSTIE
plant and equipment - 39
Net cash outflow in respect of disposal HERBARRNIRERHEEE
of subsidiaries (note 31) (BfEE31) - (27)
Cash payment relating to step acquisition BRDTUERBARNREMR
of subsidiaries (note 22(b)) (FE22(b)) — (16,218)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES &RE7EE) (FTR) FrisiR < $58 (76,246) 3,346
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RHE T E
Proceeds from issuance of new shares, HMRIp TS RUE
net of issuance costs (INBREATRIE) 154,829 —
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings T RHEMERAERIE 9,045 -
Proceeds from capital injection REBIFERERNIEMENE
from non-controlling interests — 45
Advances from related parties 2R B R 7 BN 1,730 17,836
Repayment to related parties BEBBANRIE (36,938) (60,423)
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BRERITREMER (1,923) (4,550)
Principal elements of lease payments RENTAS D (91) (91)
Interest paid BERFE (447) (271)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BIFERERS HRE (7,326) (1,185)
Listing expenses paid B EWX — (3,774)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) REEEMEL (TR Re 38
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 118,879 (52,413)
NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRRTEEMLMCRLD) B8
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,254 (14,035)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRERFEFEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 123,652 137,339
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMNESE L FE 14,200 348
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRBERFLEEY
THE YEAR, represented by IRERREEEY
cash and cash equivalents 149,106 123,652

106  REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+—H=+—HIFFZ

GENERAL

Redco Healthy Living Company Limited (the “Company’) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 February 2021 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) since 31 March 2022. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Pursuant
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation for
the listing of the Company s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board”)
which completed on 2 June 2021, the Company became
the holding company of the other companies comprising
the group. The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group’) are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services to non-property
owners, community value-added services, development
and maintenance services with respect to the information
technology (“IT”) systems, healthcare management services and
property agency services in the People’ s Republic of China (the
“PRC).

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Redco
Properties Group Limited (“Redco Properties” or the
“Controlling Party’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Redco
Properties Group’) whose shares are also listed on the Main
Board. The Company s immediate holding company is Top Glory
International Holdings Ltd. (“TGI" a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability) which is
wholly-owned by Redco Properties. The ultimate controlling
shareholders of the Group are Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung and Mr.
Huang Ruoging (the “Controlling Shareholders”), who are
parties acting in concert and have been collectively controlling
the Group.

1.

—RER
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BB RBARNEEBHEXSF
BRABDER(TER) LR ZF
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NE)(HETAER) T2ETEAR
HANE (TR E) IR E EERT
IFETERY  HEEERE B
AR (NT)) BRI 3 R AMEERRTS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

GENERAL (CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is different from the Company' s
functional currency of Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”).

The English names of all the companies established in the PRC
presented in these consolidated financial statements represent
the best efforts made by the directors of the Company (the
“Directors’) for the translation of the Chinese names of these
companies to English names as they do not have official English
names.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(@) Going concern assessment

The Directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had a net operating cash outflow of approximately
RMB31,379,000 (2021: a net operating cash inflow of
approximately RMB35,032,000).

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Going concern assessment (Continued)

In addition, as described in note 24, as at 31 December
2022, the Group’s bank and other borrowings loan
amounting to approximately RMB8,092,000 was cross-
defaulted resulting from default events being triggered
in respect of its related parties, shareholders or ultimate
beneficial owners of the Group in accordance with the
clauses in the respective loan agreements and thus, the
amount would be immediately due if requested by the
lenders.

Moreover, the economic environment in the real estate
sector in the PRC may have unfavorable impact on the
working capital available to the Group and the Group
may take longer time than expected to realise cash from
the provision of service to customers and/or have the
cash from external financing to meet its loan repayment
obligations.

The conditions described above indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern and
hence, its ability to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Goingconcern assessment (Continued)

In view of aforementioned, the directors have given careful
consideration to the expected liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of financing for at
least the next twelve months from 31 December 2022 in
assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
sources to continue as a going concern. The following
measures and plans have been formulated to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of
the Group:

(i)  The Group has been actively negotiating with the
Group’ s existing lenders and creditors on extending
the deadline for the repayment of principal
and interest of certain overdue bank and other
borrowings. In addition, the Group has also been
actively negotiating with these lenders and creditors
on the restructuring and/or renewal of certain
indebtedness of the Group;

(i) The Group is continuously managing its debt
structure and looking for new and additional funding
opportunities and the Group is actively negotiating
with existing and new lenders and creditors to obtain
new financing at a reasonable cost. In addition,
the Group is actively communicating with relevant
existing and new lenders and creditors so as to obtain
additional sources of financing as and when needed;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Going concern assessment (Continued)

(iii) The Group will continue to implement measures to
speed up the collection of outstanding service income
from its customers;

(iv) The Group will continue to maintain continuous
communication and to agree with major suppliers in
arranging payments to these vendors in accordance
with the timeline of cash flow projections prepared by
the management; and

(v) The Group will continue to take active measures
to control administrative costs and maintain
containment of capital expenditures.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’ s cash flow forecast
prepared by management, which covers a period of at least
twelve months from 31 December 2022. Moreover, up to
date of this report, the Group did not receive requirement
of early repayment from the lenders. They are of the
opinion that, taking into account the abovementioned
measures and plans, the Group will have sufficient funds
to maintain its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next
twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would depend upon
the Group's ability to generate financing and operating
cash flows in the near future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Going concern assessment (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Incidents

As described in details in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 June 2023, on 6 April 2023, the Board
of Directors has established an independent committee
(the “Independent Committee”) which only comprises
independent non-executive directors of the Company
to conduct an independent inquiry (the “Independent
Inquiry’) on three audit issues as followings:

(i) Audit issue I: Fund movements regarding certain
cooperation arrangements with an entity (“Party
A’) entered into by the Group relating to potential
acquisitions of certain target companies (the “Audit
Issue I")

(i) Audit issue Il: (a) The Group’s payments of the
refundable deposits in the amount of approximately
RMB30.8 million in relation to the potential
acquisitions of certain target companies (the
“Refundable Deposits’); and (b) the Group’ s receipt
of funds in the amount of RMB30 million each from
two independent third parties which were transferred
back to such parties on the same date (the “Audit
Issue II’); and

(iii) Audit issue lll: Fund movements between the Group
and Redco Properties Group (the “Audit Issues III,
together with the Audit Issue | and Audit Issue Il, the
“Incidents”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

The Incidents (Continued)

The Independent Committee has engaged an independent
professional adviser (the “Independent Professional
Adviser”) to assist with the Independent Inquiry.

Pursuant to the Company s announcement dated 31
January 2024, on 18 January 2024, the Independent
Professional Adviser issued a report in relation to its
findings on the Independent Inquiry. Key findings of the
Independent Inquiry have been published by the Company
on 31 January 2024 (the “Key Findings’).

A summary of the Key Findings is set out below:

(1)  AuditIssuel

There were fund movements between the Group
and the Party A, including (i) the refundable earnest
money in the amount of approximately RMB100
million (equivalent to approximately HK$118 million)
(the “Earnest Money A’) during the year ended 31
December 2022 which has been fully refunded to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022;
and (ii) the refundable earnest money in the amount
of RMB40.6 million (the “Earnest Money B”), which
has been fully refunded to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)
(2)

(3)

The Incidents (Continued)

Audit Issue Il

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in respect
of the potential aquisition of nine target companies
(the “Nine Target Companies’), between October
and December 2022, the Company has paid the
Refundable Deposits of approximately RMB30.8
million to the sellers of the Nine Target Companies
(i.e. the “Refundable Deposits” as described in note
20(d)). The Refundable Deposits have been fully
refunded to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Audit Issue Il

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
fund movements between the Group and Redco
Properties Group ranging from RMB200 to RMB61.5
million. During this year ended 31 December 2022,
the net fund movement from the Group to Redco
Properties Group amounted to approximately
RMB107.5 million, which primarily comprised (i)
settlement of non-trade accounts payable; (ii)
the earnest money for the Tianjin project; (iii) the
carpark sales refundable deposits; and (iv) the Redco
Properties Group' s bridging loans.

As at 31 December 2022, the amount due from (to)
Redco Properties Group other than trade receivables,
net amounted to approximately RMB73.84 million and
details of which are set out in note 35(b)(ii).

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

2.

27

(b)

g A
=]

B HRR 2 E%E ()

ZEEH R

(2)

(3)

ERFEE_
BE_ZE__F+°A
=+—HLEFE > FRFH
MmABERAB(ThE
BRAE ) NETWE
FECRIZE"F+A
E+ZR’ BzABEER
AEE S IRERE
EHMARBI08HETT
(BP Bt 3£ 20(d) PR 4% B2 £Y
MIREFREE)) - BE
TECZHFF A=+
HIEFE @ FliRERES
EEMRETTER -

ERFEERE=

BE_ZT__F+°A8
=t —HLEFE > FEH
BheHMEEERZET
TESRH(EZENTFA
RIE200 tEARE6LS
BETZE) -BEZT
—_H+”"“RA=+—HL
FE - AERRAEOSM
EEENETEEF AN
AARKIOTSEET’
TEBHENEEIFES
FEAERRR ; () R2REE
NEEE ; (i) FEHH
ERRERESE; K(iv)
NDetEEENBREE

=+
oo

RZEZZ_H+ZA8
=+—B’EBEd) D
S EEERE(BZE
WORIERRSN) © B ERA S
ARMT3848ET H
SFIBEICIIEE 35(b) (i) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 2. BVREMBHRRZEE(E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) TheIncidents (Continued)

(3)  Audit Issue lll (Continued)

Details of the above are set out in the Company s
announcements dated 30 June 2023, 25 July 2023, 28
September 2023, 31 December 2023 and 31 January
2024.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS’)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3
EEMFEIREERF 350 (BT K)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
SEMFEIREERF 1698 (BFT )
Amendments to HKAS 16

SR GHERE 165 (1B5TK)
Amendments to HKAS 37

SR GHERE 375 (1B5TK)
Amendment to HKFRSs

SRV BHREERN (1BFT4)

HESHERZ 5t

BN - BN

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and
February 2022 Amendments to HKFRS 17)
BAMBREEAE LR (BE 2225 +H RESLHQ!

Insurance Contracts!

FEREBMBREEN (TEBM
HREER) ()

EEMME R RERZ M BB
WEERRAEET A

A 31 IR P IEFR T 5 RARAR R
REBHIE SBMBRERARE
RS

R A EBVEREEL
ERNE A RN
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

ERMBHREENE 105
EFEGHERE 285F (B5T4)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
SRR EEDSE 1658 (IBFTK)
Amendments to HKAS 1

SEGETEEDSE 158 (B5T4)
Amendments to HKAS 1
SEGTENE 158 (B5T4)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ERAGHENE 1 FREBYBRSE
ZREHREHE 29 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 8
EEGTEERE 85 (18574
Amendments to HKAS 12

SR GTHERE 1258 (1BFTK)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Presentation of Financial Statements

EBREFE 59 (2020) MBEHRENET

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

SEGTENE TR RS BT HEIREEL]
75K (IBFT4)

Amendments to HKAS 21

ERGHEERE 215 (1BFTK)
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture ?
CEEHEBE AN EREEN
BEHERFE?
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?®
SRR ZHNEEaRE?
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) *
BESEAMNBIIERBULSERES 55 (2020) WAERET!
Non-current liabilities with Covenants 3
MR IERBI B &S
Disclosure of Accounting Policies !

FETERIRER !

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

GEEEtER!

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction !

HE - ZEFNEEKREERANELERE!

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

4 Applied when an entity applies “Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current” - Amendments to HKAS 1

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The Directors anticipate that the application of all these
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules’) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EARZEBHKR(E
Basis of consolidation (Continued) ARE R (E)
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial R ER > BHNEAE 2
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting BRERFLBE  ULBIZ
policies in line with the Group’ s accounting policies. B EREAER Y G5 HR
— o
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, FFEEERNABHMEERE
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions B~ s WA S THURE
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on KEERB AT ZBERZ A H
consolidation. NIREREVIN R SRERE
LN o
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented FEBY B A B B FRIE i A 2 EA 7K
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which EERZELATANEGEDRE
represent present ownership interests entitling their P ZEERIERTEIFTAA
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the PRI REFIZ LD 155 R M S
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation. REIZEEFEZEBRMES
TR o
Changes in the Group' s interests in existing subsidiaries FEBRRREMBAR 2 EE
Changes in the Group’ s interests in subsidiaries that do not REERWE A 2 EmEE
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are TEENKAERRENZZM
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts BAB R AR
of the Group’ s relevant components of equity and the non- DN o AREE 2 # 8RS
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes DEIFERER ZEREEE R
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re- AE URMIREFRZENE
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the NEVERIE R 2 EE) 0 B1ER
non-controlling interests according to the Group’ s and the BAERRIFERED 2 LA
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. R EN DA E R R IFZER

oz AER R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’ s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to properties under development for sale and the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

When an asset acquisition is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are considered
unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant
cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework’) except
for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued) EEESHHEENE ()
Business combinations (Continued) ¥Bat (@)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and RUEER » PR 2 BT Rl &
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, EXRFAAEZz 8GR ATFER
except that: 2 MET X E RSN
. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or . ELERIBEEER B ME
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements BERFZHEREE
are recognised and measured in accordance with REE DRREEESE
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee FHERE 2RISR
Benefits respectively; REBGHERNE 195
MESRF IR ETE ;
liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based o EARRUEE TS ARG (D 2 B
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share- AR Z B U A EE
based payment arrangements of the Group entered ENARRUREE 75 = LU R %
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of - S AN A RVAY)
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS DU AER 2 (T2 HE
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see 1Rz BEERATATS
the accounting policy below); U B HRR R & B 75

HREERF 2|
AERZNTFAERT

XEEEER) ;
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held . RIEEBEMHBRSENE
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current S5TETFFEH & Z IER
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are BEERDRIEREER
measured in accordance with that standard; and PDHEARBEHEZEE
(SR EAR) AIRERZE
AIEtE ; &

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the - THEAGERFGREENNR
present value of the remaining lease payments (as (EERBEBUBRSE
defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases B 16SRIFAE ) WIRE
were new leases at the acquisition date. Right-of- FEtE  HMBEWEE
use assets are recognised and measured at the same RGN IS B R A% E
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to 5 o FRREERIBR
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease HE S ERRNEERRET
when compared with market terms. FestE o WETREUR

B B T3 35 (R AR AR EE AR & RY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition -date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments would be accounted for on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEUR (43)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Goodwill A2
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is RNBEBEEZEmEHRE
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition BUWEHBREE 24 (R EX
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less BETER) BESHRERE (W
accumulated impairment losses, if any. B)FIER o
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is SREARME > mELDE
allocated to each of the Group’ s cash-generating units (or ERAREHZBENERE
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit Mz AERRRTEL B (R
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the REELEMUAAR)  BMERIA
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal HERREEEREENRMEK
management purposes and not larger than an operating T BRKRREEDES o
segment.
A cash-generating unit (or group of cash -generating rEBSFEENENEHE
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for ReEL BN (NIREELEN
impairment annually or more frequently when there is R0 ETRERE SR BE B
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill RETZ B EEERER
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash- EREHMETAE - SR E
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to HANKWEEEZEHEMS 2
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment ENiimBrReEL B (R
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable REEEBMARN) RIREHAE
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment AETTIRERIE o fim BJ U 181
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any EONHEHREE AAERE
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis B BC R E RSB LU E M
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or MEZIREE BREBZEN
group of cash-generating units). (RIREELEMMAR) 2 F1B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’ s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EARZEBHKR(E
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued) KEBHELAFREEEFE (B)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint MEREREERENES
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial EEMBBEEREDTSESTA
statements using the equity method of accounting. The LR B BHRERTP - BER
financial statements of associates and joint ventures BRaETCERFEASE
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using B HBBRRDIRAREAER
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like RELUBERTMEEIZ RE
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under HRAE N e BERR
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a o mBREmE REERT
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated HEBEEZREHREAR
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted REMBARRRPE RS
thereafter to recognise the Group s share of the profit or S B 18 R 5% A B2 [ Ak B
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate EABEE X BRKRE
or joint venture. When the Group’ s share of losses of an e EWEMIEL AT o A
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group' s interest in EBEMENBEARNEE R
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long- XV BHEBBAEENRKER
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s BHaErEEGER (B1ET
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the AER B AEEREE A
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. BREECEREFEEPRE
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that nzEE#R) B AEEERTH
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or PSR R AV IE— P 518 o FESD
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. BEINBBRIERAEEME

GERHEESETRABER
BN EEREZMZIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’ s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’ s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or
joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that
are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in associates and joint
ventures

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates or joint
ventures

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, goodwill is recognised at acquisition
date if there is excess of the consideration paid over the
share of carrying amount of net assets attributable to
the additional interests in associates or joint ventures
acquired. Any excess of share of carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the additional interests in associates
or joint ventures acquired over the consideration paid are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the
additional interest are acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. the Group' s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’ s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’ s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and income
recognition policies are as follows:

(a)

Property management services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered
as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

The Group bills a fixed amount for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

The Group received property management services
income where the Group acts as a principal and
is primary responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners. The
Group entitles to revenue at the value of property
management services fee received or receivable and
recognises all related property management costs as
its cost of service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b) Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include pre-sale management services, preliminary
planning and design consultancy services, inspection,
cleaning, repair and maintenance services at the pre-
delivery stage. The Group agree the price for each
service with the customers upfront and issues bills
to the customers which varies based on the progress
billing schedule specified in the contracts. Revenue
is recognised when the value-added services are
rendered.

()  Community value-added services

Community value-added services mainly include
(i) home-living services (including, among others,
delivery of daily necessities, housekeeping and
transportation services); (ii) intermediary services
(including, among others, operating clubhouses,
community communication channel, swimming
pools, sport facilities, playgrounds and amusement
centers) and (iii) property agency services (including,
among others, property brokerage for second-hand
properties and home renovation and decoration
services), revenue is recognised when the related
community value- added services are rendered.
Payment of the transaction is due immediately when
the community value-added services are rendered to
the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(d)

Community healthcare services

Online medical services consist primarily of online
consultation services provided by the Al-assisted
in-house medical team of the Group. Revenue
from online medical services is recognised on a
gross basis as the Group is regarded as the primary
obligor as long as such services are provided by
its own employees since the Group has the ability
to determine the pricing of the services, nature
of services and is responsible for providing the
services by its employees. The Group offers service to
corporate customers, including their customers and
employees.

The Group charges corporate customers on an annual
basis at a fixed fee regardless of the usage of the
services and overall headcount or based on a fixed
fee per individual headcount per annum. The revenue
of the online medical service is recognised over a
period of time using the time-based method since the
Group has the stand-ready performance obligation on
a when-and-if-available basis to customers.

The Group also provides a range of diagnostic,
medical and surgical treatment services at the clinics.
Revenue from clinic services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the related services are
rendered and is recognised over a period of time
using the time-based method since the Group has
stand-ready performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEUR (43)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EARZEBHKR(E

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) FHEF AR (48)

(e) IT and intelligent construction services (e) IT KEEBERERARTS
Software solution consulting, maintenance, B RRIR TS 5 A
upgrading, training, installation, configuration and o FHR >~ 1B R
other supporting services are provided mainly in LB REMEEERBEE
the form of fixed-price contracts. Revenue related MNEEEBEENTE IR
to software solution consulting, maintenance and it - BRAMM RS =55
other supporting services are recognised over a )~ MEE R HMECEARTS
period of time using the time-based method since B &R 1 — B B R O £ AR
the Group is obligated to provide the stand-ready ERREN G AT I
performance obligation on a when-and-if-available THRAERBEERD]
basis to customers. Revenue related to installation TRAR P ERIREESN
and configuration services are recognised in the B - BRARERECEMR
accounting period in which the services are rendered. BRW@mRRERSN S
The Group provides information technology services STERRIRESY - AEEEE
directly to end customers. MR IR PR E R

A7 o
The Group provides cloud service to customers REEFIBINIEIRT R
through external cloud server vendors. The Group HEBRAEFRREHER
purchases cloud services from external cloud service %o AEERBEEREX
vendors based on the customers requirements. The MM EARF R EE
external cloud service vendors are responsible for EARTS o IMNEBEARFEHAE
the software development and performance of the e B REITR
service. Therefore, the Group is the agent to the end o I » AEE SRS
customers and recognises revenue on a net basis. BERIAIER IR AL

FEsRuU s o
The Group also provides intelligent construction AEBETEY)EREER
services to property developer. Revenue from HEEEERT - @RS
individual contracts is recognised using the MBI EEER ST TEEBE
percentage of completion method, measured by FMBEHEEHR
reference to the percentage of work performed to BT IRRERENSEN
date as a percentage of total contract value. BotbE=E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
Leases at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of rental premises that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAREEUE ()

Leases (Continued) HE (18)

Right-of-use assets EREEE

The cost of right-of-use assets includes: EREEEMARRE !

«  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease . HEEENMGHES
liability; 2 ;
any lease payments made at or before the «  REEBBEARZAIERN
commencement date, less any lease incentives ERRENR BEME
received; MERMAEHE ;
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and . AEBEENEATEE

A &

«  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . KEE R KR ZPRAERT
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, BE - EREAEEMNT
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring B eERBAEEEMR
the underlying asset to the condition required by the E R RRR R R PR FRE AR
terms and conditions of the lease. SME MR A G ©

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any ERREERMASE BE

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and ERIRSHTE RRERE > 1T

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. MEMEFHFERESBEL
FHE o

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis ERAREEREGAENRHEM

over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease StRIfE R F R AR AR (UBSEE

term. ) RITEE

Refundable rental deposits OIRIRTA B tRAe &

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under BEXMHNARERERESR

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at BEMBRESERNE IR

fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition TE IR > WP EAFES

are considered as additional lease payments and included B -NEREIRHATEE
in the cost of right-of-use assets. BB R A EIMEE AR
Wt AEREEERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E —F — — &+ _F=+—HILFEZ

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EARZEBHKR(E
Foreign currencies shE
In preparing the financial statements of each individual RFEHRSEEERBR ZMBR
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the RE UZBRZMEEEIU
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) HSNEHE (SMNEE) BT 2 R BTh %
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on RZ B ERERER - X
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting WEHR LUMNESHBEZ G
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies EHE#RZBEREXSEHR
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Ho
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are MoNE St ER A TEYIERRIIF
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at EREEREEATEERN
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was BRAEXEMRE - MIEFETE
determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non- HEN AT EWEIEERE
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange m sl R AR
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit MEEDTENIBTES o
or loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary FFEBIERA T AR NE
item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any BEREMEEWR@ESR  ZW
exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised M BENERRES D TE
in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items REMEETEES o LUIME
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign BESHASTEZIFEBIER
currency are not retranslated. TETENRE o
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary HEEREEREMNELT
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are BEMELEREZRE REE
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they HARITE B m s * MR UL S RE
arise, except for exchange differences on monetary items B EHBrEBBEEZER
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for ERERRSN HiEFrEGEER
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur EEINA KA g & (EILER
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the BN EBRE PR —HD)
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other I E A2 E T ) D SR
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to RREEBINEFBHFEEGS
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. WD EERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’'s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to noncontrolling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EARZEBHKR(E
Borrowing costs &7
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the B AREELERBERERS
period in which they are incurred. o
Government grants BT RERLE
Government grants are not recognised until there is BN FHEBAR B2
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the EeBREEEAERRET
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be ELR A58 B A U B AR B o
received.
Government grants related to income that are receivable ERBENABRZEEERX
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred HEE MER R AEERE
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support BRBF R 5 B B (M % B 2 48R AL
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised 7)) T B YER 2 BT ARl 2 TH
in profit or loss in the period in which they become Hp A r Wz SRR 8
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other o ZAmAL I T EMUA ~ UL
income, gains and losses, net”. MmN ESEFER A N2 o
Employee benefits 1ES &7
Retirement benefit costs BOGERIE A
Employees in the Group' s PRC subsidiaries are required to REBNFENEASEER
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme SEAEM T BN EIERE
administrated and operated by the local municipal KR ERTRARETE o REEH
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute B9 R Bt 8 A B 2 (B B VIR IR
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the wRmEEEEE N HRT R
average employee salary as agreed by local municipal BEMHBNRENTIREEH
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits THEEBDLLEE -
of the employees.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the AEE R 2 (T Rk R B HoA
contributions have been paid. The contributions are TREE - BRAHRNEER
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are M2 B AR RS o Ta
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to R IR B3R % 5 T AR 2R
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future HARERDABEE o

payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus plan is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when they are settled.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Taxation wE
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently PRI B < f5 BN EARE (I IR TE Je
payable and deferred tax. IRIEMIAZ 4B%R ©
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the BNERENIRIB R AFE 2 &
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because HILEF S E o ERIREF R
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in BRIAIEFMB R > W BRRE
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. T EEEMEE 2 ERRKA
The Group' s liability for current tax is calculated using tax FAHR X HER » MRk
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by TEBRIATNRZIEE o
the end of the reporting period. AEEZNARIESELIRE

RRERFEEMREE LD
PR Z I EETH o
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences RIEFRIBIS TR & M IRER
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities BERGBZREEHMASER
in the consolidated financial statements and the R HEMNPTAZ EAREESE
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 2R RS E T U 2R
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally He RIEIRMIBEE—MRMATA
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred FERTRERIF Z 28T UM > M
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible EERIEE E—MRBLFTA B30
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable RERRFERE T UEED > 1EUE
that taxable profits will be available against which those FE SR % FI BT A8 HH 3R LUK 85 BT
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such AR ETRAR - M5
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the B EERBRMEL
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 2 RS E TR (EB AR
(other than in a business combination) of assets and WA EREER N R T E
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable MZBERT > IRERBEE K
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax SRR E T UM o b
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference W TEIEEELTERE
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. 3 BN ERESNIRERIAEE(E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAREEUE ()
Taxation (Continued) FHIE (18)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment et EXREMENELERIEM
properties that are measured using the fair value model, B EAATERNFEZR
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed BYERAEEBREANER
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the HERBUE] > BRIFEE R
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted e BEERMBEMEATN
when the investment property is depreciable and is held ERMUEREERAR LA
within a business model whose objective is to consume BEEREMENNLERN T
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the AERN MAEUEERRZ
investment property over time, rather than through sale, [EEZSeST I I i
except for freehold land, which is always presumed to be oMK AERLHM—FIHET
recovered entirely through sale. 70 FBiHEREUNE o
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing Mt ERNEERRIEAREE
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of- KiAEHAEaENHEERZN
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first RIERMIEME > AEBBLE
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to EMRBHRZ S RANERE
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities. BENHESE -
For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are MEERZME * MR
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies BrA&aE > ~EEDRT
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets FHREEERIERERAS
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on BEERE 12RIAAERIZ
initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and T o BRI R TR IE
lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of R WEREREEEKREE
the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences BEENEREEERR YGRS
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts BATHES FHHEEEENE
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from EtEREEER] ) BEES]
remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease modifications, FREESEREEAGREE
that are not subject to initial recognition exemption are PRELNT FHGEHEDER R
recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification. ERMEERE > TEWNTENE

T2 BRESE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than freehold land and construction in
progress over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued) WFE ~ BB KRR E (&)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised M- MERRBEENRHE
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are BRERL T RAEED
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any FAE 72 T 72 A R SR AR ) 2 By
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item RIEFESD - HESFLEERY)
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the - HERREBEEEMESE
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying NERBEFBEEEEAHE
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. PR Eb B EREERNE

B8 0 BT o

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests EREEMYEER (BEHE
of properties which includes both leasehold land and T RIBFE D) MRE 2
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated BAEREESRREE R
between the leasehold land and the building elements in FELLBIER S T #th B E F &P
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. Dz EET DR c EREEZE
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably EIEEEEFE L HEMAEE
between non-lease building element and undivided TR DA RE R ED
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire Bl BIBYEBEHDEAY
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment. EN &y
Intangible assets HEIEESE
Intangible assets acquired separately BIWBZEREE
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired B W E T BB R R FRN
separately are carried at costs less accumulated BB ER AR R 5HE I R
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. ERIRtREREIE - BS
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives [RERAFEHNETEE#HT
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated MNEGEZRE(ST AR EH
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation FESY o &5t B 156 A3 4 HA A 4 £
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, FERERSHAERGES  £H
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted At BN ERAIBEEEA
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite Ro-BUWEREERGRE
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost HHEREEERNABREERE
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses. AIREHRERBETR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - computer
software

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes
are recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the group are recognised as
intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software so
that it will be available for use;

. management intends to complete the software and
use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software;

it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits;

. adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
software are available; and

. the expenditure attributable to the software during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software include employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - computer
software (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use.

Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.

The amount initially recognised for software is the sum of
the expenditure incurred from the date when the software
first meets the recognition criteria listed above.

Subsequent to initial recognition, software is reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Contracts and customer relationship

Contracts and customer relationship acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Management estimated the useful
life of customer relationship based on their industry
knowledge, experience and judgement and took into
account the historical customers renewal pattern of the
acquired subsidiary.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EREFHEERGE

Cash and cash equivalents BE R ZEY

Bank balances and cash presented on the consolidated REREMBIRRRAE IR

statement of financial position include: TR RRTEE !

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand (a) IR HEEFBEREK
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to EHER TEERE
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no EREIMERBMGEERT
longer meeting the definition of cash; and BRERSEERVRITE

B &

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (b) REZLEEY > HBIEREH
(generally with original maturity of three months (BERIHBEHA=EAS
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily HER) B EA S
convertible to a known amount of cash and which B S B EEEH
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in BT ANEmE TR
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of E o HWELEYRERE
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for AR A > MIEAR
investment or other purposes. KEFEMER ©

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash MEREREAERMS * RE
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances EREEEMEE LXEEN
and cash as defined. IRITAE R R IRE ©
Provisions HE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present EXAEERBTFEHARERE
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past CEEHHETE) B’ BEXxER
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to BOl R B REEN S5t
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made BEEEER SRR AREE
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised o AR BENETELINR
as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration R KA REEAEENRA
required to settle the present obligation at the end of BRI EERRE > HEER
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and BEEMBEAREBNREME -
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision EREUEFHEERBEEN
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the REMNBER HIREES
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value ZERERENRE(NESRK
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of BEFEBEANBRLT) ©

money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from
past events but is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to
be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability
and it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision
is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the reporting period in which the change in probability
occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances where
no reliable estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES STECER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially TREBEENMERABEVGER
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising TESE EERENEEN
from contracts with customers which are initially measured B EWHIERES B HER
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with SHEAFISHELBREREL
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable BRI st 8 o WREEEETT
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial THEEREMREEERATF
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities Bt AEm (AT ESAE
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to #=)HNESREERSRMAER
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 46 BB R 2 AR 9] 1
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. HEMATHEENEMEE
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition HNATESEESHEENEH
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are 8ENATFENRRERBR
recognised immediately in profit or loss. ME) ° WHERATE ABG

ZEHEENSMEBEER
15323 A BB Y18 s HET o

The effective interest method is a method of calculating ERMNE LRI EEMEER
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability R B A U KR TEAE R
and of allocating interest income and interest expense HAR A 2 BC A B A R B 2
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the HH—EH % - BREMNEXZIE
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts BEMmEENEMBETIES
and payments (including all fees and points paid or FHEREBAEAANWEE) /Y
received that form an integral part of the effective interest fEEFARIRIRE W AT REE (B
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) FE AT WY AB AR B PR A R
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial MERER D BIFRE B RMALR
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net R BERUREMGETITE)
carrying amount on initial recognition. ERFTRAVREDRT ZRE
SPEPTERRIFIE o
Interest which are derived from the Group's ordinary REEBBEHBAREPELN
course of business are presented as revenue. FEE AW o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI):

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES SR (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAREEUE ()
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEN T HERAESE
assets (Continued) (#&)
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at PIEHMEMEEEBRAT
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset Bt ABTH A TS 7 U
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent TERBER R RYEHER
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other THEER MERKRELIF
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither HEEE > TIFBHWERES
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised BUBREEREIREBS
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 HIPTE AN ER S HRESEN
Business Combinations applies. FARE > AIAEETTEET T

Bl R E 2 E W
hEINEREGRENHEER

TEEE) o
A financial asset is held for trading: BN TER TREEAT
FEE :
. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of . WEETHEENTEZEM
selling in the near term; or AIFEERME ; 80
on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of . RHT B> HAKE
identified financial instruments that the Group EREBEIENTH SR
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of TEREMBEEN—ED > LA
short-term profit-taking; or B HAREH ERV T AR E
BRIER S 3
it is a derivative that is not designated and effective . HEBWIFETE RBMIE#
as a hedging instrument. HHTAEMNITETA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAREEUE ()
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEN T BERAEESE
assets (Continued) (#&)
(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) EEABATES AHM
TERGENEGRTER
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are BAFESAREMEEU
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and mER TEREHEBR
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in NTESE P HATEE
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the FELNW G REBERE
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to MEEWmERLIIRE
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss BLREERRT > MEEAE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of TERVESTE o Rtz
the equity investments, and will continue to be held BERTEENOEEY
in the investment revaluation reserve. ERTRENEGD Wk

EEFIFRE RS o

Dividends from these investments in equity EXREERIIESKREN
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the R > ZERETRR
Group' s right to receive the dividends is established, B BB RES
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery MG SRR R R UK [E] BB
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are BEMAAERIS o B EE
included in the other income, gains and losses, net’ ABmPITEMUBA
line item in profit or loss. ek M s ER 2R IEE o
(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL (iii) BAFEFABZNEH
BE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being TR EREHM AR IZ A
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated TESTAEMPEW R
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. FREEHIEEARAT

BEstARMEERT T
A ENEMEE &
NFEFTABZEN S G

=
= °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivable, deposits paid, other
receivables, amounts due from associates, joint ventures,
related companies and non-controlling interests,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances) and other
items (financial guarantee contracts) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to RIFEEHFHREZERF 9N
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) AT EITRIET I 2 EE
REMIEELBE (&)
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from S HATREAE BRI T
all possible default events over the expected life of the BEMTREAFIAMA I EEL
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m MENEHELENTRREERS
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is Bekz > REAEHREES
expected to result from default events that are possible B(M2ERFEREEEE) S
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments RN REHBAEZ12E8R
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss AR ENENEHELES
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the DERHEREESEE - 51T
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment REBEAEBENBTEEREE
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well ET URBEBAFEN
as the forecast of future conditions. HE ~ BRLERRURER
= BB R AR RAR T TE
RIEHEEL FAEE o
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade REBBEMRBREMEN
receivables without significant financing component. DB Z EIRIERE R 2 T8

HIE BRI -

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss MPAEHMITAMS > A5H
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a SrERERESN 12EB7EE
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, EEBE RIEEVIRTEDE
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The EERBEZIEMN FLHER
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised T AEERDPE2BPEHAEE
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of Bri8 - SHE R EATEARE B8
a default occurring since initial recognition. BEERERTER BYaHER

DU 38 AE B A9 By P] SEME S EL IR
RELEI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMBIERRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #%F —&F — —#+_F =+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TR (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EEARGETBUER (48)
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to RIEEBHBHHEZERF 9%
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) AT EFIEH T HEE
REMIEELBE (&)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (i) EEREREEEEMN (&)

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in - BEBAKEBEEREDN
the operating results of the debtor; BRENBHBER

1t ;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change . BREBNEBRLE
in the regulatory, economic, or technological HRIETRENER
environment of the debtor that results in a ANBEE S RIBEHE
significant decrease in the debtor s ability to IR IEA B R
meet its debt obligations. HAE RAAIEE o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, Fam Lt sTERE RN

the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased fal > REEDA HED

significantly since initial recognition when contractual TREERB®E30H ° 8

payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the EEETASHIERLERSYE

Group has reasonable and supportable information BEELN EXEEF

that demonstrates otherwise. BIEFENERINUERA

AIERI o

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the BEELUEKRE BER

credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased REBMAEHILERH

significantly since initial recognition if the debt ERAEERBEERRE
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at AEEGRRET LA

the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined ELELASEIE R ERIVE S

to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, WAREEE LF o HUATIE

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its RE BETAESHAE

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term HEARBEERRE > &

and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business (W HEABFREENRR ;
conditions in the longer term may, but will not (iNfBEXABIREBIBE

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to BITHBANESNRERR
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group BE% R (i) &ERE
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk ﬁfﬁiﬁﬂ’]%%?ﬂ“@]ﬁ
when it has an internal or external credit rating BEERNEEEERA
of “investment grade” as per globally understood )Eh HWIREMEBERHEN
definitions. RET] o IRIEZIKIEFRE

% CAEERAERBL
BEpssMBEYE AET AR
WEP AT RERAIE B
EEEEEIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of
a loan commitment, the Group considers changes in
the risk of a default occurring on the loan to which
a loan commitment relates; for financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES STECER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAEEER (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to RIFEEHFHREZERF 9N
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) AT EFIEH T HEE
REMIEE 5 E ()
(i)  Definition of default (i) BHATEE
For internal credit risk management, the Group MR EERBEIEM
considers an event of default occurs when B AEERA BOSE
information developed internally or obtained from HEREFITHFEINR
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely RENERBEREBAT
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full RARERHEEEA(E
(without taking into account any collaterals held by BEAREE) B GRERAE
the Group). SEPTREMAIRRG) B
B o
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers Rem b > REER
that default has occurred when a financial asset % BREmMEERRB
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group BIOOHBELEN I
has reasonable and supportable information to FEEEFRIERAIRE
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is BRRERENFENE
more appropriate. HWREBRRE o
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EEBESMEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or THMEET —HBIULE
more events that have a detrimental impact on the NEGBEZEMEED
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset FHRIREREE AT
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is FE)BLERNEREER
credit-impaired includes observable data about the B - TMEEEFEER
following events: ENEBROERRUTSE
HRTTRE SR
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the (a) FEITASERADN
borrower; BATTFEEH ;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past (b) EBRE4 WNELZN
due event; WEAEH) ;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group' s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EAGEEEK (48)
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to RIFEEHFHREZERF 9N
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) AT EFIEH T HEE
REMIEELBE (&)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) FERAEEESIENtEKE
=
The measurement of ECL is a function of the TERRE BB 2EUR
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the REMEER ~ BABEX
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the (BMEMNRHNEBIEE)
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability FEH R AEE o EAVER
of default and loss given default is based on historical KR EHBBIBERT G
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ERiBTFEBRAREEE
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted EHEWL - TRERE BEEN
amount that is determined with the respective risks of TEmRMEREEINES
default occurring as the weights. B UEBRLEANR
RAEEET o
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all —flRkME’ HHEEE
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in BARBEORENCEAE
accordance with the contract and the cash flows ENFEEHNRE RSN
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at EE FRAAWER VIR B R
the effective interest rate determined at initial EERVERINET
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows NERFXRALIR) Z BT
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the %8 o SR E R UERIEM
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in = REBEEEBEUBREE
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases. AlElesIfAEl AR

EERAEERREZRE
messt B ERWTRIR
FRAZIRERE—H -

For financial guarantee contracts, the Group is HXHBIREREL > A&
required to make payments only in the event of a EETRBREFRNIA
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of R BB ABEEENDN
the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the BN ETR ]5R
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to HiEEEEAREEMZ
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs BHNREANBLENEES
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive BRI EFREMTE T
from the holder, the debtor or any other party. ER  BEAEETERR

ZFRAAN - BHAREE
HthHWEBIEREEE
IR ZERERVIRIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain accounts receivable
are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts receivable
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EREFHEERGE
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (@)
Derecognition of financial assets BB SR EE
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the FEBENRBEEWRIRERE
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, MNENEFBEZIE > SiemE
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all ECEERAERERANE
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another EEF A RERY 4B K B0 73 B B K2 [e]
entity. HRELT S —BRIFECHER

ERIBE ©

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at PR EH FE DI S R A ST 2 RY
amortised cost, the difference between the asset s carrying THMEBER EERAEEHRD
amount and the sum of the consideration received and Wk FEUR AR B Z N Z FR 48
receivable is recognised in profit or loss. S o
On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument PR B B S0 A B B X ) 4R e 50
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to FEEEATESAEMEE
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously WastENET TARER
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not ERIAREEGLFBERRH
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained Rt m N EBITgEMNE
profits. 8w BEEEEREET -
Financial liabilities and equity TRaEREDS
Classification as debt or equity DIEBEFE B
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either BERED TANREENR
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the NEEREREREETT
substance of the contractual arrangements and the ENEENEATHEEIE
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. fh o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMTBIERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8% —F = —F+—F =+—HIFF/E

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payables, other
payables, borrowings and senior notes and bond are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEUR (43)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EREFHEERGE
Financial instruments (Continued) THT A (%)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) ERBEREDR (&)
Financial guarantee contracts I BEREH
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires MHBERENA—HERET
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the AEEREMRNEH » MUE
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to BREAEARBEEBABLRZ
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of REH TR Z RN HIR
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities HEMELZIBKR - UHBERE
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently HEBVRRERTESFE
measured at the higher of: HpBMTREEE !
«  the amount of the loss allowance determined in . BEBEETHEREBEEM
accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and BREEIFIOR T/
TRIBE, &
« the amount initially recognised less, where o UNETESRERER (ER)
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised over PRI RAAREER 2 Rt
the guarantee period. 8 o
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities BUOSHERR N2 HEE
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only FEBETEHEEERR - I
when, the Group' s obligations are discharged, cancelled or HEE IR > FEEUHRERE
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount FEE - BUHHEIEMAasn
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration REEHRBSOREMRENE
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. i iam ST o
The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a rEBEEHMEBENERMAE
financial liability with substantially different terms as IR Z M AEE ERERRRR
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and EARERAEMA AR
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial HeRmas  HREEMEE
modification of the terms of an existing financial HEEAEREITEAREN (B
liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the med AR AEENGTBRE
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an ) SaliERr~TRanKk
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the mRmEMas -

recognition of a new financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
description of the Group’ s impairment policies is set out
above.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4., RUEUEEUBRRNEERERE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sHEER (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EARZEBHKR(E
Trade and other payables E S RAMETE
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZETHRIEEMBEERRZ
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year AimAERREHREmEEREE
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented HARZ(THNER - BZ REAM
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 FEMRIBIRREBIBEZY] [
months after the reporting period. They are recognised JERIRERAE 12188 A EIEA
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at 2 AT o B 5 K E AT RRIEL]
amortised cost using the effective interest method. BB ATERES S HEBEFNAE

R FRE I B R ASST & ©

Borrowings =474
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of BRI AFELNREENR
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently DR BAIEHSE o [ERHEE
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the M HR At 2 o PRSER (H0BR
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption RS MA) BB CHEEN TR ZE
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of BEA A ERA A E AR
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees ANEIBTm S o RILEMF
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised BN ER ’ o] AR EED
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is DEPT A RLE B REEE A E Y
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. RZER - TLBERT &A
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. ZIREERE RN A LE o (B3
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that TR BRI SRR R
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is WD FERmE’ IERE
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and BAREXRIERBEERFEHN
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. FEATRR > 3 7E R 5 48 A RA fE
#H o
Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement EEXYIAMNERE R - X
of financial position when the obligation specified in the HEE LR BB RE M
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference AR R AR o BHR &R
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that BEENREEAESHNAENE
has been extinguished and the consideration paid is BEAEmPER AT BERAE
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the PROFAEREFRGELRE
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the NEEERTHARED12EAR
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. % BEMERDEAREEIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM”). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’ s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4, HREEVHBRRNEBEEREAREG
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES SR (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) (b) EXRGHEER (B
Related parties (Continued) FEN 1 (18)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) fETTE THIEMERA > Al
conditions apply: EREAEEGRE
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERHEAERE
same group (which means that each parent, FA—&BZHER
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the & &8 R F-
others). M B A Bl K B & MY
=PNEIN Al =Nl
&) ©
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —HEBAS—E
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a BrzBERAIREG
member of a group of which the other entity is a EhEES—8
member). BARE RN ZE
EETHRERABZ
MEABHEE R
) o
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEERISE—
party. BE=HzAERE-
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv), —BERARE=H
and the other entity is an associate of the third ERzaEhE"
entity. Mmr—BRA%E
ZEHERBRZBEA
=
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) BRAFEEHA
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an rEEEMECE
entity related to the Group. BMEEMNERT

Z BER R 5T E] o

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) BEEX (a)FrathlA
person identified in (a). i?“%Jﬁkﬁﬁﬂaﬁ“

il o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) S (a)(i) Pradt Al A
influence over the entity or is a member of key HERBEEARE
management personnel of the entity (or of a HeEZERE (S
parent of the entity). BRZEAB)FE

BEEB/HE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’ s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(ii) children of that person’ s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’ s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group' s accounting policies which
are described in note 4(b), the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

As explained in note 2(a), the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis and have not
included any adjustments that would be required should the
Group fail to continue as a going concern since the Directors are
satisfied that the liquidity of the Group can be maintained in
the coming year after taking into the considerations as detailed
in note 2(a). The Directors also believe that the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working capital and
other financing requirements for the next twelve months from
31 December 2022.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC. Judgement is
required in determining the amount of the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain (for example, certain expenses such
as entertainment and advertising expenses may not be finally
deductible) during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.

5.

RS st HIE R i st RFEE MR
E3RR(E)

P& R St ECSR BT RO R SR 7 f
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

BMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E —F — — &+ _F=+—HILFEZ

CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Current taxation and deferred taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred taxation
assets and taxation in the periods in which such estimate is
changed.

Impairment of intangible assets, including goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
above. Other intangible assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances, including, among others, the impacts of the
current economic conditions in the PRC on the operations of the
Group, indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables on a forward-looking
basis. The provision is determined based on the Group’s
historically observed default rates over the expected lives of
the receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.
In making the judgement, management considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information such as
actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of the counterparties, actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business and counterparties financial position.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the Group’ s management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #F —&F — 4+ _F =+—HIFFEZ

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WmEkIEER
(i) Revenue (i) UWes=
Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property Wam T EOEMEEERE
management services, value-added services to non- FEXETIRERT HBRIEER
property owners, community value-added services, Bt eRERBRITREE
community healthcare services and IT and intelligent B ARFERIFTISANIE ©

construction services.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers FER A2 7
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by category for the BE_E__HFR-E"—
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: +ZTA=+—HLEFEE’ &
EEZRER B DM DTN
T
L,
2022 2021
k=St 3 &
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREBFTT
Revenue from contracts EREHWE
with customers
Recognised over time: TE— BRI -
- Property management services —MEEERP 256,500 202,099
- Value-added services to non-property —3E¥FIBERT
owners 73,883 75,033
- Community value-added services — & AR 53,219 41,558
- Community healthcare services — & EERD 17,243 17,431
- IT and intelligent construction services —IT & AR ARTS 15,035 14,860
415,880 350,981
Recognised at a point in time: FOF IR FEST
- Valued-added services to —IEETIRERY
non-property owners 6,371 2,563
- IT and intelligent construction services —IT K8 EERARTS 14,862 783
21,233 3,346
437,113 354,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Segment information

Management has determined operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by chief operating decisionmaker
(“CODM’). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of
the Company.

The CODM has identified three reportable operating
segments, namely property management, healthcare
services and others as following:

Property management:

6.

Wz K 3 ERE L (48)

(ii)

DERE R

EEECREBEIEZEERRE
(TEEERRE ) EHD
BEEEKEDT - BEESR
RBRTEEHTBEEERR
> AENEERKGEE
DERRIRIR o

FEELERREDHNE =R
AREKEENE IMESE
B RERBRAM OF

Provision of property management services, provision of value-

added services to non-property owners and provision of

community value-added services

Development and maintenance of IT systems for property

developers, provision of other IT-related services and other

MEER ! RHYEEIERT « IRHEIEE TIRERS M RIBERTS
Healthcare services: Provision of healthcare management services
FRERT RMEEEIERS
Others:
miscellaneous services
HAth

TRARFS

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’ s accounting policies described in note
4(b).

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on measures of adjusted profits before
income tax. The measurement basis of segment results
excludes the effects of depreciation, share of results of
investments accounted for using the equity method,
finance income/costs, net and income tax expense and
listing expenses. Other information provided, except
as noted below, to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

(ii)

Segment information (Continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBImRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ
Wzt B 3 ERE L (48)
(i) EER(E)

DB R ~ A BERAE

{ 4
Property Healthcare
management services Others Total
MEERE RERH% Hith fast
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z”Z
+ZB=+—-H
LFE
Segment revenue A ER R
Revenue from contracts RR&HNE
with customers
- Recognised overtime — R 383,601 19,466 15,803 418,870
- Recognised at a point — IR AR
in time 6,371 - 14,862 21,233
Less: Inter-segment revenue B DEb Rl - (2,223) (767) (2,990)
Consolidated revenue RBIMIERH
from external customers et Gt 389,972 17,243 29,898 437,113
Segment results SRS
Segment results DEEE 25,290 4,117 5,263 34,670
Depreciation of property, ME - WREREEITE
plant and equipment (2,641) (2,001) (843) (5,485)
Operating profits E il 22,649 2,116 4,420 29,185
Share of results of investments &R EZ AR
accounted for using the MR EEEFHE
equity method, net 1,055 - - 1,055
Finance income and costs, net  BEWA R EFEE (494) (355) (187) (1,036)
Profits before listing PR LmB% &
expenses and income tax PrSMATER 23,210 1,761 4,233 29,204
Listing expenses LHREX (13,167)
Profit before income tax PRETSH AT ER 16,037
Income tax expense Figtim> (6,084)
Profit for the year FREF 9,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. WERIEBER (8)
(i) Segmentinformation (Continued) (i) IBEFE(E)
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) TEWm  EE N BEEREE
€=
L 4
Property Healthcare
management services Others Total
MEERE BER Hitt #ast
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTT AREBTT
Additions to: HhE .
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% ~ BE K&
- Reportable segment assets —IERDHEE 283 2,635
As at 31 December 2022 RZBE-Z&
+ZBA=+—-8H
Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 107,374 542,655
Other unallocated Hit kD AR EE
corporate assets 44,044
Total consolidated assets GARBERE 586,699
Including investments R+
accounting for using AERIRE
the equity method — 3,903
Reportable segment liabilities FATZHRALPEE 20,544 243,897
Other unallocated HittkpEARER
corporate liabilities 10,173
Total consolidated liabilities mrcaRE 254,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #F —&F — 4+ _F =+—HIFFEZ

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(ii)

6. WERIEBER (&)

Segment information (Continued) (i) EER(E)
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) TEWm  EE N BEEREE
€=
{
Property Healthcare
management services Others Total
WEERE FER% Hth 4ast
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AERETFT AREFT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE—E-—F
+-B=+—-H
LLEE
Segment revenue e
Revenue from contracts RR&EHANE
with customers
- Recognised overtime —E—ER PRI ERR 318,690 18,449 17,939 355,078
- Recognised at a point — R RS
in time 2,563 - 783 3,346
Less: Inter-segment revenue i : HEEKE - (1,018) (3,079) (4,097)
Consolidated revenue REMNBEEH
from external customers EElE 321,253 17,431 15,643 354327
Segment results NHEE
Segment results DEELE 63,999 5,414 6,414 75,827
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% « BERZEITE
and equipment (1,801) (2,184) (545) (4,530)
Operating profits Fhil 62,198 3,230 5,869 71,297
Share of results of investments — DMEIREZ AR
accounted for using the MEBEEETR
equity method, net 2,167 (22) — 2,145
Finance income and costs, net BB ARMAFE 2 (440) - (418)
Profits before listing B bR &
expenses and income tax FriSiRanas 64,387 2,768 5,869 73,024
Listing expenses Nyl a5 (13,753)
Profit before income tax PRETEIATER 59,271
Income tax expense FigHES (19,138)
Profit for the year FAEF 40,133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. WERIEBER (8)
(i) Segmentinformation (Continued) (i) IBEFE(E)
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) TEWm  EE N BEEREE
(48)
L 4
Property Healthcare
management services Others Total
MEER RERS Hth Azt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
Additions to: HhE .
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% ~ BE K&
- Reportable segment assets ~ —AIZHRAYPEE 3,460 1,746 976 6,182
- Other unallocated corporate  —E ik
assets NEBE 26,781
32,963
Intangible assets BV EE
- Reportable segment assets —A2RNHEE - - 2,933 2,933
- Other unallocated corporate  —EhRDE
assets NEEE 1,415
4348
As at 31 December 2021 KZEZ—fF
+-A=+—H
Reportable segment assets AERNPEE 269,194 60,156 25,643 354,993
Other unallocated HtRDEAREE
corporate assets 34,348
Total consolidated assets GREERE 389,341
Including investments O RER
accounting for using MNRHIRE
the equity method 3,360 48 — 3,408
Total segment liabilities waitaG 150,653 13,895 15,064 179,612
Other unallocated HittkpE AR EE
corporate liabilities 47,495

Total consolidated liabilities Ensai 227,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information

Revenue by geographical location is determined on the
basis of the location of the customers or services rendered.
All of the Group’ s revenue were generated from the PRC.

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments,
investments accounted for using the equity method and
deferred income tax assets by geographical area are as
follows:

6. WERIEBER (&)

(ii)

DEER (&)
HIPE ]

BRI E S DRI TS ER
ERUFRERBOUERE
E o AEEMAWEIIRE SR
0

MREmTA  REmEARY
REREEFRBRMEEIINN
IEREEERMIER BB DU
o

L 4

2022 2021
—E-C B
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREEFIT
PRC A 69,189 77,766
Hong Kong EE 28,157 26,780
97,346 104,546

Information about major customers BT Ex SR

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from
Redco Properties Group, associates and joint ventures
of Redco properties and their subsidiaries contributed
approximately 26% (2021: 32%) of the Group’ s revenue.
Other than revenue from Redco Properties Group,
associates and joint ventures of Redco Properties and
their subsidiaries as mentioned above, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer accounted for
over 10% of the Group’ s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

BE-T-_—#+-F=+—
AlLEE RENBHES
B AEtEREADREE
e DL EH) Ve
Ho 1l A B I3 0926% (B
= — %1 32%) ° & b XFR it
REHNBHEER - NEHE
MEATRASELEURBE
MEAS NN RE-S
S CER-B-—&+"A
SH—BILERE BERE—
SNBEF B B U A
B9 10% BAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

7. HMUWA - s KRESIEFE

{
2022 2021
ket T
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Losses on deregistration of an associate  FIH—MEE AR RHE
and disposal of a joint venture —EEEhENEE
(see notes 18(a) and (b)) (B M5 18(a) K (b)) (55) —
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (note 31) HEMBABMNUE (FIEE31) — 415
Government grants (note below) B R B (T SCBI ) 2,290 3,243
Others Hith 900 296
3,135 3,954
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2022, governments st &E_FE__F+A=+—

grants of approximately RMB2,290,000 (2021: RMB3,243,000)
was recognised as other income for the year as there was
no unfulfilled condition or contingencies relating to these

ALEFEE BNHMBOARE
2,290,000 c(ZE = —F 1 A
R 153,243,000 7) HEs8 A F A

subsidies. HMWA > ThHRBEEBREZ
ERHAENEREBERERTAE
o
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET OF 8. SREEMMESEGOMREE)
REVERSAL
@
2022 2021
ZEITF B4
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARBEFIT
Impairment losses recognised on: P T B IBMEDRERE
- Trade and other receivables — B 5 REMEWERIE
(note 20(e)) and (note 33(b)(iv)) (FIEE20(e) &
(FF3E33(b)(iv)) 47,433 3,646
- Amounts due from related parties, — FEUR RE B 5 B2
and non-controlling interests Bl g e
(note 33(b)(iv)) (PEE33(b)(iv)) 21,718 (159)
69,151 3,487

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #F —&F — 4+ _F =+—HIFFEZ

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS, NET 9. REURARMAEEE
@
2022 2021
—E-C T4
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREEFIT
Finance income from banks RITREE WA 278 291
Finance costs on bank IRIT R EH MBS A A
and other borrowings (710) (261)
Finance costs on Consideration Payable — FETABRIERZA (B 22(b))
(see note 22(b)) (258) (231)
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEaEmERA (346) (217)
(1,314) (709)
Finance income and costs, net BRE WA R B 45 P 3R (1,036) (418)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

10. BRERISHIATEF

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

BRETS AR m A Th R U T B IRERES

H
L 4
2022 2021
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AR
Staff costs (including directors and BINA(BEEER
chief executive’' s emoluments) BE{THASME)
- Salaries and allowances —Fre KRR 128,604 126,133
- Staff bonuses — BT TE4T 9,270 3,114
- Retirement benefit costs —BRIREF A 20,391 16,225
- Other staff welfare costs —HME TEMA A 16,741 12,386
175,006 157,858
Auditor s remuneration e S CIE=R 2,800 18
Depreciation of property, plant Y% ~ R fE Fe sz 1T EE (M95E 16)
and equipment (note 16) 5,485 4,530
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17) SR & EE (st 17) 6,240 6,047
Listing expenses Hstilza53 13,167 13,753
Cost of services ARFE AL A 294,239 238,558
Operating lease payments KEMEM® 742 2,064
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FREMEX
L |
2022 2021
—E-= =5
RMB 000 RMB' 000
AR®TT ARHEFIT
Current tax: BIEATRIE :
- PRC enterprise income tax — R (TSR 24,420 22,359
Deferred taxation (note 19) IEIERRIE (MI5E 19) (18,336) (3,221)
6,084 19,138

Subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: 25%). For certain subsidiaries qualified
as micro and small enterprises, the PRC enterprise income tax
was charged at a preferential rate of 20% for the periods in
which they were qualified.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the
companies in Hong Kong did not generate any assessable profits
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

BET__H+"A=+—HIL=F
B RPERIREENNEATA
B25% IR BN PR B EFAFIR
BT 125%) c sRETREM
BRI TEERNNBATMS °
AHEHNGERABZ20%NERR
TGP E PSR ©

BE_Z__F+-A=+—HLE
B BHRNMIREBN AT EEET
AIFERIRER * B A EE BT ER
SHERE (CZ - —5 1 HE) o

FRFEMAX I RRE B RHM
EHEWTRBIFRPISIRAT ST SR
T

{
2022 2021
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTTT ARETFT
Profit before income tax FRPTISIRATEF] 16,037 59,271
Tax at the applicable PRC enterprise BEANFEEZE
income tax rates (25%) TSR =M (25%) 4,009 14,818
Difference in tax rate applicable to BRARETHELR
certain subsidiaries and branches AL BN EER 1,466 728
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  RaJiIMBEX 1,499 2,468
Income not subject to taxation BERRUTA (506) (705)
Unrecognised tax losses REESBIIEES 1R 1,004 1,829
Others Hith (1,388) —
Income tax expenses for the year FAPRSHREAX 6,084 19,138

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #F —&F — 4+ _F =+—HIFFEZ

12. DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE S EMOLUMENTS 12. EERESITBRASME
The remuneration paid or payable to the directors and chief ENHENTRBEEERESITEHA
executive of the Company were as follows: ENMENT :
L 4
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other Discretionary benefits
Fee benefits bonuses scheme Total
HEk HRAER
e Hith&F! BETEA HEPALE st
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBETT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-E_C
+ZA=+-H
HEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. TANG Chengyong ERERE 900 - - - 900
Ms. WONG Yin Man BRELL 535 25 — 12 512
Ms. HUANG Yanqi BERAZT 328 19 - 12 359
Non-executive director FRITEE
Mr. HUANG Ruoging BEERE - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors  BUHHTEE
Mr. CHOW Ming Sang (note below) BB (FXizh) 161 — - - 161
Mr. SZE Irons (note below) HER RS (TS MisE) 161 - - - 161
Mr. LAU Yu Leung (note below) BEFRE (TE) 161 - - - 161
2,246 4 - 24 2,314

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-E--F

tZA=t+-H
LLEE
Executive directors HITEZF
Mr. TANG Chengyong BRERL - - ~ — -
Ms. WONG Yin Man BREZT - 81 - - 81
Ms. HUANG Yanqi BERAZT - 53 - - 53
Non-executive director FHITE
Mr. HUANG Ruoging BEERE - - - - -
— 134 - — 134
Note:  Mr. CHOW Ming Sang, Mr. SZE Irons and Mr. LAU Yu Leung have MizE: BERESLE S HERBEEERE
been appointed as independent non-executive directors with HERFEEZTABEIIIER
effect from 14 March 2022. TEHF B_ZE__F=A
+POEREAERS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMTBIERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8% —F = —F+—F =+—HIFF/E

12. DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was
no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

The executive directors emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director s and independent non-executive
directors emoluments shown above were for their services as
Directors.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

12.

EERRSTHRASME (4B)

RBE_ZE__FRIE"—F+7
A=+—HLEE " BIEEFARS
TR B RERRE R BEREAFHME
2 e

FHSITESHME AR EEAE
AR AL B EF 7 EFTRHBIRES

= °

IR EE B IERITE
STy 3 B ER TS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one (2021: nil) director of the Company of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2021: five)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

hIEE=HNES

FRFAEELZREHNES BEL
RE—H(CE—F T)EFH
FONES EXPIEEL2 o FERHERI
B(CEZ—F AR IFRRTES
HESTHRAENRSHMESH
BisFIBa0T

[
2022 2021
= =4
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR¥ETIT AEREFIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,766 3,537
Performance related bonuses FIFAERATCAL 388 989
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  BRER] 5T 2IMHERR 228 311
3,382 4,837

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
Directors whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

#F T B ERIFEFNRER
MESHEWNT :

as follows:
L
2022 2021
—E-C TE T4
Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000,000 7T 2 3
HKS$1,000,001 to HKS1,500,000 1,000,001 7752 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HKS$1,500,001 to HKS$2,000,000 1,500,001 7752 2,000,000 BT = —
HKS$2,000,001 to HKS$2,500,000 2,000,001 87t % 2,500,000 B¢ — 1

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BE_Z__HFREFE_-F+°AH
=t+—HILEFE  *EEHEQDES
A& & s E B ST E R E(F
AMAEEEIINAEERBFFBER
TOREREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

14. DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14.

15.

(g
EFEFERANBE_T_"FK
2T —F+"A=1+—HLFEN
RERE » BEEWREHRLERTIARE
BIHERRE ©

sREF

AREHE NBIEERELRTAYE
BhERTYI#E -

L 4
2022 2021
—g_ T —F
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ARETFTT
Earnings figures are calculated BA#MFHENT :
as follows:
Profit for the year attributable to KRBHEB ANELEREF
owners of the Company 3,189 32,140
L 4
2022 2021
bt - 2 BT
(thousands of shares)
(FB)
Number of shares: RIPER :
Weighted average number of E@ERINETFHLGIESR
ordinary shares for the purpose of BEXRKNEERT
calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 187,808 150,000

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owner of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective
periods.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used for such
purpose has been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of the
issuance of 3 shares of the Company in connection with the
Reorganisation completed on 2 June 2021 and the Capitalisation
Issue (as defined in note 26(c)) of 149,999,996 shares completed
on 31 March 2022, which were deemed to have been in issue
since 1 January 2021.

On 31 March 2022, the Company issued 50,000,000 shares
through initial public offering of shares (i.e. Issuance of New
Shares as defined in note 26(d)).

No diluted earnings per share for both years were presented as
there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding for both
years.

15.

sRE(E

SRESRRREEASES AR
RIS SR E T BRI
THIHEHE o

Bz BN @RI E R
AANBMNR_E-—FBZHRRK
HEAETIRRD RN S _F
A=+ —HB=MNEREET (T
# B M 5E26(c)) 8547 149,999,996 i%
BiHEAeE S _—F—H—H
REEET) N E/FHIBI R -

W_E__F#=A=+—H’ &
NEEBRERANFHEERMET
50,000,000 B A& 1% (BREE4TH#IAR D (E
FRME26(d)) ©

ERAS B 6 I S BT RSN BT E
B B EE2NEFENSRE
EEAM o
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

16. 1% - BB R

[
Furniture Right-of-use
Leasehold and office Motor assets -
improvement  equipment vehicles Buildings  properties Total
gz Rk R
(& N AE BEM  BE-ME &t
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR  AREFr ARETT ARETRT < ARETm  ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 RZE”-f-A—-H
Cost A 6,127 11,440 2,252 — 11,183 31,602
Accumulated depreciation REHTE - (5,133) (1,276) - - (6,409)
Net book amount REFE 6,727 6,307 976 — 11,183 25,193
Year ended 31 December 2021  HE_F-—fF
+ZR=1+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FRAESE 6,727 6,307 976 - 11,183 25,193
Additions HE 406 3,253 1,285 26,172 1,47 32,963
Modification B - - - - 2,519 2,519
Disposals during the year ERHE - (46) (1) - - (47
Depreciation (note 10) RE(ME10) (803) (2,132) (960) - (635) (4,530)
Closing net book amount FREASE 6,330 7382 1,300 26,172 14,374 56,158
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-E+ZB=1+-H
Cost [ 7133 14,504 3328 26,172 15,009 66,746
Accumulated depreciation BiE (803) (1122) (2,028) - (635) (10,588)
Net book amount RESE 6,330 7382 1,300 26,712 14374 56,158
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-E-C
+ZA=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FRESE 6,330 7,382 1,300 26,772 14,374 56,158
Additions B 283 2,203 149 - - 2,635
Disposals during the year FRHE - (482) (57) - - (539)
Depreciation (note 10) HE (M3 10) (844) (2,399) (478) (1,044) (720) (5,485)
Exchange differences ERER - - - 2,429 - 2,429
Closing net book amount FREETE 5,769 6,704 914 28,157 13,654 55,198
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-Z&+-R=+-H
Cost s 1,416 15,705 3,261 29,240 15,009 70,631
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,647) (9,001) (2,347) (1,083) (1,355) (15,433)
Net book amount REFE 5,769 6,704 914 28,157 13,654 55,198

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’ s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amounts of RMB28,157,000 (2021:
RMB26,772,000) were pledged as collaterals for the Group’s
banking and other borrowing of RMB10,161,000 (2021:
RMB10,231,000) granted to the Group.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their

estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvement

Furniture and office
equipment
Motor vehicles
Buildings
Right-of-use Asset -
properties

Over the shorter of the lease term
or useful lives

3to5years

3to 10 years

20 years

Over the shorter of the lease term
or useful lives

16. M% - BER®RHE (&)

R - _F+"B=+—H &%&E
EEEEEA AR 28,157,000 7t (=
T -4 ANR26,772,0007T)
HYE - BERRXBEERIEAR
FTAREBNETREMERARE
10,161,000t (B - —F : AR
10,231,000 7t) BYIE IR & o

EDLREMAF R EREHUERE
DECHEMA GOFREFIGRER) S E -

HEYIEEE HEHAS R A
FHBSEE
)
BB ARE 3ESF
_E 3104
B 204
EREEE— BRI E A
LYIES FH(BSEE
BEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BWEE

L 4
Property
Customer management Service  Computer
relationship contracts contracts software Goodwill Total
nE
ERE% BEAY Bes  ERHRG S fazt
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETRT AREFT ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 RIBZ-F
—-B—-H
Opening net book amount FNREEE 17,080 7,689 1,299 — 24232 50,300
Accumulated amortisation B £ (102) (107) (4) - - (213)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 16,978 7,582 1,295 - 24,032 50,087
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-F-—4
+ZB=1+-BLEFE
Opening net book amount ENREEE 16,978 7,582 1,295 - 24,232 50,087
Additions e - - - 4,348 - 4,348
Amortisation (note 10) &3 (13 10) (2,439) (2,563) (691) (354) - (6,047)
Net book amount REFE 14,539 5,019 604 3,994 24,232 48,388
As at 31 December 2021 A\ZEZ-F
+-B=+-H
Opening net book amount FENREEE 17,080 7,689 1,299 4348 24232 54,648
Accumulated amortisation Retiy (2,541) (2,670) (95) (354) - (6,260)
Closing net book amount FREETE 14539 5019 604 3,99 24232 48388
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-F_-Z
+ZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount ERESE 14,539 5,019 604 3,994 24,232 48,388
Amortisation (note 10) & (113 10) (2,440) (2,563) (604) (633) - (6,240)
Net book amount FEFE 12,099 2,456 — 3,361 24,232 42,148
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZ%
+ZA=+-H
Opening net book amount FREFE 17,080 7,689 1,299 4,348 24,232 54,648
Accumulated amortisation g6 (4,981) (5,233) (1,299) (987) - (12,500)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 12,099 2,456 - 3,361 24,232 42,148

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #%F —&F — —#+_F =+—HIFFZ

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Customer relationship 7 years
Property Management Contracts 3 -4 years
Service contracts 1-2years
Computer software 5years

Except for the computer software, the Group’ s intangible assets
were acquired as part of business combinations in prior years.

Impairment test for contracts and customer relationship

The Group engaged as external, independent and qualified
valuer to determine the impairment assessment of the Group’s
contracts and customer relationship.

Discussion of the valuation process are results had been
held between management and the valuer in respect of the
impairment assessment as at the reporting date.

Methods and key assumptions in determining the recoverable
amounts of the customer relationship, property management

17.

AR A M HRRIEE
ﬂﬁ/ﬁé (nﬂ)
AEBMR TR EAEREHEA
EREAFHNETLEE !
ZEREAE 43
LF@%AEED” 3‘4$
HE%X A /\\/] 1‘2 EE
TR 5%

BRETEEIIES > ERRIBEFER
BaH—80  c2EENETEE
BFUEE -

BHRERRFNRERR

AEEBING  BIRADREE
TR EAEESNRE SRR E
B o

B ERENmaEEBRGE
Bt #R S B AR E ST R L BY A4S
Bo

BER_FT__F+-RB=1t—H%
FE% - MEEESHRRB AR

contracts and service contracts as at 31 December 2022 are AU Bl REN 755 R E BRI EN
disclosed as follows: T
{
Expected
life of the
intangible
Valuation techniques Discount rate assets
mEZEEN
fh{ERL i BAIRE TRHEAFHA
Customer relationship Discounted cash flow 18.3% - 22.6% 7 years
B REMA IR R E THE
Property management contracts Discounted cash flow 18.3% - 22.6% 3-4years
MEEESH RN E 3-44F
Service contracts Discounted cash flow 18.3% - 22.6% 1-2years
RIEEH BIRIRE T E 1-24

Based on the impairment assessment, the recoverable of the
customer relationship, property management contracts and
service contracts are higher than their carrying values and no
impairment was recognised for the year (2021: nil).

RIEREN G BRMEG WEERE
BN RRE SN TR E£3E 570
HIEAE > SFNITERAE(CS
e S I

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
20225 ERE

201



202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17.
Impairment test for goodwill

The Group engaged as external, independent and qualified
valuer to determine the impairment assessment of the Group’s
goodwill.

Discussion of the valuation process are results had been
held between management and the valuer in respect of the
impairment assessment as at the reporting date.

The goodwill arose as part of business combinations in prior
years and were determined at the respective acquisition dates,
being the differences between the purchase considerations and
the fair values of net identifiable assets of acquirees.

The Group’ s goodwill is attributable to the following CGUs which
is relating to the property management, healthcare services and
others businesses of the Group:

B EE (B
P E B E R

FEBZEING » BIUKRGERMGE
B E A S B i B AR EFTE ©

B ERENmAEEERGE
BB ¥R S B AL R (E ST R L BY A4S
Bo

RIBFEFEFESEBGHHN—DM
EENEERRNSENWERRE
TE B BB AU E R U 5 B psT %
BEEATENERE-

NEFEFERRERN U T BARERY)E
BIE - BERGREMESFARENIER
BELEEM

L 4
2022 2021
—=-C T —F
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR¥EFT ARETIT
Wuhu Senlin Property Management AT ARMYEEIE
Co., Ltd. (“Wuhu Senlin”) and BIRAE (TEMHFM) &
its subsidiaries (“Wuhu Senlin Group”) HIBAE (TEMHHRMER)) 15,952 15,952
Weiye International Investments BEBBRKERRAR
Company Limited (MEEEE ) RENE AT
(“Weiye International’) (MRXERER))
and its subsidiaries
(“Weiye International Group”) 8,272 8,272
Others Hith 8 8
24,232 24,232

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #F —&F — 4+ _F =+—HIFFEZ

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. BREE (&)
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) EERERE (&)
The following table sets forth each key assumption on which TREFN _Z_—_FE+_B=+—
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake HEEEHMEFrZREELBEUN
impairment assessment of goodwill for two significant CGUs as B ETRE R E RS R ETE AP
at 31 December 2022: RIBENEIBEFEMER !
L 4
Weiye
Wuhu Senlin International
Key assumptions and inputs Group Group
FERIREARBE HPBMER BEERER
- Revenue - 2023 to 2027 —WmE- T =FF 3.0% - 5.0% 17.6% -41.1%
(2021: 2022 to 2026) Tt (2021: 3.0%)  (2021: 3.9% - 60.2%)
(% annual growth rate) (B —%F: (ZBZ—4% :3.0%) (B _—%F
BT FF 3.9% - 60.2%)
TTITRE)
(FIBEZE %)
- Gross margin (% of revenue) — B = (b Uz %) 26.6% 56.3% - 58.2%
(2021: 29.7% - 30.4%) (2021: 61.0%)

—E—fF: (CEZ—F:61.0%)
29.7% - 30.4%)

- Long-term growth rate —REABRE 3.0% 3.0%
(2021: 3.0%) (2021: 3.0%)
(ZZ——F: (ZBEZ—%F:3.0%)
3.0%)
- Pre-tax discount rate — BRI AR IR 22.6% 18.3%
(2021: 20.7%) (2021: 18.3%)
(ZE=—% . (ZB—%:
20.7%) 18.3%)

ANNUALREPORT 2022 923
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

Management determines growth rate of revenue and gross
margin of Wuhu Senlin Group and Weiye International Group
based on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The terminal growth rate applied beyond the
budget period is estimated based on industry forecast. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the recoverable amounts
of the CGU in Wuhu Senlin Group and Weiye International
Group are higher than their carrying amounts. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs are determined based on value-in-
use (VIU) calculations. The VIU was determined by applying
discounted cash flow model on pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a 5-year period. The calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from each CGU or groups
of CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value.

By reference to the result of such VIU calculation in the
impairment assessment, management determined that no
impairment provision on goodwill was required as at 31
December 2022 (2021: nil).

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

17.

BREE (A
5 2 aY R E R ()

EEERBEETRBRERTSER
REEHHMER R BEERERD
WA REREFK - SREAEFTA
RIGBEXDERITERAETH
5t o PTAZAEIRE B RINAD * I iR
REELBUARZARERR

RIE__H#R-ZT_—%+°A
=+—B’ EHIRMERREEERE
EENREELBUZAIROEES
REREE - REEE B2 ARG
THENHRBEEREEFHEEE - £/
BEREREEEHENRES FHH
HIREEABRRAIRESRERARR
RERBRUMET - ZtEERE
SRS RBRREES BN
REETBUREEZRKRRERE
REBZARE > LIGtEERE -
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBImRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

18. HBiEmZAARNKRE

[

Notes 2022 2021
B 5E —E-C =
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARHEFIT

Interests in: R TFEIEN#ER
- Associates —BE AT (a) 1,661 1,458
- Joint ventures —aEhE (b) 2,242 1,950
3,903 3,408

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are as follows:

RizaiEnRRGE R kEthEE
Wea RARESRBIEEAM T ¢

@
Notes 2022 2021
B 5E = =T
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AR®TT ABREFIT
Share of results of associates N NS (a) 250 388
Share of results of joint ventures PR EE S (b) 805 1,757
1,055 2,145
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no share of = —— —E-—-%+_H

capital commitments or contingent liability in relation to the
Group’ s joint ventures and associates.

=t+—H AEERERALEESE

TEERME QBT BRNEAREEIN

RETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 18. ¥RETEARRIIGE (B)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Interests in associates (a) MEEATINER

{

2022 2021
bt - 2 =T —F
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T

At 1 January n—B—H 1,458 1,070

Deregistration of an associate HEHsE M — R A S (47) -

Share of results of associates FEAL B AT A 250 388

At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 1,661 1,458

Details of each of the Group’s principal associates at the AEFENRESHRNE T EH

end of the reporting period are as follows: ERABNFENT

{

Principal
place of % of ownership
Name of entity business indirectly held interest Principal activities
Bie2E TESEMEY HEFENMEEEZ% IEXH
2022 2021
IR ZT—F
Gongging City High-tech PRC 49% 49%  Property management
Zone Chuangxin Redco services in the PRC
Property Service Co., Ltd.
HERT MR IEMERBERAT P EREIREYEEIERD
Gongging City Gold Medal Property PRC 49% 49%  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
HERDE R ERB AR AT P TEREIREYEEIERS
Love Care Redco (Shanghai) Senior PRC - 20%  Provision of healthcare
Care Service Co., Ltd. (note services in the PRC
below)
ERENS (LE)BERBARAR P (RTX THER HERE R
MiEE)

Note:  The associate was deregistered on 23 December 2022 and Mist : FMERARNRZZEZ_F
thus, the Company recognised a loss on deregistration of +ZAZ+=BHHET
the associate of approximately RMB47,000 during the year fit > Fit > ARBEEZ
ended 31 December 2022. - "F+"HB=1+—H

(- E SR N S M B
ATIRBBAAREE 47,000
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details
of other associates would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The associates held by the Group have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the associates
are private companies with no quoted market price
available for their shares.

Summatrise financial information of associates

The Directors consider that none of the associates were
significant to the Group and thus the individual financial
information of the associates was not disclosed.

Aggregate information of associates are as following:

18. #EMEzIEAIRMIRE ()

(a)

REE AR B (&)

EREIEERHETBRER
ERXENEEREBNER
BERT c ERVARMHEH
thEE A BNFIEEERTE
BRTTR °

rEBEFRFHEQATDEANR
FEREZER -FIARER
B/ FANRT > HER O I
HIHHE

HEL A BERE

EXZRR BEMEATHE
EERMERTE W HILER
BIERBBIIMHER -

BEATREBERNT !

{
2022 2021
g TET 4
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ARETFT
The Group’ s share of profit and loss A E AL a5 18
for the year, net HRE 250 388
The Group' s share of AEERLEMPE T
other comprehensive income — —
The Group’ s share of total AEEEGEEmINELLEE
comprehensive income 250 388
Aggregate carrying amount of KEENZFHE AT SN
the Group’ s interests IRMEAE(E
in these associates 1,661 1,458
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Interests in joint ventures

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

18. #EMEzIEAIRMIRE ()

2022 2021

- -

RMPB 000 RMB 000

AREBTT ARETFT

At beginning of the year TRER] 1,950 805
Disposal of a joint venture HE—B&a=EhE (8) —
Dividend income & B IA (505) (612)
Share of results of joint ventures R EE b EEE 805 1,757
2,242 1,950

Details of each of the Group’s principal joint ventures at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RBESHATERSTEGE

Name of entity

REMFENT
Principal
place of % of ownership
business indirectly held interest Principal activities

BERE TEEE MY BESENAMEEEZ% IEXH
2022 2021
B CF —BC—F
Jiangxi Province Guogao Property PRC 51% 51%  Provision of property
Services Limited management services
in the PRC
IREBEEMERBEIRAS fhEY TERER MY EEIERTS
Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd. PRC 51% 51%  Provision of property
management services
in the PRC
BEREVEARAT HhEY TERER MY E EIERTS
Xixian New District Qinhan New City PRC 50% 50%  Provision of property
Junyue Family Property management services
Management Co., Ltd. in the PRC
AR REMREMERYEERERAT HE ERBIHR Y E AR TS
Foshan Aimeijia Property Service Co., Ltd.  PRC — 49%  Provision of property
(note management services
below) in the PRC
(RFxhizE)
BUTEEENERBERLAE HE EHBIR Y E E AR

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 18. ¥RETEARRIIGE (B)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued) (b) MEELERNRER (&)

Note:  The joint venture was incorporated by the Group in
September 2021 and the entity has been inactive since
then. The Group disposed of its entire equity interests in
this entity to an independent third party to the Group,
at nil consideration in year 2022 and thus, the Company
recognised a loss on disposal of the joint venture of
approximately RMB8,000 during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give
details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The Group has joint control over the above entities under
contractual agreements, and unanimous consent is
required from all parties for all relevant activities of the
entities.

The joint ventures held by the Group have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the joint
ventures are private companies with no quoted market
price available for their shares.

MizE . ZeEEHAEERT
T —FhAEMMRIL
AZENBABE B
BEEMIUK—EER
IEEENAAE o REEMRT
T TENUTRERZE
REIREHE FAESR
BEIIE=F 0 Bt ’ A
RABE_E_"F+Z
B=+—HILFEm®R
ESEhEBBOARE
8,0007T °

EREIEEDHETBRER
EREENEERERNEAR
BEEhE EFRIRREHHA
thEEEENFRETERFE
BRTTR °

AEBREAHIGES L E
BARUAEHE MAAEL
WA E—BREPTRTHE
BRI -

rEBEFRFEERERANR
rEREEER FIAEGEDR
FHEBMARE > ER I E
HIHRIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

NERBREERRAR

18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 18. #HiERZARMNKRE (8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued) (b) MEERENED (B)
Summarise financial information of joint ventures HE P EHMBEERE
The Directors consider that none of the joint ventures were E5TA BMEGEREHK
significant to the Group and thus the individual financial EEEREATE HEE
information of the joint ventures was not disclosed. BaELENBUMBER o
Aggregate information of joint ventures are as following SEPENELASENT
L
2022 2021
k. b BT
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFT
The Group' s share of profit and loss REBBIGFEN RN REE
for the year, net HER 805 1,757
The Group’ s share of AEBERGEMEEE
other comprehensive income — —
The Group’ s share of total AEEEGEEINELLEE
comprehensive income 805 1,757
Aggregate carrying amount of REERZEAERE
the Group’ s interests in these REHBIARE AR E
joint ventures 2,242 1,950
REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED



19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred income tax assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

19. IBEFRSIREE (BR)

NG EMBRRERNZIIME * &
TIEIEFFSMEERAREHRIE - U
TRMMFBRE BBV S VIELERE

deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes: KRR
{

2022 2021
2 F T
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFIT
Deferred income tax assets EEFTISIMEE 23,767 6,938
Deferred income tax liabilities FEIEFTEMM AR (5,705) (7,212)
18,062 (274)

The movements in the net deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

BEPRSIRE E (B fR) P

are as follows: T
L
RMB 000
AR¥TFT
At 1 January 2021 RW_E-_—F—HF—H (3,495)
Credited to consolidated statement of FFAGEIEER
profit or loss 3,221
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 N2 —F+"A=+—HK
2 _F—HF—H (274)
Credited to consolidated statement of FFAGEIB@mR
profit or loss 18,336
At 31 December 2022 N2 _F+-"A=+—H 18,062
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBIRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E —ZF_—

=

19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

FrZA=F—HIFE

19.

The following are the major deferred income tax assets and

BIEFRSMEE (BR) (B)
UTRRER KRBT FEEESNER

liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the current RIEPRSHEERBEREES) :
and prior years:
{
Impairment
of financial
assets Tax losses Total
ERMBEERE fRIERSIE “act
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT ARYET T
Deferred income tax EEPASIR B EELE
assets comprise:
At 1 January 2021 N ZE—F—HF—H 2,144 3,101 5,245
Credited to consolidated FFAGREBImE
statement of profit or loss 872 821 1,693
At 31 December 2021 and AT
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—Hk
B F—HF—H 3,016 3,922 6,938
Credited (charged) to sTA (0ERE)
consolidated statement of frREEmR
profit or loss 17,287 (458) 16,829
At 31 December 2022 = —
+=A=+—8 20,303 3,464 23,767
{
Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of
subsidiaries Total
g
B AT
REEFE “act
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETT
Deferred income tax liabilities comprise: — IEIEFFSI EEEIE
At 1 January 2021 rCEC—F—B—H (8,740) (8,740)
Credited to consolidated statement of FFAGREETmE
profit or loss 1,528 1,528
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 WRZE-_—&+"F=+—H
kRZZEZZF—H—H (7,212) (7,212)
Credited to consolidated statement of STAGREETmR
profit or loss 1,507 1,507
At 31 December 2022 W2 ZF+ZRA=+—H (5,705) (5,705)

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #%F —&F — —#+_F =+—HIFFZ

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of approximately RMB2,952,000 (2021:
RMB1,714,000) in respect of losses incurred by the Group’ s PRC
subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB11,806,000 (2021:
RMB6,856,000), that can be carried forward for one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable income.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group's
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008. The Company controls
the dividend policy of its subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2022, the Directors do not have an intention to distribute the
retained earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred
income tax liabilities of approximately RMB15,880,000 (2021:
RMB13,555,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of these subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group’ s unremitted earnings totalled approximately
RMB158,796,000 (2021: RMB135,549,000).

19.

BEFRISRMEE (RR) (&)

BEPRSIREET N A IR AR IR
KB SR EEREN mERT
FLAGES IR 1R RERD o

RIBEZ_F+-RA=+—H"%&
EEWARMAERBYTEME LR
FTEERNBEN AR 11,806,000
T(ZEZ—F AK¥6,856,000
7o) BRI SIREEN AR
2,952,000 c(ZZ2Z—F: ARK
1,714,0007T) * ZESEAIGEE—EH
FLURSHARRIERIUIA o

REARRE P B EFR SRR Kk
¥ RAEENTENBATE_E
ZENE—B—BEEMEEFmEIK
BIBR B BEBMTEINRIEILER - AA
FEFEMNBATNREBER - 1
R TE+RB=+—H’ EEE
BEDRETHBATNRERF A
IE T8 SR LS T B A B R BB B2 ) FE
ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ&ﬂmﬁﬁﬁfﬁkﬁ

SHMEENARE 15,880,000 7T (=
7_:4£ A R#13,555,0007T) °
ATE - —F+_HB=+—H &
EEREHBMNBEOAARE
158,796,000t (T - —F: A B
1 135,549,000 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 20. B REMEWIERTAIRIE
{
Notes 2022 2021
F5E === B —F
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ANRETFT
Trade receivables comprise: B S EWGIEEIE - (a)
- Receivables from related parties — FEUS BRI B 75 =18 109,903 60,820
- Receivables from third parties —EWE =18 133,459 76,020
243,362 136,840
Less: Impairments W ORE (e) (54,475) (7,448)
188,887 129,392
Other receivables comprise: Bty Em e . (b)
- Receivables due from property owners — —JEURZEF 1A () 6,364 6,111
- Advances to employees —BRTES 655 467
- Other receivables — HAhFEURIE 6,246 3,087
- Refundable Deposits for the — B BEEATZAM (d)
Nine Target Companies AREBREE 30,803 —
- Other deposits —Hhizs 3,566 3,358
47,634 13,023
Less: Impairments B ORE (e) (498) (92)
47,136 12,931
Trade and Other receivables B 5 R E R IE 236,023 142,323
Prepayments comprise: FETHIEEIE -
Prepaid listing expenses Faft LR = 5,192
Other prepayments HFE(IRIE 24,156 2,682
24,156 8,474
260,179 150,797
Analysed as: PalilF=
Current BIHA 244,066 150,797
Non-current JERDER 16,113 —
260,179 150,797

214  REDCOHEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Notes:

(a)

20. BHEREMEBWRIERRAGRE

(CONTINUED) (48)
Mzt :
Trade receivables (a) EBEZEKHIE
As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with RZE2E-_—F—F—H’kEBEF
customers, net of allowances amounted to approximately EHIBE FREUGRIE N EHE) 4
RMB90,602,000. # AR190,602,000 7T ©
Trade receivables mainly arise from property management service BREWNRBTEELEMEEE
income, value-added services as provided to non-property owners, ARFSUA ~ IRIEFIEE TG ERR
community healthcare services and IT and intelligent construction B HERERT KT R R
services. ARTS o
Property management services income is received in accordance MEEERBWAKBERART %
with the terms of the relevant services agreements. Service income EHHRRUE - FRETESEEE
from property management services is due for payment by the BRI EZ R RN EE R
residents upon the issuance of demand note. ARFSUTA ©
Receivables from related parties mainly represented trade FEU AR S T IB E B8 2k B 1 m i
receivables from Redco Properties Group, associates and joint EEE - IetERENBATN
ventures of Redco Properties and its subsidiaries details of which BE AT REEPENE R
are set out in note 35(b)(ii). I8 HEFBEAMIEE 35(b)(ii) ©
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables presented B S RWGERIE (U m kR A%
based on revenue recognition date. 25 IR DT T ©
L 4
2022 2021
ZEZCHE TET—&F
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ARBFT ARBTT
0 - 30 days 0&30K 155,089 67,181
31-60days 31E60K 6,458 10,618
61 - 90 days 61FE 90K 4,705 7,208
91 - 180 days 91ZF 180Kk 13,012 24,480
181 - 365 days 181F 365K 27,530 22,773
Over 365 days #8318 365 K 36,568 4,580
243,362 136,840
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REEE S RWGEIENEREE 5 U
denominated in RMB. AREEEHE ©
Other receivables (b)  EfhpEURIAE

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair
values and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables are
denominated in RMB.

HMEWRIENREESEEATE
BERASERE « RERARER
fEiE -
FEBEMBURFRNREED MU
ARIBEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMTBIERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8% —F = —F+—F =+—HIFF/E

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 20.

(CONTINUED)
Notes:(Continued)
(c) Receivables due from property owners

Receivables due from property owners mainly represented utilities
costs of properties paid on behalf of property owners.

(d) Refundable Deposits for the Nine Target Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group proposed
to acquire Nine Target Companies and between October
and December 2022, the Group has paid a total amount of
approximately RMB30.8 million as refundable and interest-free
deposits to the sellers for these Nine Target Companies.

In 2023, the Refundable Deposits has been fully refunded to the
Group.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

B 5% R E W IE KR TR (I RIE

(%)

M5

(c)

(&)
FEURZE ERUE

R ETRETEEAREESN
BrREREE -

MAEERABZANEIRERS
£

BHE_Z-_-_F+"HB=+—HI
FECAEERBENBEEEZER
I AEER _ZE-__F+A=E
+ - AEMEZENEEEATMA
B ZMREOARE308EET
HARERERER o

NIZE =% oREREREE
FURBYARER o



(CONTINUED)

Notes:(Continued)

(e) Impairments of trade and other receivables

The movements of provision for impairment of trade and other

receivables are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

20. BHEREMEWRIERANRE

(#8)

MiEE ()

(e)

B 5 R EMENRIERE

B 5 R EME W R B 2 E)
mr

{ 4
Trade Other
receivables  receivables Total
ESRWRIE  HftEkIE st
RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT
Opening loss allowance as RZE_—%—F—H
at 1 January 2021 B E BB EE 3,681 213 3,894
Impairment loss recognised in KB ARERRHE
profit or loss, net of reversal 518 0 MFREE
(note 8) (GED) 3,767 (121) 3,646
Closing loss allowance as RZIZZ—%F
at 31 December 2021 +ZA=+—HH8
FREBER 7,448 92 7,540
Impairment loss recognised in KB ANRERRHE
profit or loss, net of reversal 518 0 RREE
(note 8) (GED) 47,027 406 47,433
Closing loss allowance as RIZZZHF
at 31 December 2022 +ZHE=1+—H
WEREBER 54,475 498 54,973
Net provision for impairment losses of trade receivables has been B EUGRIEN R EBIBFEED
included in net provision for impairment losses of financial assets FAGEERRNEMEERERS
of the consolidated statements of profit or loss. Amounts charged BIEEE o STARERNSER
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is TEHARE IR B S RERF SN o
no expectation of recovering the amount.
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables. BEZ T R4

B=+—HLFENEZRHEM
L R T 30 1 BT {2t 5 1 DS B B
33(b)(iv) ©

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in
note 33(b)(iv).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RERBSZEY
L
2022 2021
—==C T
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: RERIREFBEMEIE
- Cash at bank and on hand —R1TIRERFHERE 149,106 123,652

The carrying amounts of the Group’ s cash and cash equivalents
are equivalent to their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

FAEBNRERIFEEFEYNREE
BEHEATEESLLTIEEHE !

[
2022 2021
—E-C S -2
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AEETIT
RMB AR 133,982 121,616
Uss$ %7 50 85
HKS ETT 15,074 1,951
149,106 123,652

The cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are mainly
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of such
balances out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and
concluded that the probability of defaults of the counterparty
banks are insignificant as the Group only transacts with
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 33(b)(iv).

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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22.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

22. BHEMAMRIE - Bt ERAREMAE

fIFRIE
{
Notes 2022 2021
B 5 —E_C —E
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Trade payables BB RIE (a) 13,703 18,513
Accruals and other payables JESTE AR AMETHE
comprise: BiF
- Accruals and other payables —FEsTE AR EMENRIE 63,060 41,711
- Accruals for listing expenses — st EREX — 3,631
- Consideration payable — B (b) 2,413 2,155
- Other tax payables —HAENIRIE 7,399 4,550
- Salary payables —EfEE 5,900 5,003
78,772 57,050
Less: Non-current L IETE (b) = (2,155)
78,772 54,895
Note: Mzt -
(@) As at 1 January 2021, trade payables amounted to approximately (a) MITZ-_—F—HF—H’ B5EM

RMB9,790,000. IEA A AR 9,790,000 7T ©

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice BRI 0 IR ARES

dates was as follows:

DI -

L

2022 2021

T 22—
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AEREFT
0 - 30 days 0&30XK 10,359 12,350
31-60 days 31260k 52 550
61 - 90 days 61ZE90XK 565 1,431
Over 91 days BBl X 2,727 4,182
13,703 18,513

FEHEZRARENREERAR
THINE M EE AT EREE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

22. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22.

(CONTINUED)

(b) Accruals and other payables - Consideration Payable

The amount of approximately RMB2,413,000 (2021: RMB2,155,000)
represent the outstanding consideration (“Consideration
Payable”) relating to the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Wuhu Senlin”) in 2020.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of trade
and other payables were mainly denominated in RMB.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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BB EMATRIE - Bt ERRAEME

f37RIE (48)
(b) EstERREMERIE—

RIS RIE

8 ANR 2413000 (Z =
——%F: AR%2,155,0007T)
RE— T TFIRBENTHR
MY EEEBRAR (TEMAFK
1) AR R EEAE (A
RE) -

B ER-B—
+ZB=+—H’ 8 xHEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. AH&EaRE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related RERE DU T EARAERNEA
contract liabilities: =R
{
As at 31 December As at 1 January
nr+=ZB=+—H r—A—H
2022 2021 2021
“ECCF & T F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AR%TTT AREFTT ARBEFIT
Property management services MEBIER 72,630 58,723 48,253
Value-added services to FEEFILERT
non-property owners 10,622 9,661 13,166
Community value-added services HEIEERY 3,351 1,729 518
Healthcare services BREMRT 2,634 3,841 -
IT and intelligent IT K2 B ER AR
construction services 9,278 2,373 —
98,515 76,327 61,937
Notes: Mt
(a)  Significant changes in contract liabilities (a) BHNEBEZEXREF)
The directors consider that the amount is within normal operating EEDAZEHEBN —KEXEH
cycle and thus, the amount was included under current liabilities. R AL ZEWESATHE
'fﬁ o
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance rEENSHNEBETIERERRHE
payments made by customers while the underlying services are IR BRI HABRART - #E
yet to be provided. During the years ended 31 December 2022 ECERE_—F+_A1
and 2021, the increase in contract liabilities was mainly due to =+—HLEFE > aNaENIEMm
the expansion of business volume from business development FEHARRBEBRLEREHVER
activities. BIEAPTEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBImRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z
23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Revenue recognition in relating to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

23. aWRFEGE)
ERC)

(b)

MENBRRESNE

TRETRAFMEEESVNERE
SRR R o

{
2022 2021
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included ATV AN EEER
in the contract liabilities balances at I EREEE I
the beginning of the year
- Property management services —MEBERY 49,259 42,652
- Value-added services to —IEE T RERY
non-property owners 743 13,166
- Community healthcare services —HEREERY 625 -
- Community valued-added services —H&IBERY 69 518
50,696 56,336
(c)  Unsatisfied performance obligations (c) REMBHEME

For property management services, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount that according to the payment terms. The Group has
elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts. Majority of
the property management services contracts do not have a fixed
term.

For value-added services to non-property owners and community
value-added services, they are rendered in short period of time,
which is generally less than a year, and the Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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HPRMEEERBMS * AEER
BRI DA SR o 2EEE
SEEFCTTRERE  UEHBAR
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #F —&F — 4+ _F =+—HIFFEZ

24, SRITREMER

{
Notes 2022 2021
B 5 —E-C =
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ARETFTT
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERR 18,253 10,231
The carrying amounts of bank and other  RIEERBEREN
borrowings based on scheduled TEEENHE
repayment dates set out in the BIERIT R EL &R
loan agreements RIEREE
Within one year or demand —FERTIZER 9,079 962
More than one year, —FEM FERBIERE
but not more than two years 1,147 969
More than two years, MEM EERBIB R
but not more than five years 3,440 2,996
More than five years AEME 4,587 5,304
18,253 10,231
The carrying amounts of bank and other  RER B4 ML
borrowings that become immediately IR B SR
due and payable due to breach of loan ~ EREEERAVEITR
covenants and/or contain a repayment  HMERNREE 2
on demand clause which was shown NN REEEET
under current liabilities (18,253) (10,231)
Amounts shown under JEREBamE|ET
non-current liabilities E et = —
Analysed as: DA
- Variable-rates borrowings —ZEFEER 10,161 10,231
- Fixed-rates borrowings —EEMEMER 8,092 -
18,253 10,231
Analysed as: DA
- Secured ar=Fiiwi 10,161 10,231
- Unsecured — ERIE I 8,092 —
18,253 10,231
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

20225 ERE



224

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

24. BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate of bank
borrowing and other borrowings was approximately 3.87%
(2021: 1.50%).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group' s bank and other borrowing
was charged with interest rate from 1.5% to 11.34% per annum
(2021: HIBOR plus 1.3% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’ s bank and other borrowings
of RMB10,161,000 (2021: RMB10,231,000) was secured by the
pledge of certain properties (note 16) with a carrying amount of
RMB28,157,000 (2021: RMB26,772,000) and guaranteed by the
Company. Besides, the Group s bank and other borrowings of
RMB8,092,000 (2021: nil) was guaranteed by the management of
the certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’ s bank and other borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB8,092,000 were defaulted due
to the overdue payments of principal and/or interest of the
Group and/or cross-defaulted resulting from the default events
happened in respect of any of its related parties, shareholders
or ultimate beneficial owners of the Group in accordance with
the clauses in the respective loan agreements. As a result of the
default and cross-default payments of the borrowings by Redco
Properties Group, the Controlling shareholder of the Company,
the cross default clauses of certain of the Group s bank and
other borrowings were triggered. Thus, the Group’ s bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB8,092,000 would be
immediately due if requested by the lenders and are classified
as current liabilities.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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24,

IR1T R E fthfE 7k (48)

RIEZ_F+ZB=+—H" R
TEAREMEFRNERMNENS
3.87% (ZE=—4F : 1.50%) ©

RZE2__HF+ZHA=+—H’%XK
ERIRTRAMBRENF 1L5%E
11.34% 2 BMFENR (T2 " —F :
HERITEIZEF S0 1.3% BEF=K)

B8 -

RZE--_F#+Z"F=+—8"
REEBNBTEREMERARE
10,161,000 c(Z &2 - —F: AR
#10,231,00070) LUE F ¥ % (Mt 5%
16) IR EIE R IREEAARKE
28,157,000 c(ZE - —4F . AR
26,772,0007T) > WHARQBER ©
IESh » REEMRITREMERAR
18,092,000 C(Z&E - —4F : ) /A
KABVETHBRBEEBIER

N _F+"B=+—H &&E
ERIT R EMEREBNEBENAAR
#8,092,000 7t ° RAEAEE B
TR EER, WA B HERER
A - REIRKERHEEA
RIES BEERIRREREEEBNEG
MERRZXIELN o AR AR BHERE
ROetEEEZEEEREBORRIXY
BN BETARERI DR
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AEEMNRTAEAMEROARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

(a)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

25. THE&E

(a)

RFEMBRTRAEDH
L]

REMBRRAEERTUTAER
HERTER

|,
2022 2021
—E--F o
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARETFTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
- Properties (note 16) — 4% (MI5E 16) 13,654 14,374
Payables under lease liabilities HESRE T EMRIE
Within one year or demand —FERIZEK 682 366
More than one year, but not more —FEU EETRBIEME
than two years 134 146
More than two years, but not more ME EERBIBRF
than five years 486 467
More than five years AFEMUE 2,871 2,956
4,173 3,935
Analysed as: DA -
- Current — & 682 366
- Non-current —3EmE 3,491 3,569
4,173 3,935

Additions and modification to the right-of-use assets
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were
RMB1,247,000 and RMB2,579,000 respectively.

The Company did not have any additions and modification
to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately RMB108,000 (2021:
RMB2,172,000).

ME-B-—F+A=f—
AL FRREENTE
RAEE ST A RE 1,247,000
TR AR 2,579,000 7T °

BE_Z-__F+-RA=*+—
HIEFE ® AABLEERE
FREEENRBERIEN -

BE_Z-__F+-RA=*+—
AIEFEMNEERS ML A
A » AR 108,000 (=
T-—F: AR¥2172,000
7o) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

25. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

25. HEARGE)

(b)

RFEMBHRRAEINE
L]

GeaBmRBTUTERES
BIEER

L
2022 2021
—E—- —E=——
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARETFTT
Depreciation charge of EREEE
right-of-use assets TEKRE
- Properties —M% 720 635
Interest expenses FEMZ
(included in financial costs) (Bt ARRE R A) 346 217
Expenses relating to short-term leases  ARAEHHEENFES 742 2,064

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 2 months to 26 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE CAPITAL

26. K&

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are as AT AEEEFFIENT ¢
follows:
{
Share capital
Number R
Notes of shares HKS 000 RMB' 000
Pirst ROH#E TER ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE0.1 BTz LER
Authorised: ETE
At 10 February 2021 (date of RZEZ—5"F+H
incorporation of the Company), (RABEFMAL ) -
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 —E-_—&5+"B=+—H
h_E-"F—-F—H (a) 3,800,000 380 316
Increase in authorised share capital IR AR A (b) 996,200,000 99,620 80,792
As at 31 December 2022 RIZEZZE+ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 81,108
Issued and fully paid BETRERE
At 10 February 2021 (date of RZIEZ—§"F+H
incorporation of the Company), (RABEHMAL ) -
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 —E-_—&5+"B=+—H
kZE2-_"%—-F—H (a) 1 - -
Insurance of shares upon Reorganisation B#%& TR (a) 3 - -
As at 31 December 2021 and R_E_—&+-A=+—H
1 January 2022 P — =y = RS 4 - -
Capitalisation Issue BRI ) 149,999,996 15,000 12,165
Issuance of New Shares BT (d) 50,000,000 5,000 4,055
As at 31 December 2022 RIEZZH+-A=+—H 200,000,000 20,000 16,220
Notes: g

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10
February 2021 as an exempted company with limited liability. As
of the date of incorporation, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 ordinary shares
of HKS0.1 each, among which one fully paid share was issued
and allotted at par to the initial subscriber. On the same day, the
one share was transferred at par to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Redco Properties, TGIl. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, on 2 June
2021, the Company issued 3 shares to TGl in exchanging for the
equity interest in certain operating companies of the Group from
Redco Properties.

EABR _E-_—F_A+B8%E
HERSHMKRIAKREER
REc BEFMAILER &R
BAE PR #4380,0008 7T’ 95
3,800,000 & K EE0.1E T 1Y
Bk EF—REHERMHER
HEEET RS FIEBEA - F
H’> —REHOBZEESEET TG
(IIEHENZERBAR) © Rik
EH R —FESAH’ &
NEIETGIEITIIRARHD > LUAER
NEMERAEEETEEATN
AEHE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 14 March 2022, the Company increased its authorised share
capital from HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 ordinary shares of
HKS0.1 each to HK$100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKS$0.1 each by the creation of an additional 996,200,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholder of the Company
passed on 14 March 2022, subject to the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the issue of the offer
shares under the Global Offering, the Directors are authorised to
allot and issue a total of 149,999,996 shares credited as fully paid
at par to TGl. by way of capitalisation of HK$14,999,999 (equivalent
to approximately RMB12,165,000) standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company (the “Capitalisation
Issue”).

On 31 March 2022, the Company issued 50,000,000 shares at
HKS4.1 each through an initial public offering of shares and
net proceeds of approximately HKS$154.8 million (before listing
expenses) (the “Issuance of New Shares’). The Company s shares
were then listed on the Main Board on 31 March 2022.

The new issued shares shall rank par passu in all respect with
each other in the share capital of the Company.

Other than the above, there were no movements in the share
capital of the Company for both years.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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7] i 1B 1 3R %8 91996,200,000 A%
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TORBENARS > RPRER
REEETEERMMARNER
ARMEERME EFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

27. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Hong Kong

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represent contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. No
forfeited contributions have been used to reduce the level of
contributions in the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, respectively.

The Mainland China

The employees of the Group' s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of the Mainland China. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the state-managed retirement
benefit scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme contributions
amounted to RMB20,391,000 (2021: RMB16,225,000). No
forfeited contributions have been used to reduce the level of
contributions in the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, respectively.

27.

BIAEFIETE
BB

FEBE2MAHEBREERIZA
FIME RSB (TRREETE)) - 58
R st BITHARFEH I AR 5T EIF
PRIt ARE S B EERER °
BREHECEERAERCEED
A > THBUREAEE - R
BEEFEZRA BEREESS
BABBREEEHIZRAIEEZ
EERSTHZ MM - ZEEBEREE
stE|Z E—BERRERES S EIE
EFRRE R ©

RéraEmRPINR BB R8I E
FRRIRER 5T B RIS A EE E st
ERANEELEXENREE ZMHR o 10
BE_S-_—FR-S--&+-A°
=t+—HIEMBEEER * HEFNEL
YR AR R KT ©

F ] P 3t

AEBPEAMKBARNEESH
FREIAY I B B 2 R B R B IR KA
FMEHEIBRRE - ZFWBAR EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBImRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z
28. COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, significant capital expenditure
contracted for but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Capital commitments and property development
commitments

28. &KiE

(a) Bz

R-EZ—F+=A=+—
B BiTARER A A EN
FAERZHMT :

BAREERY)EREAE

e
2022 2021
—=-C T
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFIT
Acquisition of business e E — 4,050

In May 2021, the Group has entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement to acquire 70% equity
interest of an entity principally engaged in property
management business in the PRC at a consideration of
not less than RMB4,050,000. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the framework agreement was lapsed.

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the minimum lease commitment
under non-cancellable operating leases is RMB619,000
(2021: RMB288,000).

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2021: nil).

23(Q REDCOHEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #%F —&F — —#+_F =+—HIFFZ

30. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

31.

WITHOUT CHANGE IN CONTROL

Addition of registered capital of Shenzhen Redco Healthcare
& Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd for the year ended 31 December
2021

On 10 June 2021, Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & Nutrition
Holding Co., Ltd. s registered capital increased by USD 430,000
(equivalent to RMB2,768,000), which was to be paid by an
independent third party. Upon completion, although the equity
interest of Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & Nutrition Holding

0., Ltd. held by the Company reduced from 100% to 70%,
the Group considers it still has control over Shenzhen Redco
Healthcare & Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. The Group recorded
a non- controlling interest of approximately RMB365,000 and
an increase in the balance of other reserves of approximately
RMB2,408,000 upon the completion of acquisition.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposals of registered capital of Shenzhen Lilan Design
Consultant Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Yujian Youju Property
Consulting Co., Ltd. for the year ended 31 December 2021

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
of 100% equity interests in Shenzhen Lilan Design Consultant
Co., Ltd. (“Lilan Design’) and Shenzhen Yujian Youju Property
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Yujian Youju’) to Shenzhen
Redco Weili Shiye Development Co., Ltd CFRIISIEENIEELE
BBRAF]) at a consideration of RMB1 and RMBI, respectively,
resulting in an aggregate gain on disposal of RMB415,000. The
aforementioned companies are principally engaged in provision
of renovation design and consultancy services and property
sales planning services in the PRC, respectively. Upon the
completion of the disposal, the Group lost its control over the
aforementioned companies and their financial results are not
consolidated with the results of the Group.

30.

31.

MiBABIFR A 2B MR ERe
#

BE_E_—F+_F=+—HIF
EEIRY & R EEREREIRA
EAMEZL

AN — —
T

—FXRB+H FINS
BEEEZERAERAFANGZMER
1% f0430,000F Tt (B E N AR
2,768,0007%) * BH—RBBEILE=FH
ST o NEME  BEARBFEN
F e EEEEZERERARNRK
HEH100% B/ D ET0% > NEERA
Hh#mESRINNeREESERE
RATIHIIERIHE o REENRUETTNK
BIRSIFERERI AR 365,000
TREMBEERBIEMNOARE
2,408,0007z °

HEMBAE

BE_E_—F+_F=+—HILF
EHEFYHER BB RAE
FYER BEEXZHEIRAEZEM
B

BE_Z_—F+_H=1t—HLF
B> AEEDHURNEARE 1ITR
ARELITRARNNBRBNERER
BRABWHENRYINERTRERS
RAB(THERE ) FORINERE
FEXHEDNERAD(THRIERE
B 2%kE > EEHERESHA
FR¥415,0007C ° AR FERE
TERE D B HEIHT R 5T K sE 0 AR TS
DR SH E R BIARTS o INTThR &
FIa%E  AEBREH EHATRE
ﬁ&&ﬁéﬁfihTﬁﬁk$$l
SSESE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
20225 ERE

231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MESHRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

An analysis on the gains on disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

31. HEMBAE(E

HEM B AR OTAT

{
Shenzhen
Yujian
Lilan Design Youju Total
hER RINBRER “ast
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000
AREBTRT AR®BFTRT AER®BTT
Consideration satisfied by: REUTIAREN !
- Cash consideration —HERE —* — —
Less: Net liabilities disposed of: B REAERE
- Amounts due from related parties — —FEURRREH 5 7B (7,217) — (7,217)
- Other receivables — HAFEUGRIE (68) — (68)
- Cash and cash equivalents —HERIREEFEY (22) (5) (27)
- Other payables — HAERIE 110 5 115
- Amounts due to related parties — FE(I BRI 5 =18 7,612 — 7,612
415 — 415
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries, HENBE AT
pre-tax RS AT 415 — 415
Less: PRC enterprise income tax W HEREAR®B
payable upon disposal of FEATFR B (R 2 PRI AR
subsidiaries — — —
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries, HERB AT
net of tax NFRIRIE 415 - 415
An analysis on net outflow of cash HERBATN
and cash equivalents in respect of REMRTEEY
disposal of subsidiaries is as ME BRI
follows:
- Cash consideration —RHEAE — —F —
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HENRE
disposed of RIREHEY (22) (5) (27)
(22) () (27)

# Less than RMB1,000.
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #%F —&F — —#+_F =+—HIFFZ

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group' s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt or to obtain bank and other
borrowing.

The Group is required to comply with a number of covenants

32.

BEXEBRER

FEBEEBEANERDARESSE
EREMEAEEE e A RRERIR (R EIR
RAEMIPFHERME R ° LRETR
EBEREBUREERAE ©

FEEBEEENERBIREEEIR R
SEHWHEFLRE - [EFNHABE
RG> AEBEPRETRAERRRS
RS ~ FITHRNIHEEE
DUB AR SIS IRTT R ELMtIERR o

AERBRE T ZERBE RUET

under the terms of the major borrowing facilities. They have ZIEERH] o *ETF%%E’J&TE E&” 24
been complied throughout the reporting period based on HWERBERSBHATUE
directors assessment.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33. &MTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) E=RTAIER
L 4
2022 2021
—E-- o
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTT ARETFTT
Financial assets: ERIEE
Financial assets at amortised cost HBER A ENEREE 437,527 265,975
Financial liabilities: EREE
Financial liabilities measured at BHHER A ENEREE
amortised cost 103,159 113,871
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A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Group s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
interests and related parties, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities and amounts due to related parties. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes.

The Group s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective manner. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
management of each individual entity within the Group.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency of the relevant Group entity.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions settled in RMB. The Group generates
RMB from provision of services in the PRC to meet its
liabilities denominated in RMB. Other than certain
bank balances, the Group’ s assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Group’ s
assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from
its operations primarily do not expose it to material
foreign exchange risk. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

The Group does not hedge its exposure to the foreign
currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Except for bank deposits at variable interest rate, the
Group has no other significant interest-bearing assets.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
to interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes
in interest rate because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its borrowings. Bank and other
borrowings of variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The bank and other borrowings
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks. The interest rate and
terms of repayment of bank and other borrowings are
disclosed in note 24.

The management consider that the Group’ s exposure
to the interest rate risk on financial assets and
liabilities is immaterial. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

Despite uncertainties mentioned in note 2(a), the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its cash flow
requirements in the next twelve months. The Directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and
closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a
level which is considered adequate by the Group
to finance the Group s operations and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development
requirements.

33. EMIAGE)
(b) ERMEAREEREXRRBR

(%)

(i)

(iif)
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives

(Continued)

(iii)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Management has periodically prepared cash flow
projections and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to mitigate the potential impact on the Group’s
business development and current operation, should
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow
may be affected by any unexpected changes in the
PRC economic conditions. The Company s directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain
sufficient financial resources to meet its needs.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for borrowing which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. &RTEE@)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (b) TMEMEEHRRKRB R
(Continued) (48)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) TEEZEE (&)
As described in note 24, in view of the cross-default UM sE24Fr it » BEpY &
for certain bank and other borrowings, the Group FIRITREMBERRZE
reclassified such bank and other borrowings on 8 AEEBERZZT
demand or less than one year as at 31 December F+ZA=+—HEEX
2022. H—FARNHZFRITRE
MEFEITEM DL ©
{
Weighted On
average  demandor  Between  Between Total
interest less than land2 2and5 Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate 1year years years Syears  cash flows amount
T #ER ik
flE dlER 1528 185 BlsE i W
% RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
% ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2022 KZEZZE+ZF=1+-A
Trade payables, accruals ERRMTE REHERR
and other payables EMERTE N/AFER 79,466 - - - 79,466 19,176
Amounts due to related parties  EREHAZA N/AFER 1,557 - - - 1,557 1,557
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 3.87 18,253 - - - 18,253 18,253
Lease liabilities HEEE 1 1,40 1 1,290 6,117 9,068 4173
100516 1 1,290 617 108344 103159
At 31 December 2021 AZE_-F+AZ1+-A
Trade payables, accruals ERRMTE R ERR
and other payables HfnEzE NATER 63,855 2,703 - - 66,558 66,010
Amounts due to related parties  FE[IEBATE NATEE 33,69 - - - 33,69 33,69
Bank and other borrowings FITREMER 15 1031 - - - 10,31 1031
Lease liabilities HESR 7 517 831 1217 6,485 9,110 3935
108,298 3,534 L7 6,485 119,594 113871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. &RTEE@)
(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (b) sMEMEERRRBER
(Continued) (&)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) TEEZEE (&)
The table below analyses the bank and other TREIINBREREE
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause 16 R B SR 1T K H A & =R
based on agreed repayment schedules set out in the PrIE—FERNETNZRX
loan agreements, except for those cross-defaulted, ENEN) RBERHZE
which are presented as less than 1 year. The P& 0 E B R ET B EH Y
amounts include interest payments computed using i - BT REAERS
contractual rates. AR BRI SN
L
On demand Total
or less Between Between Over undiscounted Carrying
than 1year land2years 2and 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
ED KR

H1ER 122% 1E5% BsE  RERGE HREfE
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2022 e —

+ZB=+-8 1,368 1,277 3,721 4728 11,100 10,161
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%

+-A=1+-H 1,102 1,102 3,306 5,509 11,019 10,231
(iv)  Credit risk (iv) 1EE®EfE
Risk management and security RREERESR
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade FEBmEHEEE S KEME
and other receivables, cash at banks, amounts due from WERIE ~ IR1TIRE ~ FEURRE B
related parties and non-controlling interests. BRI ERRIER ANE

ERkE -

The carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and other IR1TIRE ~ B2 REMBEUR
receivables, amounts due from related parties and non- TE DU e UR RE Bt 75 Re R 1R G 4
controlling interests represent the Group’ s maximum TR ENREEEAEERS
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. MEEFMAESR=EERRE -
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AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

a)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash deposits at banks since they
are substantially deposited at state-owned banks and
other medium or large- size banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments)

For trade and other receivables from related parties
and third parties, the management of the Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverability of these
receivables at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group s credit risk is significantly
managed.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

b)  Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

internal credit rating
external credit rating

actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor/borrower s ability to meet its obligations,
including, among others, the economic impact
of the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic on
the operations of the Group

actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the debtor/borrower

significant increase in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same debtor/borrower

significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the debtor/borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the debtor/borrower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

b)

Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’ s expected credit loss model is as follows:

33. ERMIA®E

(b) ERMEAREERRRER
(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)
EEEEREER (8)

b) EZREAMEIKRERT K
F=mETBEEM
MIR) (18)

BERMABNTEIHERRERITS
HIREREE)  BEENR
AR A& BRI RGIRRR 2
B MERAREE G
8 - FEEBHERRLX
RENRRWEWNT -

L 4
Basis for recognition
Group definition of expected credit
Category of category loss provision
855 EEHHIENESR RIEHEERIRRENELE
Performing Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected losses.
default and a strong capacity to Where the expected lifetime of
meet contractual cash flows an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at its
expected lifetime
E=E ERENEREEEEERESY + @A TS o

Underperforming

BE

Non-performing

KB

REMERBRALES

Receivables for which there is
a significant increase in credit
risk; as significant increase in
credit risk is presumed if interest
and/or principal repayments are
30 days past due
RUWHENEERMEBEILEN ; &
MER/SAEENBHABIBI0
X’ AEEAEERBEEILN

Interest and/or principal
repayments are 90 days past
due

MER,/ HASEREHHI0 K

HRRPFERE+—BRZANE
E’ EstERENEBRRTENE

Lifetime expected losses

SRR

Lifetime expected losses.

EHATEHARSIE ©
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

b)

Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of receivables and adjusts for forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors.

Amounts due from related parties, i.e. Redco
Properties Group, associates and joint ventures of
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries (trade natures
and amounts due from related parties other than
trade receivables)

In prior years, the Group has assessed that the
expected loss rate for amounts due from related
parties were low since the related parties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligation in the near term. The Group assessed that
the expected credit loss rate for receivables from the
related parties are immaterial and considered them
to have a low credit risk, and thus the loss allowance
is immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance provision for
receivables from related parties were recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

b)

Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Amounts due from related parties, including
Redco Properties Group, associates and joint
ventures of Redco Properties and its subsidiaries
(trade and non-trade nature) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group consider that
there was a significant increase in credit risks
of receivables from the related parties having
considered the current economic environment in real
estate sector in the PRC and the financial condition of
the related parties, especially the liquidity problems
for Redco Properties Group as described in note 24.
Thus, an ECL allowances amounted to approximately
RMB29,100,000 (2021:nil) and RMB21,718,000
(2021: nil) for trade receivables and amounts due
from related parties other than trade receivables
from related parties were recognised for the year
respectively and details of which are described below.

Trade receivables from third parties

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments from its trade receivables
from third parties (excluding trade receivables from
related parties), which requires the use of the lifetime
expected credit loss provision for trade receivables
from third parties.

33. EMIARGE
THEAREERRKAER

(b)

(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)
EEEEREER (8)

b)

85 R H AR U R 75 K
F=mETBEEM
moE) ()

FEUR RIS 7 (B3R h &
EERE -~ et ENKE
NEREERENREN
BRE) MR (EZKRIFE
Z1E) (&)

i S
=+—H " &5t KRErRTH
B f5 #h B 17 3 AU ACH IR
15 K B E T B B R
(LHEHZMEE 24P HE
MEERENRDEESR
)’ AEEEAEURE
BORRNESRAREES
180 - AL FRHESER
8 7 & W IE R & R
B 75 wE (FEUR BB 5 B
ZRARRSN NRIIEE
EERBEEZEINNOS
A R 129,100,000 7t (=
BT —F I B)RARE
21,718,000 (Z & = —
F:F) HFBUTX
PiTit o

BWE=1 85 IA

AEEFRBHEELHEE
WE=FEZREACTE
B RIS B 5 R0R)
MBEBHYFREERF
SETER TR IEERTER
EEBEHRER > HE
TIEWE =5 B S RIAR
RiFERNEREEER
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBIRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE.

ETTHFf A= —HIFE

=

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. &RTEE@)
(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (b) =RMEMREENRRRERE
(Continued) (48)
(iv)  Credit risk (Continued) (iv) 1EERE (%)
Risk management and security (Continued) REEERZE (B)
b)  Trade and other receivables from related parties and b) EBEZKRHEAMMBEUERR S &
third parties (Continued) FE=IE (&)
Trade receivables from third parties (Continued) FEUNEE =75 B 518 (48)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance NIRRT TERIETI—
provision for the trade receivables from third parties F+ZA=1+—H" EYK
was determined as follows. The expected credit losses B HEGRIENEIE%E
below also incorporated forward looking information. EREETENT - TiTE
MEEEBIMAARIREE
Bl o
L 4
0-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 181-365 Over
days days days days days 365 days Total
0F30% 31E60X 61E90X 91F180K 181E365K i#BiB365% et
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETH ARETH ARETt ARETR
At 31 December 2022 RZB=Z
+ZA=+-H
Expected loss rate HsEE 3.8% 4.6% 6.5% 10.2% 32.4% 100%
Gross carrying amount BRERE 96,925 1,759 1,489 4510 11,423 17,353 133,459
Loss allowance BEEE 3,683 81 97 460 3,701 17,353 25,375
At 31 December 2021 RZIBZ—
+ZB=1+-8
Expected loss rate HEEx 0.5% 1.0% 2.20% 4.90% 9.90% 100%
Gross carrying amount HmERmE 25,988 5,651 5,706 16,337 17,758 4580 76,020
Loss allowance BiERE 119 57 128 806 1,758 4,580 7,448

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

b)

Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Trade receivables from third parties (Continued)

The expected credit loss rate for the provision matrix
is for trade receivables from third parties which
are mainly related to the property management,
healthcare services and others business. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP
and the credit card delinquency ratio of the countries
in which it sells its services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these factors
throughout the year.

The loss allowances for trade receivables from
third parties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
disclosed below.

Impairment losses on trade receivables from third
parties are presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same
line item.

33. EMTIRGE
THEAREERRKAER

(b)

(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)

EEEEREER (8)

b)

85 R H AR U R 75 K
F=mETBEEM
moE) ()

WS = 75 B 7 7R0A (18)

BEERENTRIEEEER
KIEFTBRYEEE &
BERBRAEMEBERN
BURE=1SBZNIE &
ERIBR TR E LR R
FEEPEERUGRIARE
DRI ER R 2 3R
METEIEER - ZEED
HESSHIHERFBPIER
KRB EERERIER
FHRERDRAERNE
= Al REEFER
BREARNRAEEH
BIBEREX -

RIE_ _FR_F_—
F+A=1+—HENKS
=H ESIANERER
PO RER ©

B E =7 B2 RIENR
EREREEENDET]
AEEREFER - HRI
[EIRYBEHEE 2851 AAE
FEEH °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. ERMTEE

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)
Risk management and security (Continued)

b)  Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Other receivables from third parties

Other than Refundable Deposits for Nine Target
Companies, other receivables from third parties
(excluding other receivables from related parties)
mainly included payments made on behalf of property
owners, deposits and others and details of which are
set out in note 20(b).

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to
determine the expected loss provision for other
receivables from third parties.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has
assessed that there is no significant increase of
credit risk for other receivables from third parties
since initial recognition. Thus the Group used the 12
months expected credit loss model to assess credit
loss of other receivables from third parties and details
are as follows:

(b)

THEAMEERRRER
(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)
EEEEREER (8)

b) B HKMHEAMMEUENR T K
F=mETBEEM
moE) ()

FEWEE = 75 EthwRIE

BFABERATIRER
BEHh B =5 HAth
FRIE (1B 5 E PR UL R
AR TBEERE
FEIXAWRA BEk
HMRIR SR E
20(b) ©

FEBERBEBERSR
TREUETE PR = 75 Hoth
FIRRTRHAE R o

RIB__HFRE"—
E+ZA=+—H ' &&
EETEENE =S EM
FIRHEE R B4 iahE
SOLUZR I A MBI N ©
> AEBERI2EAR
TR EEBRBRIE LG
HMEW S =5 7IEmE
BBiR 0 FIBNT

L 4

Performing Total
ES #ast
RMB 000 RMPB 000
ARBFT AREBTFT

At 31 December 2021 N _E_—F+"_A=+—H
Gross carrying amount HRBRTEE 13,023 13,023
Less: Impairments A ORE (92) (92)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,931 12,931

At 31 December 2022 N _E__HF+"A=+—H
Gross carrying amount RERTEE 88,184 88,184
Less: Impairments A (498) (498)
Net carrying amount ERMEFE 87,686 87,686
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

33. ERMIA®E

Financial risk management policies and objectives

(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

b) Trade and other receivables from related parties and

third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Other receivables from third parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance

provision for trade receivables from third parties and

related parties, other receivables from third parties
and amounts due from related parties and non-
controlling interest reconciles to the opening loss
allowance for that provision as follows:

(b) ERMEAREERRRER
(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)
EEEEREER (8)

b) EZREAMEIKRERT K
F=mETBEEM
MIR) (18)

PR EE = 75 EL{thRRIE (48)

N BT TERE " —
F+ZRB=+—H" Bl
F=H BB ESW
B Bl E =S EMRIA
DUR FES ik 75 Re IR 4R R
o RAE IR R R
SRZBEIEIERER

BOEERINT ¢
L 4
Amounts due
from related
Trade Trade Other parties
receivables receivables receivables and non-
fromthird fromrelated  fromthird  controlling
parties parties parties interest Total
Gt
FRE=r RUER7 BRESH  RoHEREZ
BRME BRME HAtFRE M “ct
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEBTRT ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETR
Opening loss allowance as RZBZ—£-F-Af
at 1 January 2021 EEEES (3,681) - (213) (159) (4,053)
Impairment loss recognised PIBE AR
in profit or loss, net of AESE’
reversal (note 8) e (5 8) (3,767) - 121 159 (3,487)
Closing loss allowance as at RIBZ-F
31 December 2021 +ZB=1+—H#
ERERER (7,448 - (92) - (7,540)
Impairment loss recognised RIBEAHER
in profit or loss, net of HESR’
reversal (note 8) IR (i3 ) (17,927) (29,100) (406) (21,718) (69,151)
Closing loss allowance as at RIZZZHE
31 December 2022 +ZB=1+-B
FREEER (25,375) (29,100) (498) (21,718) (76,691)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33.

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)
Risk management and security (Continued)

b) Trade and other receivables from related parties and
third parties (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Other receivables from third parties (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables
from third parties and related parties, other
receivables from third parties and amounts due from
related parties and non-controlling interests as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

T A &)

(b) ERMEAREERRRER
(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)
EEEEREER (8)

b) EZREAMEIKRERT K
F=mETBEEM
MIR) (18)

PR EE = 75 EL{thRRIE (48)

TREMRIZZIZFR
“EC—F+RA=1—
HEEWSE =7 KEETE
Z0E ~ BRE =7 HAh
FRIE LR FEUS R 75 e I
EREDTRIETESE
BRBUKREBRESSRE

B o
L
Trade Trade Other Other
receivables  receivables  receivables  receivables
from third ~ from related fromthird ~ from related
parties parties parties parties Total
RhE=r  EREES  ERESR RUEES
BAmE BAmE HftizRE HitzRE @t
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
A\EETR  ARETr ARETT AR%Tn  ARETR
(note 35(b)(ii)) (note 35(b)(ii))
(s 35(b) i) (Bt 35(b) i)
As at 31 December 2021 i
+ZR=1-H
Gross carrying amount wrEmE 76,020 60,820 13,03 - 149,863
Loss allowances BiRER (7,448) - (92) - (7,540)
Net carrying amounts RESE 68,572 60,820 12931 - 142,323
As at 31 December 2022 .
tZR=t-H
Gross carrying amount HEREE 133,459 109,903 88,184 74,116 405,662
Loss allowances BRER (25,375) (29,100) (498) (21,718) (76,691)
Net carrying amounts RETE 108,084 80,303 87,686 52,398 328,971
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
(Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

c)

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’ s financial assets,
including cash at banks, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, amounts due from
non-controlling interests and the Group s financial
liabilities, including trade payables, accruals and
other payables, borrowings, lease liabilities and
amounts due to related parties approximate their fair
values.

33. ERMIA®E

(b)

THEAMEERRRER
(%)

(iv) 1EEERE (&)

EEEEREER (8)
o ATEMEE
rEETHEE(BER

TRE - B5REMER
TR~ PR URRE B 5 R
R FEW R Z IR 7R IH)
hAEETHAE(BE
B EARIE - Bt ER
R EANFEATTRIR ~ B
THE & B FE (SRR 75 7K
B)NREEERSZZA
FEMEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMTBIERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8% —F = —F+—F =+—HIFF/E

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 34.
ACTIVITIES

MEEHEENERHEER

The table below details changes in the Group’ s liabilities arising TRAJNAEHERREZHEENE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B2 OFRTRIFRSEE -/
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EEFELENEENERRTRED
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be, classified in K ARRFEERERNAERRGIR
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows SRERNDBEAMEEHELRIR

from financing activities. TRENEME

L
Bank and other Lease Amounts to
borrowings liabilities related parties Total
TR e FEft
Hitifew ={ Rl AE fzt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBTR AEETR AEBTR AEBTR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-S--&
+ZA=+-HLEE
Asat 1 January 2021 RZE_—F—-F—H 4,550 - 67,370 71,920
Advances from related parties REEB AT - - 17,836 17,836
Repayments to related parties EEmMEEHTE - - (60,423) (60,423)
Interest paid BFIE (254) (17) - (211)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings BRI REMENFIETIE - - - -
Repayments of bank and other borrowings  BERTREMER (4,550) - - (4,550)
Principal elements of lease payments HEMRNEEE - (91) - (91)
Non-cash items: FREE - -
- Additions property, plant and equipment  —HFEYE  BER&RE 10,224 - 16,548 26,772
- Disposal of subsidiaries -HERBAR - - (7,612) (7,612)
- New leases -HiE - 1,47 - 1,247
- Modification of leases -HEB® - 2,579 - 2,579
Foreign exchange adjustments EREE - - (24) (24)
Other non-cash movements HftiFREEE 261 27 - 478
As at 31 December 2021 R_E2_—&+"F=+-H 10,231 3,935 33,695 47861
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z-C
+ZA=+-HLEE
As at 1 January 2022 RZZE-_"FE-A—H 10,231 3,935 33,695 47,861
Advances from related parties REMEE RS - - 1,730 1,730
Repayments to related parties BEMEATE - - (36,938) (36,938)
Interest paid BRAFE (430) (17) - (447)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings  RERTKEMBEREHE 9,045 - - 9,045
Repayments of bank and other borrowings  BERTREMER (1,923) - - (1,923)
Principal elements of lease payments RERNEALE D - (91) - (91)
Foreign exchange adjustments R AR 620 - 3,070 3,690
Other non-cash movements EMEREES 710 346 - 1,056
As at 31 December 2022 RIBZZH+ZA=1-H 18,253 4,173 1,557 23,983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related parties

The Group is controlled by Top Glory International
Holdings Ltd. (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands),
which owns 75% of the Company s shares. The remaining
25% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate parent of
the Group is Redco Properties (incorporated in the Cayman
Islands).

The Directors are of the view that the following companies

35. FAEARS
(a) FAE

AEERFESEREZERARA
B (RREBREUESEMMIL
BERERRTT5%RRMD) HZH o
BT 25%RMEARTE ° &
EENRREFRBAHNSHE
(KRS8 BEMMIL) -

EEDATIATASEEN

are related parties of the Group: Hir

{ 4

Related parties Relationship with the Company
R Bt 75 BLZR 2 B B9RR 1A

Gongging City High-tech Zone Chuangxin Redco Property
Service Co., Ltd.

HERTSMERIN NESYERBBERAT

Gongging City Gold Medal Property Service Co., Ltd.

HERT Y ERBERAE

Love Care Redco (Shanghai) Senior Care Service Co., Ltd.

BRE S (L) BERBERAE

Jiangxi Province Guogao Property Services Limited

IABESYERBERAE

Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd.

HEBREVEBRAT

Xixian New District Qinhan New City Junyue Family Property
Management Co., Ltd.

AR @R EMMEME RYEEIEERAE]

Foshan Aimeijia Property Service Co., Ltd.

BUFTEERZMERFERAE

Top Glory International Holdings Ltd.

HWEERERERAT

Redco Properties Group Limited

NetEERARAT

Wong Yeuk Hung

mal

Huang Ruoging

=HEB

Global Universe International Holdings Limited

RFEFERARAF

An associate

= UNE|

An associate
AT

An associate
& RE
Ajoint venture
aEhE

A joint venture
BEhE

Ajoint venture

aEhx

Ajoint venture

aEhx

Immediately holding company
BHEERAT

Ultimate holding company
IR AT

Controlling shareholder
ERRRER

Controlling shareholder
ERIRER

A major shareholder of the Group

FEBETERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 35. BAEtAR S (B)

(b) Significant transactions and balances with related (b) BRAMFSHIEKRRZRIERF
parties
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated MRZERaVBEREREAME D

financial statements, the Group has the following Pl 22 & b > A S [ B RR B 75

transactions and balances with related parties: BELUTRZ M
(i) Transactions with related parties (i) BARIEE T ETTHIR Z
{
2022 2021
=2 TET 4
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARBTT AREBFIT
Provision of property R ESIER
management services
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 4,766 7,619
Provision of service — Value-added RARTS — JE2 FINERRTS
services to non-property owners (RN EIRARTS)
(Pre-delivery property management
services)
- Redco Properties and Group —NEMEREER 66,911 69,760
- Associates and joint ventures of — et ERENE AT
Redco Properties and its BENATREE R
subsidiaries 6,432 6,171
73,343 75,931
Provision of Carpark sales R EEGHERIERE
agency services
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 9,927 2,403
Provision of healthcare services REEERD
- Redco Properties Group —NEHEEE 14,374 14,838
- Associates and joint ventures of — et ERENB AT
Redco Properties and its BE AT REE R
subsidiaries 13 27
14,387 14,865
Provision of IT and intelligent RMEIT BB ARTS
construction services
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 11,032 13,879
- Associates and joint ventures of — et ERENE AT
Redco Properties and its HERERaERE
subsidiaries 278 280
11,310 14,159
Maintenance expenses wEER
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 1,294 1,376

2572  REDCOHEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Significant transactions and balances with related

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

35. BAEARS (48)

BB AN EAR B KRG

parties (Continued) €9))

(i) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (i) BARGEE FiETTRIR Z (48)
All the transactions above were carried out in the TFAERZITERER
normal course of the Group's business and on terms N—REFBEDZRS
as agreed between the transacting parties. & 75 PTIE AV IR FRETT ©

(i) Balances with related parties (i) EARTRE T YA ER

2022 2021
ot Jofent'- =
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARBFT
Amounts due from related R A RIE—BRME
parties - trade, net of allowances OB (FIEE33(b)(iv)
(notes 33(b)(iv))
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 78,180 58,709
- Associates and joint ventures of —NEHERERBATN
Redco Properties and its HERNERaERE
subsidiaries 2,623 2,111
80,803 60,820
Amounts due from related parties FE KBRS 5 =B (B 5 B WGRIE
- other than trade receivables, net RSN > ORI (5T (1) K (2)
of allowance (note (1) and (2) FeMisx33(b)(iv))
and notes 33(b)(iv))
- Redco Properties Group — et EEE 52,398 —
Amounts due to related FETRAB A RIBE— S8R
parties - contract liabilities
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 19,065 17,253
- Associates and joint ventures of — et ERENE AT
Redco Properties and BERBERaERE
its subsidiaries 70 —
19,135 17,253
Amounts due to related P& BB 75 "R 1B (B S IR (T 7/0E
parties - other than trade payables BRaM) (FCHEE (1) K (2)
(notes (1) and (2) below)
- Redco Properties Group — et EEER 277 33,695
- Associates and joint ventures of —NEMERERBATN
Redco Properties and its BE AT REE R
subsidiaries 1,280 —
1,557 33,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBIRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

35. MAEARS (E)

(b) Significant transactions and balances with related (b) HRABANEARR S KRG
parties (Continued) (48)
(i) Balances with related parties (Continued) (i) BiEGE 7 BiEEr (F8)
Notes: PEE
(1) Amounts due from (to) Redco Properties Group - other (1) EWRU) HhetES
than trade receivables and trade payables B BIFRIE (B 5 FE R
B B 5 M4 7 I8k
M)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were BE_E_—_F+_
numerous fund movements between Redco Properties B=+—HLEE"
Group and the Group and the Group had cash outflows NEMEEEERE
to and inflows from Redco Properties Group amounted ExEETAEES
to approximately RMB200 million and RMB 61.5 million, Fk BAREERE
respectively. hetEEENRE
MHERIEBEERAD
HNAHARIB20E B
TRARMK6LSEE
Lo
An analysis of the amounts due from (to) Redco U () hEih EE
Properties Group - other than trade receivables and B RIE (B 2 IR
trade payables is as followings: Bk 8 5 M4 7B
SN DTN -
{ 4
Gross amount Allowances Net amount
“azE & PR
RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
Amounts due from Redco FE 1 st 2= SE Y
Properties Group - other FRIE (BRI
than trade receivables FIBERRSN) 74,116 (21,718) 52,398
Amounts due to Redco FEAT Dt = SE Y
Properties Group - other IE (B ZREM
than trade payables FIBERRSN) (277) — (277)
Amounts due from (to) Redco  FEW (fF) HEHEER
Properties Group - other RIS (B 5 FE U
than trade receivables and IR B 5 eI TRIE
trade payables, net FRON) 5758 73,839 (21,718) 52,121
The above transactions and balances between A A
the Group and the Redco Properties Group were EEBZENRZ R
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements of GEHRERNEMESE
the Redco Properties Group. BN S BRERSP
Y o

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Significant transactions and balances with related
parties (Continued)

(i) Balances with related parties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(2) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying values
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
RMB.

Key management compensation

Other than the remuneration paid or payable to the
Directors as disclosed in note 12, the remuneration of the
other key management personnel, during the year were as
follows:

35. BAEARS (48)

(b)

(c)

BB AN EAR B KRG
(&)
(i) B A4S R (48)
M ()
2) TR ERAEIEE
REREABERE
BHoREBEHRARQATF

BREEEARES
&e

FEEEE

PRAYEE 12 PTIR BRI E T SUE (Y
BEFEHMN RER HftE
SEEASHHIMOT

L

2022 2021

—ECHE =
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETx ABREFT
Short term employee benefits AR ERET 2,766 3,537
Staff bonuses BTIE4 388 989
Retirement benefit costs BRAR@H A 228 311
3,382 4,837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d)

Leases

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has obtained leases
from the subsidiaries of the Redco Properties Group
for healthcare centres. The right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities subjected to such leases amounting to
RMB13,654,000 (2021: RMB14,279,000) and RMB4,173,000
(2021: RMB3,835,000) respectively.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other significant related
party balances or transactions as at and for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly
held by the Company at the end of the reporting period are
set out below.

35. BAEARS (48)

(d)

HE

RZE__&F#+__A=+—
B> AEEEHR T aESER
BIM B A B 5T 3L B R B RS
My EREBEENERRESE
ERAEGBEDHIAARKE
13,654,000 0 (ZBEZ—F : A
R #14,279,00070) R A R
4173000 (ZE - —F: A
EE#53,835,0007T) °

B E M BREREMI DK
BEI AEERZZZZ
B+ "F=+—H
EEBEEZEAPILEERER
ME RIS SRR o

36. ARBIEEMBARZER

(a)

MEBARZ—RER

ERB R ERRER KRB E
BEZTENBARFIEHT
LI

{
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and kind and place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group Note
SHRERAL /B
PGS Rt AR TEEY /TS BRTRIRAEBRSNFE FE@FSHERER liF1
2022 2021
ZEIZE  IET-fF
(%) (%)
Directly held by the Company
BALRGERFE
Redco Healthy Living British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, Lordinary share of 100% 100% (il
Investments Holdings Limited limited liability company Hong Kong 1US dollar each, USS1
NERRLERERRARAT EBRAHE  BRAF RERR 52 IRSRIZTNEBRLIEZT

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

36. EARIEMBATZER (&)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBATZ—RRER @)
L,
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and kind and place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group Note
Bl Vg TR
A RiE G TBEE/LEHy BETRAREREHNHE FERMEMARED (13
2022 2021
ZECCE TBC-f
(%) (%)
Indirectly held by the Company
BERFEERE
Weiye International British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, Lordinary share of 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong 1US dollar each, USS1
BXER ARRYES BRAT REnR &# IRERIZTNEBR I ET
Hong Lee Investment (International) Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Company Limited liability company Hong Kong 1HK dollar each, HKS10,000
RARE (ER) 5RAT &8 BRAT RarR &8 10,000 %88 1 B7h
&R 10,0008
Fame Step International Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, Lordinary share of 100% 100%
Investment Limited liability company Hong Kong 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
ERERREERA &8 BRAF RarR &% LRER1IETNERR L ER
Hong Kong Weiye Holdings Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, Lordinary share of 100% 100%
Company Limited liability company Hong Kong 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EEREERERAT &8 BRAT REnR &# 1RER1ETMERR 1 Er
Shenzhen Youjumeijia The PRC, limited Property Registered HK$10,000,000; 100% 100%
Property Management Co., Ltd. liability company management Paid up HKS2,000,000
services in the PRC
HMIBEERN=REERAT HE BRAF EERANE BE&5210,000,000%7 ;
BER% B 2,000,000%T
UG Property Management Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited Property Registered RMBS50,000,000; 100% 100%
liability company management Paid up RMBS5,000,000
services in the PRC
BEZRIMERBEREALT HE FRAF EERAE BEGARKS50,000,0007 ;
ERR% BRI ARHES5,000,0007
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(a) Generalinformation of subsidiaries (Continued)

36. EARIEMBATZER (&)

(a) MIBARZ—RREX (B

{
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and kind and place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group Note
BV TR
e R NER TEEY /e BETRAREBRSNFE FE@FSFHERER liF3
2022 2021
ZECF Bk
(%) @
Shenzhen Yugao Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB500,000; 100% 100%
Management Co,, Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMB500,000
services in the PRC
AT HENEEEERAR HE FRAT EERANE BEGARKS5000007 ;
EER% BREARES500,0007
Yantai Zhongtai Property Management  The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB3,000,000; 60% 60%
Co,, Ltd. (“Yantai Zhongtal") liability company management Paid up RMB3,000,000
services in the PRC
BETRENEERERAT HE FRAF EERAE BEGZARE3,000,0007 ;
(MEaH%)) EBRE BHEEARE3,000,00070
Xianyang Yugao Family Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB500,000; 60% 60%
Service Co,, Lid. liability company management Paid up RMB nil
services in the PRC
BRIEEENEREERAT HE FRAT EERANE BEGARKS500,0007 ;
EER% BREAREZT
Nanchang Yonghu Lirui Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMBL,000,000; 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMBL,000,000
services in the PRC
HEEANRNEREERAT HE FRAF EERAE BEZARE1,000,0007 ;
i BAEARE1,000,0007
Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property Service  The PRC, limited Property Registered RMBL,000,000; 35% 35% (il
Co., Ltd. (“Nanchang Junyu Meijia")  liability company management Paid up RMB1,000,000
services in the PRC
HERERNEREARAT HE FRAT EERANE BEEARE 1,000,007 ;
(mEREE%)) EERH BHEAREL000,0007
Nanchang Yugao Union Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB10,000,000; 100% 100%
Service Co,, Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMB nil
services in the PRC
HEHEABEREARAT HE FRAF EERAE BEGZARK10,000,0007 ;
i BARARBET
Nanchang Yujing Helian Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB10,000,000; 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMB nil
services in the PRC
HEBRSBEREARAT HE FRAT EERANE BEEARE 10,000,007 ;
EER% BREAREZT

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR



36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

36. EARIEMBATZER (&)

(a) MIBARZ—RREX (B

{
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and kind and place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group Note
SHRERLL /B
e R NER IBEH/EEHY BETRAREBRSNFE FE@FSFHERER i3
2022 2021
IEIZF  IEI-fF
(%) (%)
Jiangxi Dingmei Property Management  The PRC, limited Property Registered RMBS5,000,000; 51% 51%
Co,, Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMBL,000,000
services in the PRC
IR RENERBERAR HE BRAR THER Y BEEARES,000,0007 ;
BER% BREARE 1,000,000
Zhanjiang Yigao Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB2,000,000; 60% 60%
Service Co., Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMB500,000
services in the PRC
BInRENEREERAR HE FRAF EHER R BEEZARE 2,000,007 ;
ERR% BRI ARKS500,0007
Wuhu Senlin The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB5,000,000; 51% 51%
liability company management Paid up RMB5,000,000
services in the PRC
RAAM HE BRAF EHER Y BEEARES,000,0007 ;
EER% BRI AR 5,000,000
Jiangmen Yujia Property The PRC, limited Property services Registered RMBS5,000,000; 70% 0%
Service Co,, Ltd, liability company in the PRC Paid up RMB5,000,000
I HENERBERAR HE BRAR TEHEREYERS BEEARES,000,0007 ;
EHRARE5,000,0007
Shenzhen Juyue Property The PRC, limited Property services Registered RMBS5,000,000; 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. liability company inthe PRC Paid up RMB nil
AIBERBEERAT HE FRAF EPER AR BEZARES,000,0007 ;
BREAREZS
Shenzhen Yuanlian Enterprise The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB5,000,000; 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMB nil
services in the PRC
AMITERCEEEERAT HE BRAF EHER Y BEEARE5,000,0007 ;
EER% BREAREZT
Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & Nutrition  The PRC, limited Provision of Registered USDL,430,000; 70% 70% 0]
Holding Co., Ltd. liability company healthcare services Paid up USD nil
in the PRC
AMInEREEEZRERAT HE BRAR EHERERERS EER1430,000%7 ;
BHEZER
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e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

36. EARIEMBATZER (&)

(a) MIBARZ—RREX (B

{
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and kind and place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group Note
e/ B
AL KiENER TERY /TS BRTRAREBESNHE FEEFSAERER if51
2022 2021
8- TEC-
(%) (%)
Shenzhen Redco Kangan Health The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMBS5,000,000; 70% 70% 0]
Management Co., Ltd. liability company healthcare services Paid up RMB nil
(MNeRZREEEERAT) in the PRC
HNNBELREEEERAT HE BRAF EHRERMERERS BEEARES,000,0007 ;
BAEARETR
Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMB29,400,000; 70% 70% (i
Health Investment Development liability company healthcare services Paid up RMB18,000,000
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
HMINERERRRRELRERAT HE BRAF EHERMERERS BEEAREK29,400,0007T ;
BRI AR 18,000,000
Shenzhen Redco Hean Health The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMBL,000,000; 70% 70% (i
Management Co., Ltd. liability company healthcare services Paid up RMB nil
inthe PRC
HNEEZEEEEERAT HE BRAF PR MERRS BEEARE 1,000,007 ;
BREAREZ
Shenzhen Zhongtian Yunlian The PRC, limited Software invention Registered RMB10,000,000; 100% 100%
Technology Development Co., Ltd. liability company inPRC Paid up RMB nil
AP XERRRERERAT HE BRAF EHERERHA BEEARE 10,000,007 ;
BREAREZ
Nanchang Redco Zhangzhewu The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMBL,000,000; 70% 70% 0]
Health Industry Co., Ltd. liability company healthcare services Paid up RMBL,000,000
inthe PRC
HENEREBRREREREALT HE FRAF EERERERS BEEARE 1,000,007 ;
BAEARK1,000,0007
Yantai Redco Zhangzhewu The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMBL,000,000; 70% 70% (i)
Health Industry Investment Co., Ltd. liability company healthcare services Paid up RMBL,000,000
in the PRC
EaEREBREESREARAR HE BRAR EERERERS BEEARE 1,000,007 ;
BAEARE1,000,0007
Yantai Redco Kangan Health The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMB2,000,000 70% 70% (i)
Management Company Limited liability company healthcare services Paid up RMB2,000,000
inthe PRC
EaeRZREEEERAT HE BRAR EHERERERS BEEZARE 2,000,007 ;
BAEARE 2,000,000

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZF — & ——

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(a)

—

AR A M HRRIEE

36. ZRBEEMBARZER (&)

FA=F—HILFE

General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBABZ—RRER ()
{
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and kind and place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group Note
Bl ATg Ak
AL R NER TERE /e BETRARERESNHE FEEFRAERER i1
2022 2021
ZECCF IBC-f
(%) (%)
Yantai Redco He' an Elderly Service The PRC, limited Provision of Registered RMB2,000,000; 70% 70% (i)
Center Co,, Ltd liability company healthcare services Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
EanaBZEZRETLERAR HE BRAT EERERERS BEDARE2,000,0007 ;
BREAREZ
Yuyao Yurun Heilan Property The PRC, limited Property Registered RMB5,000,000; 100% 100% (if)
Service Co., Ltd. liability company management Paid up RMB nil
services in the PRC
FEESENERBERAT HE BRAF THER Y EEZARES000,0007 ;
SRR BREAREZR
Notes: L
(i) MIZEBEZ—HXA+H =X

(i)

On 10 June 2021, the ownership interest of Shenzhen
Redco Healthcare & Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. held by
the Company was reduced from 100% to 70% (note 30).
Thus, the effective ownership interest of the subsidiaries
held by Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & Nutrition Holding
Co., Ltd. reduced from 100% to 70%, which were Shenzhen
Redco Kangan Health Management Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Redco Zhangzhewu Health Investment Development Co.,
Ltd., Shenzhen Redco Hean Health Management Co., Ltd,,
Nanchang Redco Zhangzhewu Health Industry Co., Ltd.,
Yantai Redco Zhangzhewu Health Industry Investment Co.,
Ltd., Yantai Redco Kangan Health Management Company
Limited and Yantai Redco H€ an Elderly Service Center Co.,
Ltd.

AR EREREE
RAERABDFAZRAER
m H100%P& 2 70% (Y 5%
30) o AL RS E #EE
BEEERAERABNRHER

BEMFTA A EEDR
100%F& E70% * % =5 M 8

NEB/RNNIBERERE
BARRE S RO RE

EREREERABRQE

RNNEEZEREEAR
QB EMENSRERREE

EXAREERT EAR

EREERBEEEREAR
NE N EBENESERZEREE
BARABREGHSBER

BERBRAOLBRAT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)  The subsidiaries were incorporated by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

(iii)  On 14 December 2020, the Group entered into an acting-in
concert agreement with another shareholder of Nanchang
Junyu Meijia which holds 33% interest in the Company,
whereby the said shareholder and its appointed director
will follow decisions made by the Group and directors
appointed by the Group in shareholders meetings and
directors’ meetings respectively. Effectively, the Group has
obtained 68% voting rights in aggregate in shareholders
meetings and is able to appoint three out of five directors.
As resolutions of directors meetings only require a simple
majority approval, the Group considers it has obtained
control over Nanchang Junyu Meijia. Accordingly, Nanchang
Junyu Meijia is considered as a subsidiary of the Company
since 14 December 2020.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the both years.

The English names of PRC companies referred to above
in this note represent management s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no
English names have been registered or available.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

36.

FRRTEMBARZER (B)

(a)

MEBARZ—RER (@)

Mt o ()
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+ZRB=+—HLFERH
MM IZERREAR o

(i) RZEZZTE+-BA+MHE
B’ AERAS—FEAXA
ABNHENEEEEE
RIGEWT I —WITEHRE
Bt KRR RESTE
ERBRAERRAERS
REZPHRRERERE
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68N EH IEZERB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’ s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group

eliminations.

36. EARIEMBATZER (&)

(b)

EREAERIFERERDN

FREMBABZHE

ERAEEFAEFERE
m BB AT Z B E R
SHEIWT - THMBERS
ERETEERRRRBHIHEA

BIEIZE ©
L
Yantai Zhongtai Nanchang Junyu Meijia Wuhu Senlin
BEamE HEEBER by
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
§-Cf 3% ZECCE "F--F EZE “T_-E
RMB' 000 RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Summarised statements of HERRFE
financial position
Current E
- Current assets -TnEHEE 52,979 50,815 18,794 5,294 38,814 30,243
- Current liabilities -nEaE (34,336) (22,856)  (12,841) (3270)  (21,564) (17,259)
Total net current assets THEEHELS 18,643 27,959 5,953 2,024 17,250 12,984
Non-current |7k
- Non-current assets -ERBEE 1,904 693 7,140 6,935 20,268 20,292
- Non-current liabilities R E=Y - - (1,734) (1,734) (3,887) (3,886)
Total non-current net assets ~ JEREIBEFELE 1,904 693 5,406 5201 16,381 16,406
Net assets FEE 20,547 28,652 11,359 7,225 33,631 29,390
Accumulated non-controlling ~ BitJERRES
interests 3,719 9,461 7,384 4,697 16,469 14,391
Summarised statements of BakhE
profit or loss
Revenue Wiz 49,253 47513 20,995 3,534 51,562 46,900
Total comprehensive income 2 EKEEE 895 6,254 4,965 822 4,241 9,198
Profit allocated to PEFIEEMREL
non-controlling interests iyt 358 2,502 3,221 534 2,078 4507
Dividend paid to S FIERREENRE
non-controlling interests 6,100 - 540 1,185 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 i —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFFZ

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

36. EARIEMBATZER (&)

(b) ERAKAERIFERERN
IFREWMBAR Z+1E (&)

Nanchang Junyu Meijia Wuhu Senlin

{
Yantai Zhongtai
Eah%
2022 2021
BCF ZT-F

RMB 000  RMB 000
AEBTR ARETR

HEEBEEX EREM

2022 2021 2022 2021
“E_CE “E°-&E ZEIZHE “ET-F
RMB' 000  RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR

Summarised statements of bty d

cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities  A&EHELRERE (12,106) 8,915 8,465 3,283 2,692 5,922
Cash flows from REZBELRENE

investing activities (202) (2,203) (17) - (2,126) (1,966)
Cash flows from METHELRENE

financing activities - 2,709 (831) (1,825) (108) (108)
Net (decrease) increase in cash RERREEEMRD)

and cash equivalents b Ipete (12,308) 9421 7,617 1,458 458 3,848

The Directors consider that the non-controlling interests of
other subsidiaries are insignificant to the Group and thus,
the financial information of non-controlling interests of
these subsidiaries was not disclosed.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 37. BRBEZHMBER

L
2022 2021
g TET—4
RMB 000 RMB' 000
AR®TT ARHEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BABMNKE 134,454 134,454
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS KB A BIFIE 127,815 —
Other receivables HihpEWEIE 221 —
Prepayments TEIFIA 16 5,829
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 14,125 —
142,177 5,829
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Accrued expenses FEETE R - 3,631
Amounts due to subsidiaries B ARRIE 3,650 16,191
Amounts due to related parties FE {1 BT 75 R I8 — 204
3,650 20,026
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) FERBEE (BR) 138,527 (14,197)
NET ASSETS BEE 272,981 120,257
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAKf#E
Share capital B 16,220 —
Reserves & 256,761 120,257
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY PR 272,981 120,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 8iF —F - —F+_—F =+—HIFF&Z
37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) 37. TABTZHEER (B)
Movements in the Company s reserves are as follows: KRB ZHEESHWT
{
Share Capital Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
ffnafE EniE ERHE RERH st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR  ARETR AEETR  AEETR  AEETRn
(note below)
(RTFxMizE)
As at 10 February 2021 RZEZ-FZA+H
(date of incorporation) (FHek B ) - - - - -
Comprehensive (expense) income 20 () WA
- Loss for the year - ERER - - - (14,426) (14,426)
Other comprehensive income Hth2EkE
- Currency translation differences -GRHEER - - 229 - 229
Total comprehensive income (expense) ER2EWE (B%) 4
for the year - - 229 (14,426) (14,197
Acquisition of subsidiaries G- 1D EUNG] - 134,454 - - 134,454
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_-E+"A=1+-H
1 January 2022 RZE-"E-f- - 134,454 229 (14,426) 120,257
Comprehensive (expense) income 2 (B KA
- Loss for the year -EREE = - - (15,900) (15,900)
Other comprehensive income Hirz Bl
- Currency translation differences -EBHEER - - 13,795 = 13,795
Total comprehensive income (expense) FR2EUE (B%) 448
for the year - - 13,795 (15,900) (2,105)
Share issuance pursuant to the REEXCRIMETRG
Capitalisation Issue (note 26 (c)) (Fiz£26(c)) (12,165) = = = (12,165)
Issuance of New Shares through BRENAREE
initial public offering (note 26 (d)) ITHRRI (3R 26(d)) 162,200 - - - 162,200
Share issue expenses RIDETHS (11,426) - - - (11,426)
At 31 December 2022 RIRZZHE+ZA=1-H 138,609 134,454 14,024 (30,326) 256,761
Note: Capital reserve of the Company represented the difference MIEE @ AR BB ARG ISP UL BT B

ABNEEFERREBEEMARE
BERABETRABDRMIX
RNEBZERERE -

between the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired and
the consideration settled by issuance of the shares of the
Company to the immediate holding company pursuant to the
Reorganisation.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M HRRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Bt —F - —F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to
conform to the current year s presentation.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the company did not have any significant
events after the end of the reporting period.

38.

39.

AJLERETF
ETHLEEAFTEENDRUNES
FEZEHAN -

REHREE

PR ER G M RREME D FTIREE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MIBEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REESE
L

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=t+—-HILEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ZZ-N\F “ZNE _SITF T —E-C

RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000

AREFT NS AREFT AREFT AEEFT

Revenue Wzd 124,251 180,775 221,610 354,327 437,113
Profit before income tax PRERTSHATER 15,263 40,809 57,921 59,271 16,037
Income tax expense FrSMBI (4,141) (11,005) (13,911) (19,138) (6,084)
Profit for the year ERHF 11,122 29,804 44,010 40,133 9,953
Profit for the year attributable to: U TEEELERKT
- Owners of the Company —ERBEHEEA 10,586 27,903 39,612 32,140 3,189
- Non-controlling interests — IR R 536 1,901 4,398 7,993 6,764

11,122 29,804 44010 40,133 9,953
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEEERAE
L

As at 31 December
®+=B=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

“E-N\& “E-NE _EBCTHE B & —E-C
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETT AREFT AREFT AEBETT ARETR

Assets BE
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 2,671 3,530 82,400 114,892 141,129
Total current assets Vi 100,840 157,764 278,751 274,449 445,570
Total assets BEE 103,511 161,294 361,151 389,341 586,699
Equities and liabilities Ezhaf
Total current liabilities TENEEEE 73,606 101,138 226,241 214,171 244 874
Total non-current liabilities FREaGERE - - 14,814 12,936 9,196
Total liabilities =L 73,606 101,138 241,055 221,107 254,070
Equity attributable to owners of  AABBEBAEGER

the Company 26,846 54,706 94,907 129,827 300,784
Non-controlling interests E|2 3,059 5,450 25,189 32,407 31,845
Total equity Tt 4a%E 29,905 60,156 120,096 162,234 332,629
Total equity and liabilities ERERaEEE 103,511 161,294 361,151 389,341 586,699
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